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Mr. Xu Liang, aged 55, senior accountant, graduated from Fudan
University and obtained a bachelor degree in statistics and a master
degree in business administration from Tsinghua University. Mr. Xu
was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company since January
2017 and the Chairman of the board of directors of the Company (the
“Board”) since June 2017, and acted as the Managing Director of the
Company from January 2021, in order to re-comply with the requirement
under code provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) in
relation to the roles of chairman and the chief executive should not be
performed by the same individual, Mr. Xu has resigned as the Managing
Director of the Company with effect from 29 March 2021. Mr. Xu is also
the chairman of each of the Executive Committee and the Nomination
Committee, as well as a member of the Remuneration Committee.
Mr. Xu is also the chairman of the board of directors of Beijing West
Business Factoring Company Limited* (“Beijing West Factory”, R A&
ERIBABPRAF]), Beijing West Factoring is held as to 41.41% equity
interests by the Company. Mr. Xu joined the group of Shougang Group
Co., Ltd (“Shougang Group”) in 1988 and held various senior positions.
He is the managing director of Shougang Holding (Hong Kong) Limited
("Shougang Holding”). Shougang Holding is a substantial shareholder of
the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO") while Shougang Group is the holding company
of Shougang Holding. He is also an executive director and the member
of the executive committee of Shoucheng Holdings Limited (formerly
named as Shougang Concord International Enterprises Company Limited,
“Shoucheng Holding”). He is currently an executive director and the
member of the executive committee, the nomination committee and
remuneration committee of Global Digital Creations Holdings Limited
("GDC"). He had been the Chairman of the board of directors of GDC
during the period from June 2017 to July 2018. The shares of Shoucheng
Holding and GDC are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Xu has extensive experience in management.

A service agreement was entered into between Mr. Xu and a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company for a term of three years commencing
on 1 January 2020. Under the service agreement, Mr. Xu is entitled to
a salary and discretionary bonus as may be determined by the Board or
its delegated committee(s) from time to time. For both financial years
2020 and 2021, Mr. Xu's monthly salary is HK$280,000. Such salary was
determined by the Remuneration Committee with reference to Mr. Xu’s
roles and duties as well as the then prevailing market conditions.
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Mr. Tian Gang, aged 52, obtained a postgraduate degree (on-the-
job) from the Party School of the Central Committee of the Chinese
Communist Party. Mr. Tian was appointed as an Executive Director of
the Company in March 2021 and is a member of Executive Committee.
Mr. Tian joined the Company in July 2017 and is currently the deputy
general manager of the Company and the managing director of South
China International Leasing Co., Ltd., a non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company. Mr. Tian worked at China Construction Bank Beijing
Branch from August 1990 to July 2017. He successively served as branch
accountant, deputy director and director of the business department,
manager of the real estate credit department, director of the company
and institutional business center, assistant to the president and branch
president. Mr. Tian has worked in the financial field for more than 30
years and has extensive experience in the financial industry.

A service agreement was entered into between Mr. Tian and a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company for a term of three years commencing
on 24 March 2021. Under the service agreement, Mr. Tian is entitled to a
salary and discretionary bonus as may be determined by the Board or its
delegated committee(s) from time to time. For financial year 2021, Mr.
Tian’s monthly salary is HK$120,000. Such salary was determined by the
Remuneration Committee with reference to Mr. Tian’s experience and
duties as well as the then prevailing market conditions.

Mr. Huang Donglin, aged 60, holds an executive master of business
administration from Shanghai Jiao Tong University and a doctor’s degree
from United Business Institutes in Belgium. Mr. Huang was appointed
as a Non-executive Director of the Company in May 2018 and is a
member of each of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, he was also appointed as a member of the Audit Committee
in March 2021. Mr. Huang held positions in The People’s Bank of China,
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China and Bank of China. Mr. Huang
has worked in the finance industry for over thirty years and led the equity
reorganization and restructuring of a number of domestic companies. He
has extensive experience in finance, and has been engaged in relevant
enterprise management and diagnosis for a long time.

An engagement letter was entered into with Mr. Huang for a term of
three years commencing on 18 May 2018. Under the engagement letter,
Mr. Huang is entitled to a director’s fee as may be determined by the
Board from time to time. For financial year 2020, the monthly director’s
fee of Mr. Huang is HK$15,833. From March 2021, Mr. Huang's monthly
director’s fee has been adjusted to HK$20,000. Such director’s fee was
determined by the Board with reference to Mr. Huang'’s experience and
duties as well as the then prevailing market conditions.
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Mr. Zhang Jianxun, aged 41, holds a master degree of engineering
from Tianjin University and a master degree of science from the University
of Leeds. Mr. Zhang was appointed as a Non-executive Director of
the Company in March 2021. Mr. Zhang is currently the managing
director of Beijing Shougang Fund Co., Ltd.* bt R EHE L AR A A,
“Shougang Fund”), the chairman and general manager of Jingxi Holdings
Co., Ltd. (“Jingxi Holdings"), and the director of Beijing Shougang
Langze New Energy Technology Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Shougang Langze”).
Shougang Fund, Jingxi Holdings and Beijing Shougang Langze are the
substantial shareholders of the Company within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO, while Shougang Group is the holding company of Shougang
Fund, Shougang Fund is the holding company of Jingxi Holdings and
Beijing Shougang Langze is owned as to 45.98% by Shougang Group.
Mr. Zhang had served as the deputy general manager of Beijing E-Town
International Investment & Development Co., Ltd., the chairman of
Beijing E-Town International Industrial Investment Management Co.,
Ltd., and the general manager of Cultural Investment Holdings Co., Ltd.
(stock code: SH600715, formerly named as Song Liao Automotive Co.,
Ltd.), the shares of which are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, the
director of China Integrated Circuit Industry Investment Fund Co., Ltd.,
the director of AVIC Automotive Systems Holdings Co., Ltd., the director
of Nexteer Automotive Group Limited (stock code: 1316), the shares of
which are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange, the director
of Beijing Sicheng Semiconductor Co., Ltd.* (It R K EEARE A
A]) and the director of Integrated Silicon Solution Inc.. Mr. Zhang has
extensive experience in mergers and acquisitions and capital operation of
listed companies.

An engagement letter was entered into with Mr. Zhang for a term of
three years commencing on 24 March 2021. Under the engagement
letter, he will not receive any emolument.

Mr. Tam King Ching, Kenny, aged 71, holds a bachelor degree in
commerce from Concordia University, Canada. Mr. Tam was appointed
as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in February
1996 and is the chairman of each of the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee, as well as a member of the Nomination
Committee. He is a practising Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong.
Mr. Tam is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a member of the Chartered Professional
Accountants of Ontario, Canada. Mr. Tam is a Past President of The
Society of Chinese Accountants and Auditors. He also serves as an
independent non-executive director of certain listed companies on the
main board of the Stock Exchange, namely, Beijing West Industries
International Limited, CCT Fortis Holdings Limited, GBA Holdings Limited
(formerly known as Greater Bay Area Investments Group Holdings
Limited), Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited, Starlite Holdings Limited,
Hong Kong Shanghai Alliance Holdings Limited, West China Cement
Limited and Wisdom Education International Holdings Company Limited.
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An engagement letter was entered into with Mr. Tam for a term of three
years commencing on 1 January 2020. Under the engagement letter, Mr.
Tam is entitled to a director’s fee as may be determined by the Board
from time to time. For both financial years 2020 and 2021, the director’s
fee of Mr. Tam is HK$240,000 for a full year. Such director’s fee was
determined by the Board with reference to Mr. Tam’s experience and
duties as well as the then prevailing market conditions.

Mr. Zhang Xingyu, aged 36, holds a bachelor degree of management
from China Youth University of Political Studies and master degree of
economics from Renmin University of China. Mr. Zhang was appointed as
an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in March 2020
and is the member of each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Zhang currently serves
as the chief strategy officer of Gaoteng Global Asset Management
Limited. He had served as the project manager in China Electric Import
and Export Co., Ltd., the department cadre and confidential secretary
of main leader of National Council for Social Security Fund and the vice
president and the special assistant to the chairman of Shanghai Zhaogang
Netcom Corporation Limited. Mr. Zhang has extensive experience in
government affairs, assets management and corporate financing etc.

An engagement letter was entered into with Mr. Zhang for a term of
three years commencing on 20 March 2020. Under the engagement
letter, Mr. Zhang is entitled to a director’s fee as may be determined by
the Board from time to time. For the financial years 2020 and 2021, the
monthly director's fee of Mr. Zhang is HK$20,000. Such director’s fee
was determined by the Board with reference to Mr. Zhang's experience
and duties as well as the then prevailing market conditions.

Mr. Ng Man Fung, Walter, aged 53, holds a bachelor degree in
economics from Oregon University. Mr. Ng was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in March 2021
and is the member of each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee. Mr. Ng is an executive
director of Mingfa Group (International) Co., Ltd. (stock code: 846),
the shares of which are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange
and its main business is real estate development and investment in the
People’s Republic of China. Mr. Ng had served as an analyst in CEF
Brokerage Limited from July 1996 to June 1998 and a vice president
of research department in GK Goh Securities Limited from December
1998 to July 1999, responsible for the analysis of the internet, retail
and traditional manufacturing companies and their related markets.
In addition, he served as the head of corporate finance of Nan Hai
Corporation Limited (stock code: 680) from July 1999 to January 2015,
responsible for mergers and acquisitions and corporate financing
activities. The shares of Nan Hai Corporation Limited are listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange. He also served as the chief financial
officer of MEML Holdings Limited and DoDoPal Holdings Limited from
March 2015 to September 2017 and from September 2017 to September
2019 respectively.
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An engagement letter was entered into with Mr. Ng for a term of three
years commencing on 19 March 2021. Under the engagement letter, Mr.
Ng is entitled to a director’s fee as may be determined by the Board from
time to time. For the financial year 2021, the monthly director’s fee of
Mr. Ng is HK$20,000. Such director’s fee was determined by the Board
with reference to Mr. Ng's experience and duties as well as the then
prevailing market conditions.

Ms. On Danita, aged 44, holds a bachelor degree in business
administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong and a
master degree in finance from the London School of Business.
Ms. On is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Ms. On was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company in March 2021 and is the member of each
of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee. Ms. On is currently the investor and corporate
communications director of Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Company Limited
(stock code: 1929). She has worked in PricewaterhouseCoopers, Morgan
Stanley, Citadel Investment Group and Ying Sheng Science Co., Ltd. (stock
code: 209). The shares of both Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Co., Ltd. and
Ying Sheng Science Co., Ltd. are listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange. Ms. On has more than 20 years of experience in auditing,
management consultation, securities research, asset management and
investor relations.

An engagement letter was entered into with Ms. On for a term of three
years commencing on 19 March 2021. Under the engagement letter, Ms.
On is entitled to a director’s fee as may be determined by the Board from
time to time. For the financial year 2021, the monthly director’s fee of
Ms. On is HK$20,000. Such director’s fee was determined by the Board
with reference to Ms. On’s experience and duties as well as the then
prevailing market conditions.

Mr. Liang Hengyi, aged 47, has been appointed as General Manager
of the Company in 29 March 2021. Mr. Liang holds a master degree in
Economics and a Doctor of Philosophy degree in Management and is a
senior economist. Mr. Liang served as a managing director, an executive
director and a member of each of the executive committee and the
nomination committee of Shoucheng Holdings. He also served as a
managing director of Shougang Fund, the general manager of non-fare
business unit of Beijing Infrastructure Investment Co., Ltd., the general
manager of Beijing Capital Investment Rail Transit Assets Management
Company Gt R R EEBEELLERABR AR and the president
of Beijing Urban Underground Space Development and Construction Co.,
Ltd. bRy N =B EREERBR A F).
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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I am pleased to present the 2020 annual report of the Group. Closely
following the development path of empowering the industrial chain by
financial services, Shougang Concord Grand integrated and optimized
the structure of its different business segments, built up an integrated
industrial financial service platform on the basis of the concept of “new
finance, new technology and new service”, and expanded the base of
core corporate customers in strategic industries, so as to provide financial
services to small and medium-sized enterprises in the upstream and
downstream industrial chain of core enterprises through its industrial
financial service platform. In 2020, Shougang Concord Grand focused
on the development direction, improved efficiency through technological
innovation and management innovation, and overcame the impact of the
epidemic. Shougang Concord Grand successfully achieved a year-on-year
growth in both revenue and profit.

Looking back at 2020, with firm confidence and our pragmatic actions,
we effectively deployed all business tasks into specific plans, and
turned them into specific measures. We stressed our efforts in key
aspects, and strove to achieve operating results and growth results
through effective implementation. In 2020, we took the initiative and
achieved encouraging results by eyeing on the two groups of target
core enterprises namely steel companies and domestic conglomerates
as well as their upstream and downstream customers after thorough
analysis and research. The financial leasing business to domestic
conglomerates continued to grow steadily in terms of project scale. A
supply chain management company achieved breakthrough in revenue
from steel companies and their upstream and downstream customers
and continued to expand in scale. An assets management service
company developed the assets management business model of asset
securitization and actively provided financing and securitization services
to target enterprises, which started to bear fruit. The commercial
factoring business also continued to generate profits. During the year,
we endeavored to expand our strategic customers and strategic partners
to expand project scale and improve profitability. While paying attention
to business expansion, the Group also attached great importance to
business quality and asset safety. As a result, the asset quality of each
business segment was good. In addition to pushing ahead cost reduction
and efficiency enhancement, we strengthened system building, exercised
stringent cost control, and continuously optimized financial structure and
capital utilization efficiency.
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Looking forward to 2021, the Group will continue to focus on the
provision of financial leasing, commercial factoring, supply chain
management, investment and financing advisory services and other
portfolios of financial products to the two groups of target core
enterprises including steel companies and domestic conglomerates, as
well as their upstream and downstream customers, in order to provide
customized financial service solutions for target companies, meet the
strategic needs of target companies and their upstream and downstream
companies for industrial upgrading and give full play to the important
role of financial services in empowering real economy and proactively
facilitate the linkage between the business segments so as to strengthen
our customer service capabilities. In respect of business expansion,
we will broaden the scale of market-oriented business while deeply
developing its steel industry as a priority. In view of the above, the Group
will continue to increase investment in improving its core competitiveness
in “new finance, new technology, new service”, proactively develop
diversified investment and financing products system based on the
needs of new customers and take the advantage of optimized resource
allocation and sufficient funds in capital market, in order to realize the
sustainable growth of its business scale and create greater business value
for its customers, shareholders and society.

In respect of developing new business, the Group will attach great
importance to the international opportunities brought by the “One Belt
and One Road Initiative” and explore potential cross-border business
models under the guidance of the national policy, the “One Belt and One
Road Initiative”, leveraging on the industrial background and advantages
of Shougang Group, especially in actively expanding both domestic and
overseas financing channels to advance its expansion into the overseas
market. While actively responding to the requirements of the supply-
side structural reform on the integration of industry and finance and the
policy guidelines of the “One Belt and One Road Initiative”, we will make
full use of the advantages of domestic and overseas resources linkage
and market innovation in the Hong Kong capital market to provide cross-
border financial services for advantageous industries locally and emerging
industries abroad. At the same time, we will promote the rapid growth
of the scale of our financial service business with industrial project
resources.
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With the increasingly serious international economic turmoil, the
economic cyclical volatility risk, policy risk and financial risk are
increasing. Facing the challenges of macroeconomic situation, the Group
will attach great importance to risk control and implement various
risk management measures. At the same time of business expansion,
the Group will constantly optimize the risk management system,
coordinate the building of risk management system and improve the risk
management framework, particularly focusing on strengthening the risk
identification and prevention abilities in key areas and links. The Group
firmly believes that a sound and stable risk management and governance
framework is an important basis for realizing long-term development of
the Company and safeguarding the interests of shareholders. Under the
sound risk management framework, the Group will combine strategic
targets with risk management and actively use financial resources to
seize market opportunities while maintaining risks under control, focus
on the development of segmented industries and respond to customer
demands.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my sincere thanks
to our customers, suppliers and shareholders for their continuous support
to the Group. | would also like to extend my gratitude and appreciation
to the management and staff for their hard work and dedication
throughout the year.

Xu Liang
Chairman and Managing Director
Hong Kong, 19 March 2021

BEEREEREARES  KBERMKS
R - BRRER ;S BER NSNS - @Y
FERELENE  SESEERARE
7 RERERRERER - EEBHED
FE - TEEELRRERHE SKERARE
BERAZR TZRBREBERE  ZENR
S i <RI I B R IR B A R B st l) K [ 8B R
he ARERE  RERENRAREENME
AEREERAAREERRREBRENR
MBEEAMN AKBEERENAREEER
T BERESERREEMESS  BEA
R BER ERERATNHEEANLETRS
B RN ER  BEREPHER -

RE - AANBRREZSHIEP  HER
FRBR —BE ARG TAKEZFHBIARDLH
BoRE AAHEEzEEERETS
E—F 28N RO IR R R M

o

I

\

TERE BT

EH —E-_—F=A+hNAB



In 2020, Shougang Concord Grand continued to push ahead the
development philosophy of financial leasing, commercial factoring,
supply chain management services and assets management services as
core businesses, and endeavored to build an integrated service platform
with financial empowerment. The year 2020 was an exceptional year.
Faced with the sudden outbreak of COVID-19, with the team’s firm
confidence and persistence in epidemic prevention and control as well
as operational development, we achieved a year-on-year growth in both
revenue and profit.

The key financial performance indicators are analysed as below:

Financial performance B &

Revenue Uz

Gross profit margin (%) EFE(%)

Profit for the year FERF

Profit/(loss) attributable to owners of A TEH AEG T,
the Company (E18)

Key financial indicators FENBER

Total cash IR e

Total assets HEE

Total liabilities waE

Bank borrowings HRITIEK

Capital and reserves attributable to ZAYNCIESYS DN o)
owners of the Company IR R

Current ratio PIEERES

Basic earnings/(loss) per share BREARF, (B8)

(HK cents) (B
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The Group recorded profit attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$5,980,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020,
which represented a turnaround when compared with loss attributable
to owners of the Company of approximately HK$7,921,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2019. The turnaround from loss to profit
was mainly due to the increase in profit from the sale and leaseback
arrangements services segment and the recognition of profit from the
supply chain management services segment for the first time. Revenue
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 was approximately
HK$85,378,000, which represented an increase of approximately 10%
when compared with that of approximately HK$77,702,000 for the year
2019. The increase was mainly attributable to the increase in revenue
from the sale and leaseback arrangements services segment and the
increase in revenue from the supply chain management services segment.
The Group recorded a gross profit of approximately HK$73,760,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2020, representing a gross profit margin
of approximately 86%, which is an increase of approximately 12% when
compared with the gross profit margin of approximately 74% for the
year 2019. Basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December
2020 was HK0.15 cent (2019: basic loss per share was HK0.20 cent).

Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2020 was approximately
HK$85,378,000, representing an increase of approximately 10% when
compared with that of approximately HK$77,702,000 for the year 2019.
The increase was mainly attributable to the increase in revenue from
the sale and leaseback arrangements services segment by approximately
HK$7,090,000 and the increase in revenue from the supply chain
management services segment by approximately HK$4,578,000.

The Group made a gross profit of approximately HK$73,760,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2020, representing a gross profit margin of
approximately 86%, which is an increase of 12%, when compared with
the gross profit margin of approximately 74% for the year 2019, which
was mainly attributable to the increase in gross profit margin from the
sale and leaseback arrangements services segment.

Other income for the year ended 31 December 2020 amounted to
approximately HK$12,388,000 (2019: HK$21,191,000), representing
a decrease of approximately 42%. The decrease was mainly due to the
decrease in interest income from term deposits.
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Administrative expenses for the year ended 31 December 2020
amounted to approximately HK$68,079,000 (2019: HK$65,232,000),
representing an increase of approximately 4%. The increase was mainly
due to the rise in labor cost driven by business development.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, share of profit of associates
amounted to approximately HK$1,258,000 (2019: HK$2,614,000). The
decrease was mainly attributable to the pandemic.

Closely following the strategy of integration of industry and finance for
its core business and market competitiveness, we built an integrated
financial service platform with financial empowerment leveraging on
the business synergies arising from the financial leasing, commercial
factoring, supply chain management services and assets management
services. Taking the provision of supply chain management services,
financial services and assets management services as our core businesses
and competitive strengths in the market, the Group endeavors to provide
financial leasing, commercial factoring, supply chain management,
investment and financing advisory services and other portfolios of
financial products to the two groups of target core enterprises including
steel companies and domestic conglomerates, as well as their upstream
and downstream customers, in order to provide customized financial
service solutions for core enterprises, meet the strategic needs of core
enterprises and their upstream and downstream companies for industrial
upgrading and give full play to the important role of financial services in
empowering real economy.

During the year, revenue from the sale and leaseback arrangements
services segment increased by approximately 10% to approximately
HK$78,691,000 (2019: HK$71,601,000), and the segment
results recorded a profit of approximately HK$65,976,000 (2019:
HK$48,331,000). The increase in revenue from the sale and leaseback
arrangements services segment was mainly due to the increase in project
gross profit resulting from increased new projects and more flexible
financial resource usage.
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During the year, revenue from the supply chain management services
segment was approximately HK$5,294,000 (2019: HK$716,000), and
the segment results recorded a profit of approximately HK$2,431,000
(2019: loss of approximately HK$2,070,000). Based on the business
scenarios of the target companies, the supply chain management services
segment carefully analyzed the capital flow, information flow, business
flow, logistics, etc. of the industrial chain where the target companies are
located, and solved customers’ capital and management needs with the
most convenient and diversified products, so as to reduce the transaction
cost of the industrial chain and empower the industry. The supply
chain management services segment carried out business and recorded
revenue.

During the year, revenue from the assets management and
consultancy services segment was approximately HK$1,054,000 (2019:
HK$4,812,000), and the segment results recorded a loss of approximately
HK$5,259,000 (2019: HK$305,000). The decline in revenue from and
segment results of the assets management and consultancy services
segment was mainly attributable to the pandemic and international
macroeconomic fluctuations, which made customers more prudent about
the outlook and slowdown their investment in projects.

During the year, revenue from the property leasing services segment
decreased by approximately 41% to approximately HK$339,000 (2019:
HK$573,000), and the segment results recorded a loss of approximately
HK$970,000 (2019: profit of approximately HK$2,065,000). The decrease
in revenue from the property leasing services segment was mainly
attributable to the increase in vacancy rate. The decline in segment
results was mainly attributable to the decrease in fair value of investment
properties of the Group of approximately HK$1,000,000 (2019: increase
in fair value of investment properties of approximately HK$2,400,000).
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Looking ahead into 2021, under the policy environment and market
environment of promoting financial innovation, Shougang Concord
Grand will grasp opportunities brought by the policies in relation to
China’s innovation of modern supply chain area and the upgrading
strategies of industries in which target core enterprises operate to
provide innovative financial product and service portfolios to those target
core enterprises and their upstream and downstream customers, so as to
serve the real economy. We will strive to capitalize on the advantage of
cross-border operation while actively exploring new models of innovative
financial service business and taking advantage of Hong Kong's excellent
geographical location and favorable financing environment as an
international financial market, to make meaningful exploration under The
Belt and Road Initiative and seize relevant policy opportunities.

In terms of risk management infrastructure, prudent and effective risk
management can help in untapping the commercial value of long-
term investments, as well as laying a solid foundation for the Group’s
sustainable development. We will put emphasis on strengthening our
risk control system, introducing information technology platform, and
adjusting our management and control strategies in a timely manner and
continuously improving our management by improving and optimizing
our risk control mechanism. In addition, we will also continue to promote
the development of our online risk management platform based on asset
securitization and industry supply chain business so as to provide an
effective tool for the Group's risk management.
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The Group aimed to maintain stable funding sources and financing is
arranged to balance between business requirements and cash flows. The
financial leverage of the Group as at 31 December 2020 as compared to
31 December 2019 is summarized below:

Total borrowings N ETN
Current borrowings BN R TX

Non-current borrowings ETRENE K
Sub-total NEE
Total cash R e
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBEFEER
Term deposits with initial term over #95 BARR #2838 = & A &Y
three months TEHER
Sub-total INET
Total equity farEm
Total assets MEE
Current ratio BN X

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$318,818,000 (31 December 2019: HK$607,782,000)
and term deposits with initial term over three months of approximately
HK$ Nil (31 December 2019: HK$94,382,000), which were mainly
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, US dollars and Renminbi. The
decrease was mainly attributable to the combined effects of net cash
used in operating activities of approximately HK$146,343,000, the net
repayment of bank borrowings of approximately HK$187,280,000, and
proceeds received from disposal of debt instruments of approximately
HK$15,506,000.
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As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s borrowings amounted
to approximately HK$290,303,000, of which approximately
HK$143,308,000 were repayable within twelve months from 31
December 2020 and approximately HK$146,995,000 were repayable
after twelve months from 31 December 2020. During the year, the
Group obtained new bank borrowings of approximately HK$283,683,000
for the finance leasing business and working capital of the Group. All
borrowings bore interest at market rates.

The capital and reserves attributable to owners of the Company
amounted to approximately HK$1,445,637,000 as at 31 December 2020
(31 December 2019: HK$1,355,149,000). The increase was mainly due
to the profit attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$5,980,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020 and the exchange
differences arising on translation of approximately HK$73,498,000 in
total during the year. The Company did not issue any new shares during
the year. The issued share capital of the Company was approximately
HK$39,846,000 (represented by approximately 3,984,640,000 issued
ordinary shares).

During the year, the Group had no material acquisitions, disposals and
significant investment.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had the following charge on assets:

(i)  The Group’s investment properties with an aggregate carrying
value of HK$23,700,000 and the Group's building with carrying
value of HK$14,549,000 were pledged to banks to secure for bank
borrowings with outstanding amount of HK$8,170,000.

(i)  The Group's receivables under sale and leaseback arrangements
with a carrying value of HK$321,283,000 were pledged to banks
to secure for bank borrowings with outstanding amount of
HK$212,133,000.
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The normal operations and investments of the Group are mainly in Hong
Kong and China, with revenue and expenditure denominated in Hong
Kong dollars and Renminbi. The Directors believe that the Group does
not have significant foreign exchange exposure. However, if necessary,
the Group will consider using forward exchange contracts to hedge
against foreign exchange exposures. As at 31 December 2020, the Group
had no significant foreign exchange exposure.

The Group had no significant contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2020.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group employed 50 (31 December 2019:
60) full time employees (excluding those under the payroll of associates
of the Group). The Group remunerated its employees mainly with
reference to the prevailing market practice, individual performance and
work experience. Other benefits such as medical coverage, insurance
plan, mandatory provident fund, discretionary bonus and employees
share option scheme are also available to employees of the Group.
Remuneration packages are reviewed either annually or through special
increment.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company and its
subsidiaries have not paid or committed to pay to any individual any
amount as an inducement to join or upon joining the Company and/or its
subsidiaries.
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The Company is committed to maintaining good corporate governance
standard and procedures to safeguard the interests of all shareholders
and to enhance accountability and transparency.

The Company has complied with the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) during the financial year ended 31 December 2020.

Following the pass away of Mr. Wan Siu Wah, Wilson as an Independent
Non-executive Director on 8 January 2021, the Company only had
two Independent Non-executive Directors, thus the number of the
Independent Non-executive Directors fell below the minimum number
required under Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules. As a result
of the insufficient number of Independent Non-executive Directors, the
Company had also failed to comply with the requirements set out in
Rules 3.21 and 3.25 of the Listing Rules and Code Provision A.5.1 of
the CG Code with regard to the minimum number of members and the
composition of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee.

Mr. Ng Man Fung, Walter (“Mr. Ng”) and Ms. On Danita (“Ms. On")
were appointed as Independent Non-executive Directors on 19 March
2021, which was within three months from the date of pass away of Mr.
Wan Siu Wah, Wilson as required by Rules 3.11, 3.23 and 3.27 of the
Listing Rules.

Upon the appointment of Mr. Ng and Ms. On as Independent Non-
executive Directors on 19 March 2021, the number of Independent Non-
executive Directors satisfied the minimum number required under Rules
3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules. In addition, the Company had
complied with the requirements set out under Rules 3.21 and 3.25 of the
Listing Rules and Code Provision A.5.1 of the CG Code with regard to
the composition of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee.
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The Board currently comprises a total of eight Directors, being two
Executive Directors, two Non-executive Directors and four Independent
Non-executive Directors. The list of Directors is set out in the section
headed "“Report of the Directors” of this annual report. In addition, an
updated list of the Directors and their roles and functions is published on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company respectively.

The Board is characterised by significant diversity and has a balance of
skills and experience appropriate for the requirements of the business of
the Company. The Directors’ biographical information is set out in the
section headed “Directors’ and Senior Management'’s Biographies” of
this annual report.

The Directors give sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”). All Directors are required to
disclose to the Company at the time of their appointment and annually
the number and the nature of offices held in public companies or
organizations and other significant commitments with an indication of
the time involved.

Save for those as disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ and Senior
Management’s Biographies” as set out on pages 4 to 8 of this annual
report, the Board members have no other financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships with each other.

The Board includes a balanced composition of Executive and Non-
executive Directors (including Independent Non-executive Directors) so
that there is a sufficient independent element on the Board, which can

effectively exercise independent judgement.

The Non-executive Directors are of sufficient number and calibre for their
views to carry weight. The functions of Non-executive Directors include:

o bringing an independent judgement at Board meetings;

o taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise;

° serving on Board committees if invited; and

° scrutinising the Company’s performance and monitoring
performance reporting.
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The Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-executive
Directors) have made a positive contribution to the development of the
Company’s strategy and policies through independent, constructive and
informed comments. They give the Board and the committees on which
they serve the benefit of their skills, expertise, varied backgrounds and
qualifications through regular attendance and active participation.

Composition of the Board is disclosed, and the Independent Non-
executive Directors are identified, in all corporate communications to
shareholders.

The Company adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) which sets out its approach to achieve diversity on the Board
with a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development of the
Company.

The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the consideration
of a number of factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The Company will also take into
account factors based on its own business model and specific needs
from time to time. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

During the year, the board of directors consisted of three Executive
Directors, two Non-executive Directors, and three Independent Non-
executive Directors, of which 75% are male and 25% are female. In
addition, 37.5% of our directors aged between 30-40 years old and
62.5% of our Directors aged 50 or above. The members of the Board
have extensive business and professional backgrounds, and have a
diverse range of business, financial services and accounting experience.
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The composition, experience and balance of skills in the Board are
regularly reviewed and assessed to ensure that the Board retains a core
of members with longstanding knowledge of the Group alongside with
new Director(s) to be appointed from time to time who bring(s) fresh
perspectives and diverse experiences to the Board. The Nomination
Committee has the primary responsibility for identifying suitably
qualified candidates to become members of the Board and, in carrying
out such responsibility, will give adequate consideration to the Board
Diversity Policy. Following the appointment of Mr. Zhang Xingyu as an
Independent Non-executive Director during the year, the Nomination
Committee believes that the current composition of the Board is based
on the history and actual conditions of the Company and demonstrates a
thorough consideration of the factors for achieving board diversity.

The Board Diversity Policy is posted on the website of the Company.

The Board is responsible for overall strategic formulation and performance
monitoring of the Group. It delegates day-to-day operations of the
Company to the Executive Committee and senior management within
the control and authority framework set by the Board. In addition, the
Board has also delegated various responsibilities to the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee. Further
details of these committees are set out in this report.

The Board meets regularly and holds at least four Board meetings a
year. Additional meetings will be arranged, if and when required. The
Directors can attend meetings in person or through electronic means of
communication in accordance with the bye-laws of the Company (the
“Bye-laws").
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The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in drawing up the agenda
of each Board meeting. Draft agenda of each regular Board meeting
will be sent to all Directors for review before the agenda is issued and
all Directors may request for inclusion of other matters in the agenda.
The Chairman will take into account the matters proposed by the
Directors and where appropriate, approve the inclusion of such matters
in the agenda of the Board meeting. Generally, at least 14-day notice
of a regular Board meeting is given and the Company aims at giving
reasonable notice for all other Board meetings. The Company also aims
at sending the agenda and the accompanying board papers, which are
prepared in a form and quality sufficient to enable the Board to make
informed decisions on matters placed before it, to all Directors at least
3 days before the intended date of a Board meeting. Where queries are
raised by Directors, prompt and full responses will be given if possible.

There has been procedure in place to enable Directors to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’s expenses. The Board shall resolve to, upon reasonable
request, provide separate independent professional advice to Directors to
assist them in performing their duties to the Company.

The Company Secretary is responsible for taking minutes of Board
meetings and Board committee meetings, draft and final versions of
which would be sent to Directors for comments and records respectively,
within a reasonable time after each meeting. Minutes are recorded in
sufficient detail the matters considered and decisions reached, including
any concerns raised by Directors or dissenting views (if any) expressed.
Minutes of Board meetings and Board committees meetings are kept
by the Company Secretary and are open for inspection by any Director/
committee member.

If a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest in a
matter (including material transaction with connected persons) which the
Board has determined to be material, the matter will be dealt with by a
physical Board meeting, rather than a written resolution. Independent
Non-executive Directors who, and whose close associates, have no
material interest in the transaction should be present at the Board
meeting.
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Except for those circumstances permitted by the Bye-laws and all
applicable laws, rules and regulations, a Director shall not vote on any
Board resolution approving any contract or arrangement or any other
proposal in which he or any of his close associates (or associates where
the transaction or arrangement is a connected transaction under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules) has a material interest nor shall he be counted
in the quorum present at the meeting.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2020, the Directors have
made active contribution to the affairs of the Group and seven physical
Board meetings were held to consider, among other things, various
projects contemplated by the Group and to review and approve the
interim results and annual results of the Group.

Details of the Directors’ attendances in 2020 are as follows:
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Notes:

1. Mr. Su Guifeng resigned as a Director with effect from 19 March 2021.

2. Ms. Li Jing resigned as a Director with effect from 24 March 2021.

3. Mr. Liu Dongsheng retired as a Director with effect from 21 May 2020.

4. Ms. You Wenli resigned as a Director with effect from 24 March 2021.

5. Mr. Zhang Xingyu appointed as a Director with effect from 20 March 2020.

6. Mr. Fei Jianjiang resigned as a Director with effect from 20 March 2020.

7. Mr. Wan Siu Wah, Wilson passed away on 8 January 2021.

The Board is supplied with sufficient explanation and information by
the management to enable the Board to make an informed assessment
of financial and other information put before it for approval. The
management provides all Board members with monthly updates which
give a balanced and understandable assessment of the Company’s
performance, position and prospects in sufficient details to enable the
Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties. Where
any Director requires more information than is volunteered by the
management, each Director has the right to separately and independently
access to the Company’s senior management to make further enquiries if
necessary.

Appointment of new Directors is a matter for consideration by the
Nomination Committee. In considering the candidates for directorship,
the Nomination Committee will give adequate consideration to the
Board Diversity Policy, review the profiles of the candidates and take
into account the qualification, ability, working experience, leadership
and professional ethics of the candidates. The Nomination Committee
will make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and nomination of Directors for consideration and
approval.
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According to the Bye-laws, any Director so appointed by the Board shall
hold office, in the case of filling a casual vacancy, only until the next
following general meeting of the Company or, in the case of an addition
to their number, until the next following annual general meeting of
the Company who shall then be eligible for re-election at such general
meeting. Every Director, except for the Chairman and the Managing
Director, is subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years. In order to comply with applicable laws of Bermuda, the Bye-laws
do not require the Chairman and the Managing Director to retire by
rotation. However, they will voluntarily retire and offer themselves for
re-election at least once every three years in order to comply with the
second part of code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code.

The Board recommended the re-appointment of the Directors
standing for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company. Detailed information of the Directors standing for
re-election will be set out in the circular of the Company in relation
to the forthcoming annual general meeting to be despatched to the
shareholders.

All Directors (including all Non-executive Directors) have entered into
service agreements or engagement letters with the Company for a term
of not more than three years.

During the year, pursuant to Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2) and 3.10A of the
Listing Rules, the Company has appointed three Independent Non-
executive Directors, represents not less than one-third of the Board, with
one of them has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

The Company has received from the Independent Non-executive
Directors, Mr. Tam King Ching, Kenny and Mr. Zhang Xingyu, an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and the Company considers them to be independent.

Any re-election of an independent non-executive director who has served
the board for more than nine years, his/her further appointment should
be subject to a separate resolution to be approved by shareholders.
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Where an individual is proposed to be elected as an Independent Non-
executive Director at the general meeting, the circular to shareholders
and/or explanatory statement accompanying the notice of the relevant
general meeting will include:

o the process used for identifying the individual and why the Board
believes the individual should be elected and the reasons why it
considers the individual to be independent;

o if the proposed Independent Non-executive Director will be holding
their seventh (or more) listed company directorship, why the Board
believes the individual would still be able to devote sufficient time
to the Board;

o the perspectives, skills and experience that the individual can bring
to the Board; and

o how the individual contributes to diversity of the Board.

Appropriate insurance cover on directors’ and officers’ liabilities has been
in force to protect the Directors and officers of the Group from their risk
exposure arising from the businesses of the Group.

Every newly appointed Director will be given an introduction of
regulatory requirements. Directors are continually updated on the latest
development of the Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory requirements
to ensure compliance and upkeep of good corporate governance
practice. Directors are also encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. The Company Secretary facilitates induction and professional
development of Directors and the Company is responsible for arranging
and funding suitable training for the Directors.
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All Directors have provided to the Company their records of training FIEESERARAREBEEREE-_T =
received during the financial year ended 31 December 2020, a summary ZTF+ A=+ —HIEMBRFEEZHFIN
of which is as follows: B8 2T

Continuous professional development

BESEXRR
Type (Note D Subject (Note2) Notes
Directors = BmEEy AESET Kzt
Xu Liang s B (\Y;
Su Guifeng ERIEEE A I, v 3
B IV
Li Jing F B B L\ 4
Huang Donglin =AM B Y
Liu Dongsheng IR F B 5
You Wenli X B 1, IV 6
Tam King Ching, Kenny E A I, 1l
B IV
Zhang Xingyu ok B B I, IV 7
Fei Jianjiang BT B I, IV 8
Wan Siu Wah, Wilson Ik EE B l, IV 9
Notes: Hat
1. A Attending seminars, conferences, forums, in-house briefings or in-house 1 A HEFSE - G wE - NEE T g
training RIS 3
B. Reading newspapers, journals and updates B. FIiBEHRE - FIYREER
2. . Laws, rules and regulations 2. A JE - SEH R
1l Finance, accounting or taxation I B SR
. Management . i=g=4

IV.  Business relating to the Group V. HEREEE R F R



Notes: (Continued)

3. Mr. Su Guifeng resigned as a Director with effect from 19 March 2021.

4. Ms. Li Jing resigned as a Director with effect from 24 March 2021.

5. Mr. Liu Dongsheng retired as a Director with effect from 21 May 2020.

6. Ms. You Wenli resigned as a Director with effect from 24 March 2021.

7. Mr. Zhang Xingyu appointed as a Director with effect from 20 March 2020.

8. Mr. Fei Jianjiang resigned as a Director with effect from 20 March 2020.

9. Mr. Wan Siu Wah, Wilson passed away on 8 January 2021.

The roles of Chairman and Managing Director are separate and
exercised by different individuals to reinforce their independence and
accountability. During the year, Mr. Xu Liang is the Chairman and
Mr. Su Guifeng serves as the Managing Director of the Company.
The Chairman provides leadership for the Board and ensures that the
Board works effectively and performs its responsibilities. The Managing
Director has overall chief executive responsibility for the Group’s business
development and day-to-day management generally. The division of
responsibilities between the Chairman and the Managing Director is
clearly established and set out in writing.

Mr. Su Guifeng resigned as the Managing Director with effect from
1 January 2021. Upon his resignation, due to the time needed by the
Company to find suitable candidate for the replacement, Mr. Xu Liang
performs both the roles of the Managing Director and the Chairman
of the Board, until the appointment of Mr. Liang Hengyi as the general
manager of the Company on 29 March 2021.
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The responsibilities of the Chairman include, amongst other things:

o taking primary responsibility for ensuring that good corporate
governance practices and procedures are established;

o ensuring that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at
Board meetings, and ensuring that Directors receive, in a timely
manner, adequate information which must be accurate, clear,
complete and reliable;

o encouraging all Directors to make a full and active contribution to
the Board's affairs and taking the lead to ensure that the Board
acts in the best interest of the Company;

o encouraging Directors with different views to voice their concerns,
allowing sufficient time for discussion of issues and ensuring that
Board decisions fairly reflect Board consensus;

o ensuring that appropriate steps are taken to provide effective
communications with shareholders and that their views are
communicated to the Board as a whole; and

o promoting a culture of openness and debate by facilitating the
effective contribution of Non-executive Directors in particular
and ensuring constructive relations between Executive and Non-
executive Directors.

During the year, the Chairman met with the Independent Non-executive
Directors without the presence of the Executive Directors.

The Board has established the following committees to oversee particular
aspects of the Company’s affairs and to assist in the execution of
the Board’s responsibilities. All committees have their own terms of
reference. All resolutions passed by the committees will be reported to
the Board at the next Board meeting.

An Executive Committee of the Board was established in September
2005 with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with its
authorities and duties.
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The Executive Committee has been conferred with the general powers
of the Board (except those matters specifically reserved for the Board) to
manage and oversee the operations of the Group and has been assigned
with the responsibilities to perform the corporate governance duties as
follows:

o to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

o to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

o to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to the Group’s employees
and Directors;

o to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report; and

o to conform to any requirement, direction, regulation that may
from time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained in the
constitution of the Company or imposed by legislation.

The Executive Committee comprises all Executive Directors of the
Company.

During the year, nine physical meetings of the Executive Committee were
held. Amongst those meetings, one meeting was held for the purpose
of performing the corporate governance duties. The attendances of the
members of the Executive Committee at those meetings are as follows:

Committee members ZEERE

Xu Liang (chairman of the committee) %" B(EZEEXRE)
Su Guifeng e

Li Jing =

Notes:

1. Mr. Su Guifeng resigned as a Director with effect from 19 March 2021.

2. Ms. Li Jing resigned as a Director with effect from 24 March 2021.
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The major work in relation to the corporate governance of the Group
performed by the Executive Committee during the year includes, among
other things, the following:

o reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2019.

An Audit Committee of the Board was established with specific written
terms of reference which deal clearly with its authorities and duties. The
terms of reference of the Audit Committee are posted on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company respectively.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include, amongst other
things:

o overseeing the relationship with the Company’s auditor;

o reviewing the interim and annual financial statements of the
Group;

o reviewing the Company’s financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems; and

o reviewing the arrangements that employees of the Company can
use, in confidence, to raise concerns about possible improprieties in
financial reporting, internal control or other matters.

The Audit Committee has explicit authority to investigate any activity
within its terms of reference and the authority to obtain outside legal or
other independent professional advice, at the Company’s expense, to
perform its responsibilities if it considers necessary. It is given access to
and assistance from the employees and reasonable resources to perform
its duties properly.
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The chairman of the Audit Committee is an Independent Non-executive
Director and the Audit Committee comprised all Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company. None of the members of the Audit
Committee are former partners of the auditor of the Company.

During the year, two physical meetings of the Audit Committee were
held and the attendances of the members of the Audit Committee at
those meetings are as follows:

Committee members ZEERE

Tam King Ching, Kenny (chairman of the committee) BIE(ZE&T/%)

Zhang Xingyu oR S
Fei Jianjiang BET
Wan Siu Wah, Wilson B kEE
Notes:

1. Mr. Zhang Xingyu appointed as a Director with effect from 20 March 2020.

2. Mr. Fei Jianjiang resigned as a Director with effect from 20 March 2020.

3. Mr. Wan Siu Wah, Wilson passed away on 8 January 2021.

The major work performed by the Audit Committee during the year
included, amongst other things, the following:

o reviewed the final results of the Group for the financial year ended
31 December 2019;

o reviewed the interim results of the Group for the six months ended
30 June 2020;
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o reviewed the reports on the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group; and

o monitoring, analyzing and reviewing connected transactions
entered into by the Group during the year.

During the year, the Board had no disagreement with the Audit
Committee’s view on the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal
of the external auditor.

A Nomination Committee of the Board was established in September
2005 with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with
its authorities and duties. The terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee are posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company respectively.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include, amongst
other things:

. reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board and
making recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

o identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and selecting or making recommendations to the Board;

o making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors;

o assessing the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors; and

o reviewing the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate; and reviewing
the measurable objectives that have been set for implementing the
Board Diversity Policy, and reviewing the progress on achieving the
objectives.
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Where vacancies exist at the Board, candidates are proposed and
put forward to the Nomination Committee for consideration. The
recommendations of the Nomination Committee will then be tendered
to the Board for approval. In considering the nomination of a new
Director, the Nomination Committee will give adequate consideration to
the Board Diversity Policy and take into account the qualification, ability,
working experience, leadership and professional ethics of the candidates.
In determining the independence of Directors, the Board follows the
requirements set out in the Listing Rules.

The Nomination Committee has explicit authority to seek any necessary
information from the employees within its scope of duties and the
authority to obtain outside independent professional advice, at the
Company’s expense, to perform its responsibilities if it considers
necessary.

The chairman of the Nomination Committee is the Chairman of the
Board and the Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company
constitute the majority of the Nomination Committee.

During the year, three physical meetings of the Nomination Committee
were held and the attendances of the members of the Nomination
Committee at those meetings are as follows:

Committee members ZEBRE

Xu Liang (chairman of the committee) ® 2(ZXEZEE)
Huang Donglin |mEM

Tam King Ching, Kenny R E

Zhang Xingyu ok LB

Fei Jianjiang BT

Wan Siu Wah, Wilson K EE

Notes:

1. Mr. Zhang Xingyu appointed as a Director with effect from 20 March 2020.

2. Mr. Fei Jianjiang resigned as a Director with effect from 20 March 2020.

S Mr. Wan Siu Wah, Wilson passed away on 8 January 2021.
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The major work performed by the Nomination Committee during the
year included, amongst other things, the following:

o assessing the independence of the Independent Non-executive
Directors;

o considering and making recommendations to the Board on the
re-election of Directors at the annual general meeting;

o considering and making recommendations to the Board for
the appointment of Mr. Zhang Xingyu as an Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company, a member of each the Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee; and

o reviewing the structure and composition of the Board with due
regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

A Remuneration Committee of the Board was established in September
2005 with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with
its authorities and duties. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company respectively.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include, amongst
other things:

o making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior
management of the Group;

o reviewing and approving the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Company’s goals and objectives;

o determining, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration
packages of individual Executive Directors and senior management
and making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of Non-executive Directors;
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o reviewing and approving compensation payable to Executive
Directors and senior management and compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct; and

o ensuring that no Director or any of his/her associates is involved in
deciding his/her own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee may consult the Chairman of the Board
and/or the Managing Director of the Company about their remuneration
proposals for other Executive Directors. It has explicit authority to seek
any necessary information from the employees within its scope of duties
and the authority to obtain outside independent professional advice,
at the Company’s expense, to perform its responsibilities if it considers
necessary.

The remuneration policies for the Company as well as the Directors are
market alignment and reward for performance. The Company reviews
the remuneration package annually taking into consideration of the
market practice, competitive market position and individual performance.

The chairman of the Remuneration Committee is an Independent Non-
executive Director and the Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Company constitute the majority of the Remuneration Committee.

During the year, three physical meetings of the Remuneration Committee
were held and the attendances of the members of the Remuneration
Committee at those meetings are as follows:
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Notes:

1. Mr. Zhang Xingyu appointed as a Director with effect from 20 March 2020.

2. Mr. Fei Jianjiang resigned as a Director with effect from 20 March 2020.

3. Mr. Wan Siu Wah, Wilson passed away on 8 January 2021.

The major work performed by the Remuneration Committee during the
year included, amongst other things, the following:

o considering, reviewing and determining the remuneration and the
terms of service agreement/engagement letters of Mr. Su Guifeng,
Ms. Li Jing and Mr. Zhang Xingyu; and

o considering, reviewing and determining the Company Directors’
bonuses for the year 2020 and remuneration for the year 2021.

Details of remuneration paid to Directors and senior management for
the year are set out in notes 36 and 9 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Company Secretary supports the Board by ensuring good
information flow within the Board and that board policy and procedures
are followed. The Company Secretary is also responsible for advising
the Board through the Chairman and/or the Managing Director of the
Company on corporate governance and the implementation of the CG
Code. The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company and has
day-to-day knowledge of the Group’s affairs.

The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman and the Managing
Director. All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary to ensure that board procedures, and all applicable
laws, rules and regulations are followed. The selection, appointment and
dismissal of the Company Secretary are subject to the Board approval.

The Company Secretary has confirmed that she has taken no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training during the year.
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The Board is of the opinion that an appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control system will contribute to the
operational effectiveness and efficiency of the Group and to the
safeguard of the Group’s assets as well as the shareholders’ investment.

The Board of the Group acknowledges its accountability to the risk
management and internal control system and its responsibility to review
the effectiveness of the system. The Board also clarifies that the system
is purported to manage, but not eliminate, the risk of failure to fulfill
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Our risk management and internal control system is embedded within
our business processes so that it functions as an integral part of the
overall operation of the Group. The system comprises a comprehensive
organization structure with assignment of definite accountabilities and
delegation of corresponding authorities to each post. Based on our
organization structure, a reporting system has been developed including
reporting channels from division heads of every principal business unit to
the Executive Committee.

Business plans, the responsibility statement of business objectives, and
budgets are prepared by division heads of every principal business unit
annually. In preparing them, our management identifies and evaluates
any potential risks. Measures will be put in place to ultimately manage,
control, or lessen such risks.

These business plans and budgets are also subject to review and approval
by the Executive Committee. The Executive Committee reviews monthly
management reports on the operational and financial results of every
principal business unit and measures the actual performance of the
Group against the business plans and budgets concerned. In this course,
the Executive Committee also reviews and assesses the effectiveness
of all material controls and ensures the adequacies of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions.
The Executive Committee holds periodical meetings with the senior
management of every principal business unit to address the issues in
such controls, identify areas of improvement and put the appropriate
measures in place.

The internal control systems of the Group are documented and, if any
revision is required, such information will be submitted to the Audit
Committee for evaluation.
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The Audit Committee assists the Board to fulfill its oversight role over the
Group' s risk management and internal control function by reviewing and
evaluating the effectiveness of our overall risk management and internal
control system at least annually.

The Company sets up an Internal Audit Department in February 2006,
and introduces the professional internal auditor to further strengthen
the internal control in 2020, which assists the Board and the Audit
Committee to discharge its duties in risk management and internal
control aspects. The Internal Audit, independent to the operational
departments of the Group, is responsible for conducting regular audits
on the major activities of the Group and carrying out the analysis and
independent appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control system of the Group to cover all
material controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls
as well as risk management, are in place and functioning reasonably and
effectively, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss. The Internal Audit Department
and professional internal auditors report to the Board and the Audit
Committee with its findings and makes recommendations to improve the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group.

The framework of risk management and internal control systems
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Based on the risk-based approach, the Internal Audit Department and
professional internal auditor continuously review and monitor the
sufficiency of the risk control measures of every business unit of the
Group and to examine if relevant measures have been implemented. The
procedures involve assuring of the existence of related risks in the first
place, then assessing the levels to which the potential risks are attributed
based on the following two risk factors, i.e., the possibility of occurrence
and the level of significance of the risk. Carrying out internal and external
communications to provide the required information to the Group,
afterward, audit recommendations will be made and further discussed
with the relevant management.
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In addition, the key business unit of the Group has put in place a risk
control mechanism specializing in risk management and internal control
in respect of project approval and subsequent follow-up works of the
business unit. It will also conduct regular reporting to the responsible
person of the business unit. The Internal Audit Department and
professional internal auditor will review on a regular and irregular basis
the performance of the risk control personnel of the key business unit
and will report to the management of the Group and members of
the Audit Committee any audit issues found, the potential risks and
appropriate audit recommendations in the internal audit reports every
half a year.

At the same time, it is the duty of the Managing Director of the Group to
review whether or not the Group’s overall risk management and internal
control system is under appropriate and effective management, and to
provide a written statement in this regard to the Board during the year-
end audit.

Based on the said written statement as provided by the Managing
Director, the advices provided by the Audit Committee and the audit
recommendations as set forth in the reports issued by the Internal Audit
Department and professional internal auditor, the Board will continue
to oversee management of the Group in supervising the relevant
departments to set up initiatives to handle various kinds of deficiencies
found in risk management and internal control. Regular reviews on
the improvement progress will be conducted by the Internal Audit
Department and professional internal auditor, and the result of which
will be reported to the Audit Committee and the Board.

Finally, the Board considers that it is an ongoing and continuous process
for the Group to review and improve its risk management and internal
control systems in order to ensure that they can deal with the dynamic
and ever changing business environment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board has been, through
the Executive Committee and the Audit Committee with the assistance
from the Internal Audit Department and professional internal auditor,
continuously reviewing the effectiveness of the Group'’s risk management
and internal control systems based on the following considerations:

. the changes, since the last review, in the nature and extent of
significant risks and the Group’s ability to respond to changes in
business and the external environment;

o the scope and quality of management’s ongoing monitoring of
risks and of the internal control systems;

o the extent and frequency of communication of monitoring
results to the Audit Committee and the Board which enables
them to assess control of the Group and the effectiveness of risk
management; and

o the effectiveness of the Group’s processes for financial reporting
and Listing Rules compliance.

During the year, internal audit reports in respect of the risk management
and internal control system of the Group have been submitted by the
Internal Audit Department and professional internal auditor to the Audit
Committee and the Board for review. The Board considered that the risk
management and internal control system of the Group is adequate and
effective. The Group has adopted appropriate audit recommendations to
further improve its risk management and internal control system.
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The Company adopted an inside information disclosure policy (the “Inside
Information Disclosure Policy”) on 21 December 2015 which sets out the
procedures for the handling and dissemination of inside information with
a view to preventing uneven, inadvertent or selective dissemination of
inside information and ensuring shareholders and the public are provided
with full, accurate and timely information about the activities and the
financial condition of the Group. The Inside Information Disclosure Policy
covers the following:

o setting out the processes for identifying, assessing and escalating
potential inside information to the Board,;

o setting out the responsibilities of officers in preserving the
confidentiality of inside information, escalating upwards any
such potential information and cascading down the message and
responsibilities to relevant staff; and

o identifying who are the Company’s authorized spokespersons and
their responsibilities for communications with stakeholders of the
Company.

In addition, the Company has communicated to all relevant staff
regarding the implementation of the Inside Information Disclosure Policy.

The Board considers that the Company'’s existing measures are effective
and appropriate compliance mechanisms to safeguard the Company and
its officers in discharging their disclosure obligations in respect of inside
information.

The Inside Information Disclosure Policy is posted on the website of the
Company.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) of the Listing Rules as a
code of conduct of the Company for Directors’ securities transactions.

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors (except for Mr. Wan Siu
Wah, Wilson), they have complied with the required standard set out in
the Model Code and the Company’s code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions throughout the year ended 31 December 2020.

Employees who are likely to possess inside information in relation to the
Company or its shares are required to prohibit from dealing in shares of
the Company during the black-out period.
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During the year, the remuneration paid/payable to the auditors of the
Company is set out as follows:

Services rendered FriR AR E

Audit services EET RS

Non-audit services: IEEATARTS -
Interim review FR AR
Others H

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing financial
statements of the Group which give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Group on a going concern basis and in presenting the
annual and interim reports and other financial disclosures required under
the Listing Rules, the Directors aim to present a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of the Group's position and prospects.

The statement of the auditor of the Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers,
about its reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report
on pages 104 to 111 of this annual report.

On 22 March 2012, the Board adopted a Shareholders’ Communication
Policy reflecting the current practices of the Company for communication
with its shareholders. Such policy aims at ensuring the shareholders
of the Company are provided with ready, equal and timely access to
balanced and understandable information about the Company, in order
to enable shareholders to exercise their rights in an informed manner,
and to allow shareholders to engage actively with the Company.

To foster effective communications with the shareholders, the Company
provides extensive information in its annual and interim reports and
announcements. All shareholders’ communications are also available on
the Company’s website at www.shougang-grand.com.hk.
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The annual general meeting of the Company provides a useful forum
for shareholders to exchange views with the Board. All Directors will
make an effort to attend. External auditor is also available at the annual
general meeting to address shareholders’ queries. In case of any general
meeting to approve a connected transaction or any other transaction
that is subject to independent shareholders’ approval, members of the
independent Board committee will also make an effort to attend to
address shareholders’ queries.

The auditor of the Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers, attended the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 21 May 2020 (the
“2020 AGM™) during the year. Details of the Directors’ attendances at

the 2020 AGM are as follows:

Directors

Executive Directors

Xu Liang (Chairman)
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r B&EE)

Su Guifeng BRiEER

Li Jing =
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Huang Donglin mAM

Liu Dongsheng IR

You Wenli WS
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Tam King Ching, Kenny 8 1

Zhang Xingyu IR &

Wan Siu Wah, Wilson

B

ARBNBRREAFAERRRIEHAEES
RRBERNERTE - 2RBEFHSRARL
WMEHE  IERBETLERREFEFAS
Bl E R RIER - EERSEBER HHME
M EMAKLBYRRILEZIHHERRAS
bt BYEEZEEXNBENERAEMED
J7 B EBRHOEER

RRABIRZEBENE R KBS BT
BTARAABN -_Z_ZFERA-_+—HB&
THREAERS((ZZE-_ZFREFHFEKX
€) BER_Z_TFEREFFASHLE
FOERINT

Attendance at the

2020 AGM Notes
HE-B-BE

BREAFAE HtaE
v

v 1

v 2
v

(4 3

v 4
v

(4 5

v 6



Notes:

1. Mr. Su Guifeng resigned as a Director with effect from 19 March 2021.

2. Ms. Li Jing resigned as a Director with effect from 24 March 2021.

3. Mr. Liu Dongsheng retired with effect from 21 May 2020.

4. Ms. You Wenli resigned as a Director with effect from 24 March 2021.

5. Mr. Zhang Xingyu appointed as a Director with effect from 20 March 2020.

6. Mr. Wan Siu Wah, Wilson passed away on 8 January 2021.

During the year, all notices of general meetings despatched by the
Company to its shareholders for meetings held were sent for annual
general meeting at least 20 clear business days before the meeting and
at least 10 clear business days for all other general meetings. Separate
resolutions were proposed at general meetings on each substantially
separate issue, including the election of individual Directors, and all
resolutions put to the vote of the general meetings were taken by
way of a poll. At the general meetings, the chairman of the meetings
explained the procedures for conducting a poll and answered questions
from shareholders on voting by poll, if any. The results of the poll were
published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company
respectively.
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Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company can make a requisition to convene a special general
meeting pursuant to Clause 74 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended). The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting,
and must be signed by the shareholder(s) concerned and deposited at
the registered office of the Company.

Shareholder(s) representing not less than one-twentieth (5%) of the
total voting rights of all the shareholders of the Company or of not
less than 100 shareholders of the Company may by requisition, at their
own expense unless the Company otherwise resolves, to put forward
proposals at general meetings of the Company pursuant to Clauses 79
and 80 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended). A written
notice to that effect signed by the shareholder(s) concerned together
with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the expenses in giving effect
thereto must be deposited at the registered office of the Company not
less than six weeks before the meeting for requisition(s) requiring notice
of a resolution, or not less than one week before the meeting for any
other requisition(s).

Specific enquiries or suggestions by shareholders can be sent in writing
to the Board or the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal office
in Hong Kong or by email to the Company. In addition, shareholders can
contact Tricor Tengis Limited, the Hong Kong branch share registrar and
transfer office of the Company, if they have any enquiries about their
shareholdings and entitlement to dividend. Relevant contact details are
set out on page 3 of this annual report.
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On 21 December 2018, the Company adopted a Dividend Policy. Such
policy aims at providing stable and sustainable returns to shareholders
through paying stable dividends.

Under the Dividend Policy, the Company intends to provide Shareholders
with interim or final dividends, and to declare special dividends from time
to time. The Company intends to pay out an annual dividend payment
at a payout ratio of not less than 35% of the Group’s consolidated net
profit after tax for the then financial year after taking into consideration
of, inter alia, the following factors:

the Group’s

o current & future operations;
° earnings;

° financial position;

o cash requirements, cash expenditure & availabilities;

° investment requirements;
o future development prospects; and
o other factors as it may deem relevant at such time.

The recommendation of the payment of dividend is subject to the
absolute discretion of the Board, and any declaration of final dividend for
the year will be subject to the approval of our Shareholders.

Whilst the Dividend Policy reflects the Board’s current views on the
financial and cash flow position of the Group, such Dividend Policy will
continue to be reviewed from time to time and it is subject to change.
The Board will consider the dividends, if declared, will be paid in any
particular amount for any given period. The payment of dividend is also
subject to any restrictions under the Laws of Hong Kong, the Laws of
Bermuda, and the Company’s Bye-laws.

There is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents during
the year.

RZE—NF+_A=+—8 ' KAREH
EEHEK ZHREEBRBAINETHRE
BREREETRAFHENDR -

IR IR B - A A 7R A IR AR A b B
RERE - WAREIRIFAKRE o A F#
R (L BHE) A TR E E R DR AR E
RO B B I B R ER A R FI35% 2
MR RS -

AEE

o EBRRAREERR

. B

o BAHAR

. RDEREF REXHERDESF
W2

o BABE
. RREEANR R
. ERAREEIEE-

SHEENEZCRATETENBYBB
BMmE  MEMNFENRBREEMAERFK
RAERTAIER -

BEBRRREZTGHAREM K RRESR
MOE IR B L - AR EERIDE T
ma o YRS EMES - MESRKRE
EFeMERECABER AUNEABSES
MY - ARAREDIRNEBTRZERZX
7 BRBPERRARTAAREMBRR

ARANBEBER XN FRLEZLS -



This is the annual Environmental, Social and Governance ("ESG")
report ("ESG Report”) published by Shougang Concord Grand (Group)
Limited and its subsidiaries (hereinafter “the Group”, “We", “our”
and “us”), with an aim to communicate with the stakeholders of the
Group regarding its sustainability strategies, management approaches
and performances, but also strengthen their understanding towards
the ongoing activities in sustainable development of the societies
and environment as a whole. The ESG Report summarizes the related
management approaches and performance on ESG made by the
Group on the topics of corporate social responsibility and sustainable
development.

Adhering to the business philosophy of “Integrity, Pragmatism, Unity
and Innovation”, the Group strives to develop its business objectives and
create value for shareholders/investors, as well as actively shouldering its
environmental and social responsibilities in advocating the sustainable
development and protecting the ecological environment by fully utilizing
resources and minimizing the emission of pollutants during operation
across Hong Kong and Mainland China. The Group has to strike the
balance between each operational measure and the environment by
continuously optimizing operational management, business strategies,
environmental protection, talent management and social investments
so as to contribute towards the sustainable development of the globe,
human beings and our business.

The scope of the ESG Report mainly covers the business of financial
services, property investment and management, asset management,
and supply chain management of the Group with our relevant strategic
approach to sustainability and performance within the environmental and
social aspects during the period from 1 January 2020 to 31 December
2020 (the “Reporting Period” or “2020").
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The ESG Report has been prepared in accordance with the second version
of Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guideline as set out
in the Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules issued by the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“HKEX"), as well as adhering to the reporting
principles of materiality, quantitative, consistency and balance.

The ESG Report has complied with the “comply or explain” provisions
set out in the ESG Reporting Guide. Except for the provisions that the
Group considers are inapplicable to our business operations or provide
partial disclosure, explanations are illustrated in the corresponding
section. A summary of the environmental key performance indicators and
performance data are listed in the section of “Summary of Environmental
Data and Performance”.

The Group highly values your feedbacks on this ESG Report and our
performance in pursuing sustainable development. You are welcome
to contact us and provide your suggestions regarding the refinement
of our policies and management approaches on ESG via email
at csr@shougang-grand.com.hk.

The Groups realizes that the participation of stakeholders can facilitate
the long-term development of the Group and determines the directions
of our sustainable business development. The Group maintains close
and constructive dialogues with our key stakeholders, including
government/regulatory bodies, shareholders/investors, employees,
clients, suppliers and other stakeholders through different forms of
communication channels (e.g. meetings, email, phone call, conference
and workshops, etc.) in order to understand their perspectives of the
corporate management and development and formulate corresponding
action plans and measures to better respond their needs, interests and
expectations.

The Group evaluates and determines our environmental, social and
governance risks and ensures that relevant risk management and internal
control systems are operating properly and effectively. The table below
is illustrated our management responses to various expectations and
requests by our key stakeholders:
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Stakeholders
B0E

Shareholders/
Investors

R REE

Employees
8T

Clients
®F

Suppliers
HEn

Expectations and requests

HZEER

Information transparency

ERERE

Business strategies and performance

¥ REFNEE

Sustainable investment returns and business
development

AIRERE DR R EBER

Corporate governance system
PEERHE

Career development

R

Compensation and welfare

S =nikEr

Labor rights

e

Occupational health and safety

BEBERLE

Integrity

E2AE

Corporate reputation
TrERER

High quality services
BER%

Privacy protection

TR LR

Integrity

EAE

Long-term cooperation with the Group
HASENRBAE

Corporate reputation

TrEEE

High quality services for the Group
RAEBIRHEBE RS

Management response
EEE R E

o Ensure transparency and efficient
communications through periodic
publications on websites of HKEX and the
Group
FBRN BB R 5P AN K B A E B
BERS WMREAELERER

o Set up comprehensive strategic plan for
achieving business goals and objectives
HIEEHEMERTE - UWEBHREKERF

J Management possesses relevant experience
and professional knowledge to ensure
business sustainability
EIE IE A A MR A B T B 3 AN DA TR 2 75
FORIEST ks

o Provide equal opportunities in promotion,
training and career development
A& BIIMBEERTERER TSRS
o Establish fair, reasonable and competitive
remuneration scheme
BYAT - ABENMARFHINHHER
o Set up contractual obligations to protect
labor rights
FlIESNEFARES T

o Ensure contractual obligations are honored
BRETAENEE

o Provide high quality services continuously to
maintain client satisfaction
RERHEARBUREER

o Provide various value-added services
RESERERS

° Provide regular training sessions to our
employees to enhance their capability in
quality service provision and upholding the
business integrity
B TREEIIRE - DIRA R S KRR
FREEHRE

o Ensure contractual obligations are honored
BRETEHNEE

o Maintain strong and long-term relationship
FEFREN RS ERE

o Establish policies and procedures in supply
chain management
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During the Reporting Period, the Group conducted a materiality
assessment to determine the ESG topics that matter most to the business
operation and stakeholders’ interests. The Group has identified a number
of environmental, social and operational related topics by taking into
account the current business operation and development, industry
market trends and local regulatory requirements, as well as referencing to
the HKEX ESG Reporting Guide and the materiality result from previous
year. The Group evaluated their degree of materiality to stakeholders
and the Group respectively through internal management discussion.
This assessment has helped to ensure that the business development
initiatives of the Group can fulfil the expectations and requirements of
our stakeholders. The result of the materiality assessment is presented in
the following materiality matrix:

RBEHRAN  NEECETE2MUGE - K
REHEKBLEBNENEZRASEENESG
EE e ARECEBERBEAMNEHEZR
BR TEDTHSEEREMEERTE - AR
BDEBEBMERXHACESGHREIRED) REFH
EENER BRETRE HEREZR
EE AEBRENMEERENW © 25
AEEEFNERAEENEZNRE - &
AEERERASENEGRREBREEN
mERNENREERENR - BREF NG
RNATEZMHEMF 2T

Materiality Matrix

ERMER

@ Anti-discrimination ¢ Staff training and

@ Customer satisfaction

measures promotion opportunity EEMEE
ISR BITEEE =
- R Gl Frie @ Occupational health and
B2 E @ Suppliers ¢ Staff compensation workplace safety
T management and welfare BERRETESMEZE
HEnERE 8 T Rz 5 . .
¢ Operational compliance
EEAR
4
@
% ¢ Community ¢ Greenhouse gas ¢ Talent management
< gl contribution emissions AT ER
< Fan—y=y ) = RS . .
S i g @ Human rights protection
S E I g @ Preventive measures # Use of resources IREE A
s 9 on child and forced EEY
g E = labor
ofp BHETRBHST
b L e
é‘ OB R
- ¢ Exhaust air emissions 4 Water resources utilization 4 Anti-corruption
RESRBER KEJREEA measures
Py
¢ Sewage discharge 4 Energy conservation L B
2w BERBERR measures @ Client privacy protective
3 =~ ; ﬁﬁ%@ﬁlé;ﬁ%}:ﬁ% measures
& Generation o S = ) R
hazardous wastes * E—]enezjation of rt10n— REEF LRI
HEREEYEE azardous wastes
BEEEVES
Low Medium High
& H =

Importance to the Group

HEKENWEEN



The Group is dedicated to offering exceptional services to our clients
and satisfying their needs and expectations, with the spirit of pursuing
excellence and continuous improvement. The Group has formulated
corresponding management policies and procedures in each business
segments, including but not limited to, service quality management,
project control and monitoring mechanism, customer profile
management, internal risk management control, customer services and
complaint handling, contingency response, in order to optimize the
working efficiency of our business processes, minimize the corporate risk
levels, fulfil the personalized needs of our clients and comply with the
relevant laws and regulations (e.g. Product Quality Law of the PRC, Law
of the PRC on the Protection of Consumer Rights, Company Law of the
PRC, Contract Law of the PRC and Interests and the Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance (Cap. 486) in Hong Kong). Our PRC subsidiary in the business
of supply chain management has implemented a quality management
system accredited with the international standard of I1SO 9001:2015, to
systematically manage the quality issues on the business operation and
continuously improve our services.

The Group welcomes our clients to provide their feedbacks on our
services as this serves as the basis to seek opportunity to maintain
excellent service standard. If our clients have any issues on services
rendered or that a complaint is made, the Group pledges to respond
on the same day and handle cases with prompt follow-up actions to
address the issues. Our responsible departments will conduct a thorough
evaluation on the complaint issues and put in place measures to prevent
the recurrence of similar incidents.

With the increasing public awareness of cybersecurity and data privacy,
the Group attaches great attention on data confidentiality and complies
with relevant laws and regulations regarding data privacy protection
(e.g. the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486) in Hong Kong).
All employees must follow the confidentiality obligations as stated in
the employment contract, confidentiality agreement or “Non-Disclosure,
Intellectual Property Rights and Non-Competition Agreement” and
strictly prohibits to disclose, divulge and use any corporate confidential
and sensitive information, including but not limited to the Group’s
transactions, commercial secrets or other confidential information of our
clients to unauthorized third parties, unless prior approval is obtained.
All confidential information is only accessed by responsible departments
and/or designated personnel on “need-to-know” basis and securely kept
by authorized personnel only. Employees who violate the regulations may
result in disciplinary actions and legal liability.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group did not identify any breaches
of relevant laws and regulations regarding service responsibilities and
customer privacy matter with a significant impact on the Group.

The Group believes that the virtues of fairness, honesty and integrity are
the key to our business success and long-term development. The Group
enacts a zero-tolerance approach on any kind of corruption, bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering and resolutely fights against
corruption, contributing to the construction of an honest and upright
society.

Our employees in the PRC are required to sign the “Anti Commercial
Bribery Agreement” or “Non-Disclosure, Intellectual Property Rights
and Non-Competition Agreement” with the subsidiary based on the
business nature for preventing commercial briberies, safeguarding our
legitimate rights and interests and maintaining good business disciplines.
As stipulated in employee handbook and employee contract, the Group
strictly prohibits employees from accepting unnecessary hospitality such
as gifts, accommodation or provision of food, to ensure that business
decisions are kept professional and unbiased. In event of any potential
or actual conflict of interest is encountered, employees must promptly
complete the written declaration of conflict of interest and disclose any
such relationship or interest that could possibly involve an actual or
potential conflict of interest and report to human resource department
for management review for preventing undue impacts on the Group.

The Group has also established a whistleblowing management policy
with clear reporting channels such as telephone, email and letter, for
our employees and stakeholders to report information about any kind
of actual or suspected misconduct and malpractice. Upon receipt of
such reporting cases, the Group will appoint designated personnel or
form a specialized committee to investigate on and validate the reported
incident and take remedial actions timely when necessary. The Group
will maintain the anonymity of the whistle-blower to prevent any unfair
treatment and reprisal. In addition, the Group also requires all our
business partners uphold the high level of business ethics and no bribes
shall be offered to our employees under any form.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group has complied with the Criminal
Law of the PRC, Anti-Money Laundering Law of the PRC, Anti-Unfair
Competition Law of the PRC, and the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance
(Cap. 201) in Hong Kong, and did not identify any litigation cases of
corruption brought against the Group and our employees.

The Group attaches great emphasis on the long-term and stable strategic
cooperation and partnerships with good-quality intermediaries and
suppliers, thereby developing together on the basis of equality and
mutual benefit. To achieve this objective, our PRC subsidiaries have
outlined specific requirements for selection, evaluation and management
of suppliers and intermediaries through establishing a vetting
committee. The Group assesses the qualification and competency of our
intermediaries, in terms of sound accreditation, internal management
system (e.g. quality management system), service quality, financial
stability and pricing, trustworthy legal compliance, after-sale services
and appropriate professional skills. The Group also selects suppliers and
intermediaries by price comparison, bidding invitation or open tender in
order to control the procurement risks and corporate legitimate rights,
while adhering to the principle of “justice, fairness, openness, and
selection of merits” and complying with the laws and regulations such as
the Tender and Bidding Law of the PRC.

The Group only works with suppliers and intermediaries with similar
ethical values and standards. In event of the intermediaries are found to
breach our policies or contractual requirements, the Group will terminate
the cooperation until they have taken corrective actions to rectify such
situation(s). This is to ensure that all our intermediaries are competitive
and capable of offering high quality services and satisfy our customer
needs and expectations.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has engaged 72 suppliers,
including 48 from Mainland China and 24 from Hong Kong.
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The Group recognizes that our people is the core pillar to sustain our
long-term business development and growth. Thus, the Group devotes
to create an inclusive, equal, harmonious and safe workplace to our
employees, continue to develop our people through career advancement
opportunities, staff engagement and competitive compensation and
welfare, with an aim to attract and retain competent talents as well as
building up good relationship and mutual respect with employees.

The Group strictly complies with the national and local labor laws and
regulations (e.g. The Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57) in Hong Kong,
the “Labor Law of the PRC”, the “Labor Contract Law of the PRC",
the “Social Insurance Law of the PRC” and the “Provision of Minimum
Wages” regulation etc.). We also offer competitive remuneration
package and welfare composition to our employees and they are entitled
to annual leaves, sick leaves, marriage leaves, funeral leaves, maternity
leaves etc., depending on their job positions. The Group participates
in the Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) scheme for employees in
Hong Kong and the “Five Insurances and Housing Provident Fund” for
our employees in the Mainland. The Group implements standard work
hour system and while employees may work on irregular shifts and/or
integrated working hours depending on their post nature, their working
hours are in line with the local laws and regulations. In case any overtime
work is required due to urgent cases and actual business needs, overtime
compensation or compensation leaves will be granted to employees
pursuant to the relevant labor laws and regulations. The Group handles
dismissal and compensation in accordance with the national laws and
regulations.

The Group regularly reviews the remuneration package of all staffing
grades with reference to the current prevail market standard. The salary
levels are reviewed and adjusted once per year according to attendance
records, staff performance, years of services, general market conditions
and other relevant factors. As outlined in our employee handbook, the
Group has implemented an open and fair staff performance appraisal
process, with quantifiable performance indicators and integrated
evaluation index to impartially evaluate our employees’ performance.
Employees with outstanding performance will be awarded with
discretionary bonus, promotion, job enrichment or enlargement
opportunities to recognize their hard work and contribution to the
Group. This practice also enables us to better understand and identify
the training needs of our employees for their job requirements in order
to formulate suitable and well-rounded staff training and development
plans.
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The Group has established staff recognition award programs and special
caring programs, such as service awards, wedding gifts and childbirth
gifts. The Group provides proof of service and offers souvenir for the
employees who have been working with us for 10 years in recognition
of their long-serving and devotion. Our special caring programs, such as
when employees get married or give birth gifts are presented to female
staff and/or the spouse of male staff, are launched to share joy with
our employees together. Through these programs, the Group strives to
form a family-like corporate culture and expresses our sincere care and
thankfulness to our employees.

The Group is an equal opportunity employer and upholds the human
rights and privacy of our employees. The Group has formulated non-
discriminating policies for employee recruitment. Suitable candidates are
selected and recruited solely taking into account objective criteria such as
their individual work experience, interview performance, qualifications,
merits, ability, morality and job requirements, regardless of their age, sex,
sexual orientation, race, disability, marital status, pregnancy, religion or
political affiliation. The Group also provides impartial opportunities to all
employees regarding their benefits, promotion, performance appraisal,
training and career development and works closely together with the aim
of achieving a win-win situation.
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As of 31 December 2020, the Group has 52 employees, in which 50 full-
time employees and 2 part-time employees. The breakdown of the total
workforce by gender, age group, employment type and geographical
region is illustrated in the table below:

Total wst

By gender gl IR
Male S
Female g

By age group RERAR 8D
Below 30 305 A T
30-50 30E508%
Over 50 50B% A £
By geographical region RitEE 5
Hong Kong e
Mainland China Hh B AT

The Group has established various communication channels, such as
our webpage, emails, and face-to-face meetings, for soliciting our
employees’ feedbacks and suggestions on corporate management,
operations and difficulties encountered in their job duties. The Group will
also carefully consider feedbacks received when making management
decisions and make proper response to address the issues concerned,
to strengthen their sense of belonging, providing a collaborative work
environment between our employees and management. At the same
time, our employees can make use of these channels for reporting to our
management should there be any infringement on their personal rights.

BHE-Z-ZF+=-A=+—H8B 4A%£EF
522 BT BIES0ORERE I R2EZFEBE
T o TRIREW.R - Fic#85] - BIEER
KB H B TASRRAM -

2020
—ECEH
Employee
Number of turnover
employees rate (%)

ETAH BIRKLE(%)

52 50
26 50
26 50
11 73
37 49
4 0
15 47
37 51
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The Group treasures and respects the human rights. The Group prohibits
any form of unethical employment practices, including the use of child
labor and forced labor. Policies and procedures have been established
in order to comply with the local labor laws and regulations. The Group
conducts background checks for applicants and new hirers during the
recruitment process, prospective employees might be required to display
relevant identity documents, such as work visa, permit or other personal
information to ensure they meet the legal working age. All employees
signed the employee/labor contract with the subsidiaries consensually
and obliged to follow the employment terms outlined in the contract.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not identify any breaches of
the local labor laws and regulations.

Workplace safety is the priority of the Group. Our business operations
are mainly housed in office setting, thus the risk level of occupational
health and safety posed to our employees are lower compared with other
manufacturing and construction industries. Nevertheless, the Group has
implemented sound safety management approaches to safeguard the
health and work safety of our employees, including various preventive
measures on illnesses and injuries.

Besides, the Group has prepared a first aid kit with over-the-counter
medicines in each subsidiary and placed in our human resources and
administration department for use in minor injury treatment. In case
any employee experiences physical discomfort or needs first aid, our
colleagues are encouraged to take care of each other and provide
necessary assistance until the ambulance arrives. The Group also
emphasizes the importance of fire safety in the office with fire evacuation
routes being prominently displayed on all notice boards. Employees are
also encouraged to participate in the regular fire drills organized by the
property management companies to familiarize with the evacuation
routes and enhance their awareness in real emergencies.
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In addition, the Group advocates the lifestyle of work-life balance. Our
PRC subsidiaries in Beijing arranges regular badminton activities, offers
gymnasium facilities for our employee, encourages our employees to
pursue a healthy lifestyle and have regular exercises during their spare
time, to be more energetic at work and enhance the overall work
productivity and efficiency.

In response to the global outbreak of coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic
in 2020, the Group strictly follows the government policies, provincial
regulations and guidelines as well as the health advice on the prevention
of COVID-19 infection. The Group has established a designated workface
in charge of the overall epidemic control work in each subsidiary.
The Group has taken the following key precautionary measures in
our subsidiaries to minimize the risk of transmission and spreading of
COVID-19, as highlighted in below:

o Require the persons who have been in Hubei province or during
30 days before to undergo compulsory quarantine at home for 14
days;

o Keep environment clean and regularly disinfect frequently touched
surfaces such as door handles, furniture and commonly shared
items;

o Require employees undergo a daily body temperature to ensure
they are fit to work and maintain good personal hygiene;

o Require our employees to stay home when they feel unwell and/or
are showing symptoms of COVID-19, seek medical attention and
report to relevant department for record,;

o Purchase and maintain adequate epidemic prevention materials in
our operations for cleaning and disinfection;

o Open windows for more than 30 minutes a day in office area to
keep offices well-ventilated;

o Circulate/Attach the health advice and updated news regarding
COVID-19 pandemic through emails and notice board to remind
employees on hand hygiene, cough etiquette and COVID-19
infection prevention;

o Remind employees to avoid going to crowded places;
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o Wear surgical mask at office and when physical distancing is not
possibly maintained;

o Place a special garbage bins for mask disposal to prevent the virus
transmission;

o Keep appropriate social distancing when having meals and
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meetings.
Occupational Health and Safety 2020
BERERZZ —EoEE
Number of work-related fatalities in the past 3 years BE=F(RREHREEIE
(including the reporting period) FERE T A 0
Lost days due to work injury THEEBRENTIERE 0

During the Reporting Period, the Group has complied with the
relevant occupational health and safety laws and regulations (e.g. the
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Cap.509) in Hong Kong
and Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Treatment of Occupational
Diseases) in Hong Kong and Mainland China and did not identify any
non-compliance and litigation cases relating to health and safety.

The Group strives to nurture employees’ potential and map their career
plan and development, with an objective to fulfil long-term business
development strategies, meet evolving needs in the industries and
increase our competitiveness edge.

The Group has implemented comprehensive training programs and
offered training opportunities to all employees in different position
grades to build up an excellent, professional and responsible corporate
team. This can further enhance the expertise and technical skills of our
employees and meanwhile equip them with the latest advancements in
the industry, inspiring their career development and planning. The Group
also arranges orientation training to the newcomers in each subsidiary
in order to give them better understanding about our corporate culture,
business philosophy, development history, management practices,
business scope, employee rights and obligations, job functions, employee
code of conduct and our talent development plan. This ensures that they
can swiftly adapt and integrate into our work environment.
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In addition, the Group also provides various on-the-job trainings such
as internal integrated or departmental trainings and external trainings.
For internal training, the training sessions, covering the topics of new
or updated management systems and regulations, new management
policies and relevant professional knowledge, are organized by
relevant respective departments or through the human resources and
administration department. All the training sessions are delivered via
flexible and/or practical group training formats.

For external training, the Group invites various professionals to hold
expert seminars based on our topical needs, as well as offering
opportunities to our employees to participate in the conference and
seminars organized by industry institutions. During the Reporting Period,
relevant trainings such as 6S corporate management workshops and
seminars on the financing of automobile industry, digital fintech product,
supply chain asset management and financing have been held to equip
our employees management skills and share the updated news on the
market of the industry. A certain portion of training sessions were held
virtually to mitigate the risk of the COVID-19 pandemic.

The Group maintains proper training assessment after the completion of
training session and collects the attendants’ feedback on the arranged
training in order to review the training outcomes and effectiveness and
facilitate us to further optimize our training arrangement continually.

Total
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Adhering to our management philosophy, the Group strives to advocate
sustainable development and shoulders our responsible stewardship to
the environment. Through the implementation of various management
approaches, the Group aims to join hands with our employees in
alleviating climate change and minimizing the environmental impacts
caused by our living habits and our business operations to reduce the
environmental footprints. The Group wishes our employees can actively
change their own habits as a way of sending environmental protection
messages across to their families, friends and business partners, thereby
contributing our efforts to protect the environment.

The Group is mainly engaged in the business of finance services, property
investment and management and asset management services and supply
chain management and our operations are within an office setting.
Hence, the greenhouse gas generated from our operations is limited. Air
emissions of our company mainly come from mobile fuel combustion
in our owned company motor vehicles. The Group encourages our
employees to take public transport and better arranges commute routes,
in order to avoid unnecessary exhaust air emission and fuel consumption.
Our waste management mainly involves domestic wastes and collection
of wastepaper for recycling. Waste recycling bins are placed nearby our
photocopiers, employee workstations and pantry for collecting recyclable
wastes such as paper, metal and plastic. During our daily operation, the
Group generates limited amount of hazardous waste such as toners and
cartridges and all such waste is collected by service provider for further
treatment.

The greenhouse gas produced in our business activities mainly comes
from the electricity use in the office, fuel consumption by our own motor
vehicles and business travels by employees for work assignments. The
Group also encourages our employees in Mainland China to voluntarily
pick any rest day or one day during festive holidays to ride on public
transport or bicycle as substitution, thereby reducing greenhouse gas
emissions. Besides, the Group also encourages our employees to adopt
teleconferencing for meetings to reduce the frequency of business trips
by flight.
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The Group is fully aware of its responsibilities in environmental protection
and is constantly in search for every opportunity on resource conservation
and waste reduction. Various green office management practices have
been taken to promote a green corporate culture and build conservation
habits among our employees.

The Group emphasizes electricity conservation by promoting the use of
energy-efficient luminaires and adopting energy saving practices. The
Group had adopted the following key electricity saving measures:

o Maintain indoor temperature at an energy-efficient level 24—
26T for comfort;

J Use automated electricity management system;

o Encourage employees to switch off office appliances and devices,
such as air conditioners, computers, personal electronic devices and
common office equipment after work or when not in use;

o Purchase office equipment and electrical appliances with higher
energy efficiency (such as those with Grade 1 energy label or with
China Energy Label) to reduce electricity use;

o Install energy efficient lights, such as LED lights in our offices; and
o Attach “Green Reminder” and energy saving signs nearby office

equipment, light switches and main entrance to further enhance
employees’ environmental awareness.
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“Green Reminder” and energy saving signs are attached nearby light switches and office main entrance
R R AR B [RR IR TR R ET IR

During the Reporting Period, the Group consumed 74.89 Megawatt-
hour (“MWh") of electricity, decreased by 8.3% compared to the data of
2019. The Group will continue to monitor the implementation of various
energy conservation measures and try our best to reduce electricity
consumption. Regarding the level of gasoline consumption, the Group
has continued to reduce the use of company vehicles and hence it led to
a drop from approximately 11,099 liters (“L") in 2019 to 8,968.22 liters
in 2020.

With reference to the guidelines of Greenhouse Gas Protocol after
combining with regional emission factors, our greenhouse gas emission
level has been calculated from the above data. During the Reporting
Period, the Group has generated 117.36 tonnes of CO; equivalent
(“tCO,e") greenhouse gas emissions, with the intensity of CO, equivalent
was 2.26 tonnes per employee. The intensity figure has decreased by
approximately 21.2% when compared to that of last year. The reduction
of carbon emission is partially resulted from the travel restriction due to
the outbreak of COVID-19.
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With respect to water conservation, the Group encourages our
employees to treasure the finite and valuable water resources and reduce
wastage through practicing water conservation habits in everyday life.
The Group enhances our employees’ responsibility and self-awareness in
this aspect, for example by posting the water saving signs in pantry and
washrooms to reminds employees to reduce wasting water. Meanwhile,
the inspection and maintenance of utility facilities are carried out
regularly to prevent water leakage. During the Reporting Period, the
Group has consumed 272.67 cubic meter (“m3") of water.

The Group strives to widely apply digitalized technology and promote
paperless operation in our offices to reduce paper consumption. The
Group encourages our employees to adopt the principle of “Think before
you print” to carefully select documents for printing, and encourages
practices such as to circulate documents using electronic formats, making
photocopy and/or print on both sides, reusing single side used papers for
printing or drafting and collect double-sided used papers for recycling.
During the Reporting Period, the Group has consumed approximately 0.82
tons of paper, a decrease of approximately 35.9% compared to that of
the previous year.

Though the influence of our business operations to the environment and
natural resources is limited, the Group strives to enhance environmental
awareness among our employees and business partners, in particular to
the global issue of climate change, in order to build up powerful cohesive
forces with their families and friends by changing their behaviors in green
living and support and contribute to environmental protection.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has complied with the relevant
environmental laws and regulations (e.g., The Environmental Protection
Law of the PRC, Motor Vehicle Idling (Fixed Penalty) Ordinance (Cap. 611)
of Hong Kong) in Hong Kong and Mainland China and did not identify
any confirmed violation or non-compliance relating to environmental
protection with a significant impact on the Group.

FEEHAKAE AEEZBHEIREER
NEBEEWKER TBEBEHEEEPEK
HHBKBEBARDRE - AEEMBE T
FRHFEMNEEMERER  WERKER
EFMRBE Y AKIEERIRES THAR
BRAK - BF  BRMEHY QAR BEETR
BERHEEAHIERK RBEER - AEE
BIKCEIEE A272.673L 5 K °

REBRNER R EEZ A S BT &
TEMCESZ  URLAK - AEEEEE
TEMTHRIEBEIMRE - BIEREHME
BITEI X - WHEFASTREEEAE
B - EEEN R, HITEH  BREMAE
EFTEN A 4R aR LA LT ED sl SO B B DA IR M £k
EMABNAREY - RRERR  NEH
B4R E490.821F - B AF R 4935.9% ©

BERMANEHEEHRBELARERNF
EBER EAKEENRESEIMEBEH
MREREM  LERERMRMEELCT @ -
BBREEFAMRARES LR EOTT
RRBIBARNERE  IFRRLMEE

RBEHA  AEECETEERTEARM
MMERRIARES - (P EARLMER
BRE&EE) REBEPFENECIESIEEHE
(EREET RO RPI) - B I 8 3 30 (A B IR R AR
AYHARBAEAZENCHRBERIE
B



The Group is dedicated to fostering the healthy and sustainable
development of the financial leasing industry. One of our PRC
subsidiaries, South China International Leasing Co., Ltd. has been
serving as the Vice President Unit of the Guangdong Financial Leasing
Association (the “GDFLA") in 2020, in supporting the establishment
of the provincial standardized financial leasing industry system and the
enhancement of the industry self-disciplinary system, thereby improving
the reputation and social influence of the industry. During the Reporting
Period, South China International Leasing Co., Ltd. actively cooperated
with GDFLA and Shenzhen Financial Leasing Association on the
industry disciplinary management and supervision work. South China
International Leasing Co., Ltd. has taken part in the drafting the Code of
financial leasing industry management, implementation and supervision
to share our viewpoints and perspectives of the regulatory measures in
term of industry stability, systemic risks reduction, competitive, efficient
and orderly industry market in financial leasing, so as to facilitate the
healthy and standardized industry development as well as minimizing the
misconduct in the industry.
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In addition, to fulfill our corporate social responsibility, the Group has
partaken in various charitable activities such as blood donations and
charity funds support during the Reporting Period in contributing to the
community.
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Greenhouse gas emissions
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Notes:

The Group is principally engaged in the business of financial services,
property investment and management, asset management, and supply chain
management. As we are not engaged in manufacturing industry, thus we did not
generate any hazardous waste and use any packaging materials in our business
segments. The non-hazardous waste produced in each business segment is
mainly collected and treated by the building management company and hence
we did not quantify the waste data for disclosure. The number of employees is
52 as of 31 December 2020.

Scope 1 emission covers the direct greenhouse gas emissions generated by
the combustion of fuels (gasoline) for vehicles controlled by the Group. The
calculation is based on the emission factors from “How to prepare an ESG
Report? Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs” published by
HKEX.

Scope 2 emission covers the purchased electricity in our offices of the
subsidiaries. The calculation is based on the emission factors from 2019 Hong
Kong Electric sustainability report, 2017 Emission Factors for purchased electricity
within Mainland China issued by Ministry of Ecology and Environment of the
PRC.

Scope 3 emission covers the business trip of employees through flights only.

The figure of 2018 and 2019 have been restated due to the standardization of
reporting units and the alignment with statistical method adopted in 2020.

The conversion factors from volumetric units of gasoline to energy units are with
reference to Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs.

The figure of 2018 and 2019 have been restated due to the standardization of
reporting units and the alignment with statistical method adopted in 2020.
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ESG Reporting Guide

ESG¥R &1 5l

Al

KPIA1.1
RABAARUEIRAT

KPI A1.2
R A RUIEIZAT .2

KPI A1.3
RASR A RUIEIZAT 3

KPI A1.4
FABIANUEIRA1 4

KPI A1.5
RS AA RUEIZAT S

KPI A1.6
FABAUIEIRAT .6

General Disclosure Information on:

a)  the policies; and

b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to air and greenhouse
gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
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EEEN:

a) BEK: K

by EBFHBITABERTEMNRBEEE MR ERO—RE
B -

The types of emissions and respective emission data.
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Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, where appropriate,
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
BERBEHENE U E) M(ER) BRE(MMUNESESEN - B8
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Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate,
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
FEXEEEEYEE Uz E) R(WWER) BE(WMAEES B
BIEXMETE) -

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes and, where appropriate,

intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
%?iﬂ%V%%ﬁiuwﬁ#)&@uFWYT@WA
BEFRETE

EEEM

Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results achieved.
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Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled,
reduction initiatives and results achieved.
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Section/
Explanation
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Protection — Emission
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Summary of
Environmental
Performance Data
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Summary of
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Performance Data
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Summary of
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A2

A2.1

A2.2

A2.3

A2.4

A2.5

A3

General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including
energy, water and other raw materials.
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Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas
or oil) in total (kWh in ‘000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).
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Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).
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Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results achieved.
e gE IR AR ET I R ATIE AR o

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for
purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results achieved.
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Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, if
applicable, with reference to per unit produced.
X @PTABEMHNEE AHE) R(ER) BEEEMGE -

General Disclosure Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impact
on the environment and natural resources.
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Section/
Explanation
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Summary of
Environmental
Performance Data
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Summary of
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Performance Data
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A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment Environmental
and natural resources and the actions taken to manage them. Protection — The
HMEBEHHRRELRARERNEAZERDRIRNEE BT EH | Environment and
178 - Nature Resources
RERE -RENM
RAEIR
B1 General Disclosure Information on: Employment and
a)  the policies; and Labour Practices
b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a — Employment
significant impact on the issuer relating to compensation and Practices
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods, BN TER -
equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits = {EfE & 15
and welfare.
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B2

KPI B2.1
RS AR B 1ZER2 .1

KPI B2.2
RABAAIEIRB2.2

KPI B2.3
RABE4E IE1ER2.3

B3

KPI B3.1
BRI 1RB3.1

General Disclosure Information on:

a)  the policies; and

b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to providing a safe
working environment and protecting employees from occupational

hazards.
EARRZE2TIFREAMRAEEEBABEEEEMN
a) HE: R
b) HEFHBTEITABEATENHBEERENNER N —RE
B °

Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past
three years including the reporting year.
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Lost days due to work injury.

AIGEETERS -

Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, and
how they are implemented and monitored.

R FRANBRERER L2 - AREBERMERTE -

General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and
skills for discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.
BHERTEERITLIERENAB RN BUORE —RIRE - #HiltsE
FES -

The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category
(e.g. senior management, middle management).
RUERNRESEFI(NERERAE PREBAER EADHNZIE
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Section/
Explanation
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Health and Safety
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Health and Safety
BERSTER-#
Bz 2

Employment and
Labour Practices —
Health and Safety
BIERSITER- 2
EMZ e

Employment and
Labour Practices —
Health and Safety
BERLSIESR-&
EMZE
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KPI B3.2
RS IR 1RB3.2

B4

KPI B4.1
RRB AR IE1RBA.

KPI B4.2
RS2 4E NIB1ER4.2

B5

KPI B5.1
RS MIE1RB5.1

The average training hours completed per employee by gender and
employee category.
RUEFIREESRMNE D - BREE TR THRE -

General Disclosure Information on:

a) the policies; and

b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to preventing child and
forced labor.
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a) HBE: K
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Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child
and forced labour.
ft i s ERES N EEIAR R E T REHISTHITE -

Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered.
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General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks
of the supply chain.
EIRH BN IRE ML g B R BR A —ARIKEE -

Number of suppliers by geographical region.
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Section/
Explanation
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B6

B7

KPI B7.1
RS B 1ZRT 1

B8

General Disclosure Information on:

a)  the policies; and

b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products and
services provided and methods of redress.
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a) HE: R
by EBFHBEITABERFENRBEERERRRONERDN KRR
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General Disclosure Information on:

a) the policies; and

b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer relating to bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering.

BRI - $R - BEFRIARER ¢

a) HE: R
b) BEFHBETABERTENMAEEZLRAINERS T
E o

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought
against the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases.
REBEHANEETASIEEERBEHEEEANE SHARTNEA
SENEEE S

General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand
the needs of the communities where the issuer operates and to ensure
its activities take into consideration the communities’ interests.
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Section/
Explanation
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The Directors herein present their report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The activities
of its principal subsidiaries and associates are set out in notes 37 and 19
to the consolidated financial statements.

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 and the
state of affairs of the Group at that date are set out in the consolidated
financial statements on pages 112 to 250 of this annual report.

The Board of Directors of the Company does not recommend the
payment of any dividend in respect of the year (2019: Nil).

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2020 is set out in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 11 to 13 and pages 14
to 21 of this annual report respectively.

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 251 to 252 of
this annual report.

Details of movements in the investment properties of the Group during
the year are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the year are
set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.
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No charitable donation was made by the Group during the year (2019:
Nil).

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were as follows:

Xu Liang

Tian Gang (appointed with effect from 24 March 2021)
Su Guifeng (resigned with effect from 19 March 2021)
Li Jing (resigned with effect from 24 March 2021)

Huang Donglin

Zhang Jianxun (appointed with effect from 24 March 2021)
Liu Dongsheng (retired with effect from 21 May 2020)

You Wenli (resigned with effect from 24 March 2021)

Tam King Ching, Kenny

Zhang Xingyu (appointed with effect from 20 March 2020)

Ng Man Fung, Walter (appointed with effect from 19 March 2021)
On Danita (appointed with effect from 19 March 2021)

Fei Jianjiang (resigned with effect from 20 March 2020)

Wan Siu Wah, Wilson (passed away on 8 January 2021)

In accordance with clauses 99 and 102(B) of the Bye-laws, Mr. Huang
Donglin, Mr. Zhang Xingyu, Mr. Tian Gang, Mr. Zhang Jianxun, Mr. Ng
Man Fung, Walter and Ms. On Danita, will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company.
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As permitted by the Company’s Bye-laws, every Director or other officer
of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of
the Company against all losses or liabilities which he or she may sustain
or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his or her office or
otherwise in relation thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officer’s liability
coverage for the Directors and officers of the Company.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company, which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation other than statutory compensation.

No contracts concerning the management or administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into
or existed during the year.

As at 31 December 2020, none of the Company’s Directors, chief
executives or their respective associates had any other personal,
family, corporate and other interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.
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Apart from as disclosed in the sections headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures” and “Share Option Schemes” herein, at no time during
the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, its parent company
or any subsidiary of its parent company a party to any arrangement to
enable the Company’s Directors or their respective spouses or children
under 18 years of age to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

No transactions, arrangements and contracts that is significant in relation
to the Group's business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries,
its parent company or any subsidiary of its parent company was a party
and in which a Director of the Company or his/her connected entities had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules, the following Director has
declared interests in the following business (other than those businesses
where the Directors of the Company were appointed as directors to
represent the interests of the Company and/or any member of the
Group) which is considered to compete or are likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group during the year:

BRAFERIEERESTERABRED - 2
Betn R EHERE 2 vt OR B | M [ RE B iERT 81
PETFTIREE SN - RANFEREMER > &
RAHEEAHERR EBRARHEER
) ) (0 B 8 B BE A 22 B AT ST AR f] & B
FEARRREFIWREZTAZEBIARM TN
PR TR A B EARRR I EMEAE
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Description of business

Name of entity whose
business are considered
to compete or likely

to compete with the

of the entity which is
considered to compete
or likely to compete
with the businesses of

Nature of interest of the

Name of Director businesses of the Group the Group Director in the entity
EBERAELFEEEL EBERREAEEER
B RRAREBERT BRGFRATREBERT ESRERER
EEHE 2ERCER Z2EBZER ZEZZME
Xu Liang Shougang Holding* Property investment Director
®E B R MEKRE 5=
& Such business may be carried out through the subsidiaries or associates of the — * ZEBAERBEBEEER B LA E

entity concerned or by way of other forms of investments.
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The Board of the Company is independent from the board of the above- X2
mentioned entity and is accountable to the Company’s shareholders.
Coupled with the diligence of its Independent Non-executive Directors
whose views carry significant weight in the Board’s decisions, the Group
is capable of carrying on its businesses independently of, and at arm’s

length from, the businesses of this entity.

As at 31 December 2020, according to the register kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO, the following companies and persons had
interests or short positions in the shares and/or underlying shares of the
Company which fell to be disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

Name of shareholder

BRREHE

Shougang Group
EEiEIE]

Shougang Holding
EFiE

Wheeling Holdings Limited

(“Wheeling”)

Shougang Fund
EEiE%n

Capacity in which
interests were held

KEEZEZSH

Interests of controlled corporations

REEAE

Interests of controlled corporation

RYRE 2 i m

Beneficial owner

BEmEAA

Interests of controlled corporation

RYRE 2 i m

Number of shares/
underlying shares

R#&, HEROHE

2,425,736,972

2,025,736,972

2,025,736,972

400,000,000

RAEEE

EERECH

EF+_A=+—8"
&5 28 3361k & 17 2 & it AT
R RATRERARRGD N, 4
BHFEERZSAR  MAREES KBS
B SEXVERE 2 R B3N BRAAQRHE -

R-E—
BEHFMRE
ETSEN

]

Interests as to %
of the issued
share capital of
the Company

as at 31.12.2020
Eéﬁﬁﬂﬁ%
EE+= H
BQZFZEQI:IS

_?_

60.88%

50.84%

50.84%

10.04%

BUNLAERBZESFE I
ARARARBRREE - NEBZ B IFNIT
HEEG ZRKIEH
EzER  EANEERHRATRANEZ
ERSERERE 2% -

BRE

RIZA R A

Note(s)
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Name of shareholder

BEREHE

Jingxi Holdings Limited
("Jingxi Holdings")

REAERAER AR
(MREsER )

Yip Wang Ngai
e

HY Holdings Limited
(“HY Holdings")

Mak Siu Hang Viola
E

VMS Investment Group
Limited (“VMS
Investment”)

RIREEEFR A A
([RIIRE D)

Master Competent Limited
(“Master Competent”)

VMS Holdings Limited
("VMS Holdings"”)

RINIZERR AR A A
(TS IZEf% )

Capacity in which
interests were held

FEEBZEH

Beneficial owner

ERmBEEA

Interests of controlled corporation

REEEZ Ea

Beneficial owner
E=mEA A

Interests of controlled corporations

REEEZ Ea

Beneficial owner
EmEA A

Interests of controlled corporations
REEE s

Interests of controlled corporations

REEE R

Number of shares/
underlying shares

B, ARG B E

400,000,000

213,600,000

213,600,000

316,082,538

254,413,000

61,669,538

61,669,538

Interests as to %
of the issued
share capital of
the Company

as at 31.12.2020
REZERATR
—E2-25+=A
=+—HB#1T
BAZEHDLE

10.04%

5.36%

5.36%

7.93%

6.38%

1.55%

1.55%

Note(s)

it



Name of shareholder

BEREHE

Fastlane Global Investments
Limited (“Fastlane Global”)

VMS Securities Holdings
Limited (“VMS Securities
Holdings”)

RIS B BR A A
(TRINEHIZERD)

VMS Financial Group Limited
("VMS Financial”)

R REERRAR
([

VMS Securities Limited
("VMS Securities”)

RIMESBRAF]
([RWEHD

Capacity in which
interests were held

FEEBZEH

Interests of controlled corporations
RYEEE 2 s

Interests of controlled corporations
REEE 2 #w

Interests of controlled corporation
REEE 2

Beneficial owner
EmEA A

Number of shares/
underlying shares

B, ARG B E

61,669,538

61,669,538

61,669,538

61,669,538

Interests as to %
of the issued
share capital of
the Company

as at 31.12.2020
EFERATR
—E2-25+=A
=+—HE#T
BAZEHDLE

1.55%

1.55%

1.55%

1.55%

Note(s)

et



Notes:

Save

Shougang Group indicated in its disclosure form dated 30 July 2019 (being the
latest disclosure form filed up to 31 December 2020) that as at 30 July 2019,
its interest in the Company was held by Shougang Holding and Shougang Fund
respectively, wholly-owned subsidiaries of Shougang Group. Shougang Holding’s
interest in the Company was the Shares held by Wheeling, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Shougang Holding, and Shougang Fund'’s interest in the Company
was the Shares held by Jingxi Holdings, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shougang
Fund.

Mr. Yip Wang Ngai indicated in his disclosure form dated 1 August 2019 (being
the latest disclosure form filed up to 31 December 2020) that as at 30 July 2019,
his interest in the Company was held by HY Holdings which in turn was held as
to 80% by Mr. Yip Wang Ngai.

Ms. Mak Siu Hang Viola indicated in her disclosure form dated 4 June 2020 (being
the latest disclosure form filed up to 31 December 2020) that as at 2 June 2020,
(i) VMS Securities, which is a company controlled by her, holds 61,669,538
Shares; and (ii) VMS Investment, which is a company wholly owned by her, holds
254,413,000 Shares. VMS Securities is wholly owned by VMS Financial, which
in turn is wholly owned by VMS Securities Holdings and in turn, wholly owned
by Fastlane Global. Fastlane Global is wholly owned by VMS Holdings. VMS
Holdings is owned as to 59.80% by Ms. Mak Siu Hang Viola and 32.20% by
Master Competent, which is wholly owned by Ms. Mak Siu Hang Viola.

as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, the Company has

not been notified of any other person (other than the Directors and

chief

executives of the Company) who had an interest or short position

in the shares and/or underlying shares of the Company which fell to be
disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.
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Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions” below,
at no time during the year had the Company or any of its subsidiaries,
and the controlling shareholder (as defined under the Listing Rules) or
any of its subsidiaries entered into any contract of significance or any
contract of significance for the provision of services to the Company
or any of its subsidiaries by the controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries.

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company, there is a
sufficiency of public float of the Company’s securities as required under
the Listing Rules as at the date of this annual report.

On 7 June 2002, the shareholders of the Company adopted the 2002
Scheme which would be valid for a period of ten years. On 25 May 2012,
the shareholders of the Company approved the termination of the 2002
Scheme (to the effect that no further share option shall be granted by
the Company under the 2002 Scheme) and the adoption of a new share
option scheme (the “2012 Scheme”), which became effective on 29
May 2012 upon the Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange granting
its approval to the listing of, and permission to deal in, the shares of the
Company which may fall to be issued upon exercise of the options to be
granted under the 2012 Scheme.
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A summary of the principal terms of each of the 2002 Scheme and the
2012 Scheme is set out below:

The purpose of the 2002 Scheme is to enable the Company to
grant share options to selected participants as incentives or rewards
for their contribution to the Company and/or its subsidiaries and/
or its associated companies. The 2002 Scheme was adopted on 7
June 2002 and terminated on 29 May 2012.

Under the 2002 Scheme, the Directors may, at their discretion,
offer directors (including executive and non-executive directors),
executives, officers, employees or shareholders, of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries or any of its associated companies, and
any suppliers, customers, consultants, advisers, agents, partners
or business associates who will contribute or have contributed
to the Company or any of its subsidiaries or any of its associated
companies, share options to subscribe for shares of the Company.

As the 2002 Scheme was terminated on 29 May 2012, no further
options can be granted under the 2002 Scheme since then. During
the year, all the outstanding 3,586,880 share options granted
under the 2002 Scheme were lapsed. Accordingly, no shares of the
Company may be issued under the 2002 Scheme as at the date of
this annual report.

Each of the grantees was required to pay HK$1.00 as a
consideration for the grant of share options in accordance with the
2002 Scheme. The offer of share options must be accepted within
60 days from the date of offer.

Save as disclosed above, there is no material difference in the
terms, which shall be disclosed pursuant to Rule 17.09 of the
Listing Rules, between the 2002 Scheme and the 2012 Scheme.
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No share option was granted, exercised or cancelled in accordance
with the terms of the 2002 Scheme during the year. Details of the
movement of share options under the 2002 Scheme during the
year are as follows:

Options to subscribe for shares of the Company

TRBER ARG 2 BRE
Category or name At the beginning  Lapsed during At the end of
of grantees of the period the period the period
ARABRIRSA 4 ilaPSye kS
Employees of the Group 3,586,880 (3,586,880)'
TE&ERR
Note:

1. 509,500 share options were held by an employee and lapsed on 5 March
2020 due to his resignation. The remaining 3,077,380 share options
lapsed on 14 December 2020, being the expiry date of the relevant
exercise period.

The purpose of the 2012 Scheme is to replace the 2002 Scheme
and to continue to enable the Company to grant share options to
selected participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution
or potential contribution to the Company and/or any of its
subsidiaries and/or any entity in which any member of the Group
holds any equity interest (the “Invested Entities”). The 2012
Scheme shall be valid and effective for the period of ten years
commencing on 25 May 2012, being the date on which the 2012
Scheme was conditionally adopted by the shareholders of the
Company, and ending on 25 May 2022 (both dates inclusive).

Under the 2012 Scheme, the Board may, at its discretion, offer
full-time or part-time employees, executives, officers or directors
(including executive and non-executive directors) of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries or any of the Invested Entities, and any
advisors, consultants, agents, suppliers, customers and distributors,
who, in the sole opinion of the Board, will contribute or have
contributed to the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries and/or
any of the Invested Entities, share options to subscribe for shares of
the Company.
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Exercise price

Date of grant  Exercise period per share
Rt AH TEH BROHEE
14.12.2010 14.12.2010 - HK$0.53
13.12.2020
B#0.537
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No share option has been granted under the 2012 Scheme since
its adoption. The maximum number of shares of the Company
available for issue upon exercise of all share options which may
be granted under the 2012 Scheme is 115,219,246, representing
approximately 2.89% of the issued share capital of the Company
as at the date of this annual report. The total number of shares
of the Company issued and which may fall to be issued upon the
exercise of share options to be granted under the 2012 Scheme
and any other share option scheme(s) of the Company (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding share options) to each
grantee in any 12-month period up to the date of grant shall not
exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
date of grant. Any further grant of share options in excess of this
1% limit shall be subject to the issue of a circular by the Company
and shareholders’ approval in a general meeting. In addition,
any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company, or to any of
their associates, which would result in the shares of the Company
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options already granted
and to be granted (including options exercised, cancelled and
outstanding) to such person in the 12-month period up to and
including the date of the offer of such grant (a) representing in
aggregate over 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue on the
date of the grant; and (b) having an aggregate value of in excess
of HK$5,000,000 (based on the closing price of the Company’s
shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange
on the date of each grant), such further grant of options shall be
subject to the issue of a circular by the Company and shareholders’
approval in a general meeting on a poll at which the grantee, his/
her associates and all core connected persons of the Company
shall abstain from voting in favour of the resolution concerning the
grant of such options, and/or such other requirements prescribed
under the Listing Rules from time to time. A connected person of
the Company will be permitted to vote against the grant only if
his intention to do so has been stated in the circular. Any grant
of share options to a Director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, is
required to be approved by the Independent Non-executive
Directors (excluding the Independent Non-executive Director who is
the grantee of the options).

BRM-T—ZF5rEE  BEREL
STERLERE - ABRBITERE S
—ZFE BRI B T ] BT
ZEEARARMDEE £115,219,246
B AR RN AFERTIEBHEET
BEAR492.89% o AR AR E B HIET
N+ —EABERETE=_F——F&
EIRARNEMEREERERTS  BT
R BIREBERITE Rk
T 2B MEE BT ARG TEITZ
ARRRG BB T EBAREL AR
NABETRAZ1% - HE—FRLE
MBI 1%RE s ERE - NARAER
3B PR S PR R AE IR K& EHEE o it
G MARRZ EBRESRBILIERTT
EEYAMBEEZHEARL ZEME
piE - eERARBATHRIRE BB+
“EASM(BEREREBE AR
EREETER ZEREBEEITE -
EdERERITE ZERE) FATE
BEBITRETEHITZAQRBKRNG : a)
AFHBBRRHBHEARREETRG
0.1% : R(bIRESFE L B HARQ %D
BRBRATARR WM ETERER
1B #5,000,0000T + BIZBRFA QR B
BRHTERBEERREARAS AR ERR
FRAE - MAERA - EBBARAAD
AFFAEROBEATHERKRLEZESE
RIBRAZRRAERENE - &8
FEMRATEREZEMENR - 47
E—ISELERE ARFBEEATE
R EREFDERE  HEBEAAR
HEER - MARFESE ZETHRA
BERTERRATMFEEZHEAR T
BB E - BEBYIERNTEE(IE
ERABBERBEARAZBILIERNTE
)b o



The period during which a share option may be exercised will be
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion, save that no
share option may be exercised more than 10 years after it has been
granted under the 2012 Scheme. There is no requirement that a
share option must be held for any minimum period before it can be
exercised but the Board is empowered to impose at its discretion
any such minimum period at the time of offer of any share options.

The exercise price in relation to each share option will be
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion and shall not
be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares of
the Company as stated in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock
Exchange on the date of offer of share options; (ii) the average
closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the daily
guotations sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of offer of share options; and (iii)
the nominal value of a share of the Company on the date of offer
of share options. Each of the grantees is required to pay HK$1.00
as a consideration for his acceptance of the grant of share options
in accordance with the 2012 Scheme. The offer of share options
must be accepted within 30 days from the date of the offer.

Share options to be granted under the 2012 Scheme do not confer
rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at general meetings.

No share option has been granted under the 2012 Scheme since
its adoption. Accordingly, as at 31 December 2020, there was no
share option outstanding under the 2012 Scheme.

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Share Option Schemes” herein,
no equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the Company
issuing shares or that require the Company to enter into any agreements
that will or may result in the Company issuing shares were entered into
by the Company during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.
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Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities (whether on the Stock
Exchange or otherwise) during the year.

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws or the
laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro rata basis to its existing shareholders.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had distributable
reserves of approximately HK$102,749,000.

In the year under review, revenue from sales of goods and rendering
of services to the Group's five largest customers accounted for
approximately 88% of the total revenue from sales of goods and
rendering of services for the year and revenue from sales of goods and
rendering of services to the largest customer included therein amounted
to approximately 38%. Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 82% of the total purchases for the year
and purchases from the largest supplier included therein amounted to
approximately 81%. None of the Directors of the Company or any of
their close associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge
of the Directors, own more than 5% of the number of issued shares
of the Company) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest
customers and suppliers.
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The following connected transactions were entered during the year and M FARAREERNREEAFERTZBHD
up to the date of this annual report: A2 ERS

On 26 December 2018, Eldex Investment Company Limited (”Eldex
Investment”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a joint venture agreement with Chengdu Shougang Silk Road
Equity Investment Fund Co., Ltd.* (AX#P H AR EREES
ABR/AR], “Shougang Silk Road”) and Chengdu Wuhou Capital
Investment Management Group Co., Ltd.* ([R#REEBAKEE
EEB AR /AT, “Wuhou Capital”) to establish a joint venture,
namely Shoucheng Finance Lease (Chengdu) Co., Ltd.* (EREE
& (AT AR A A], “Shoucheng Finance Lease”) to engage in
the business of finance lease and related services. Shougang Silk
Road is a corporate fund 50% owned by Shougang Fund which
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Shougang Group. Wuhou Capital
and its ultimate owners are independent of and not connected
with the Company and its connected persons. Shoucheng Finance
Lease would have a registered capital of RMB100,000,000, which
has been determined by the parties after arm’s length negotiations
by reference to its expected capital requirement. According to
the joint venture agreement, the amount of registered capital
to be contributed by Eldex Investment, Shougang Silk Road and
Wuhou Capital were RMB25,000,000, RMB40,000,000 and
RMB35,000,000 respectively. In view of the changes in market
environment and policies, Shoucheng Finance Lease has been
unable to carry out business, therefore, the board of directors
of Shoucheng Finance Lease intends to liquidate Shoucheng
Finance Lease. For the details of the transaction, please refer to
announcement of the Company dated 26 December 2018.
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On 2 December 2020, Ecko Investment Company Limited* (15 5z &k
B ERBAELR)BR AR, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, and Shougang Fund entered into an agreement, to
acquire a 30% equity interest in Beijing Jingxi Supply Chain
Management Co., Ltd* bt R R AHEEEEFRAE], “Jingxi
Supply Chain”) (the “Acquisition”). The consideration for the
Acquisition is RMB7,347,453.44, which was determined by the
parties after arm’s length negotiations based on the valuation on
the 30% equity interest in Jingxi Supply Chain as at 31 August
2020 as determined by an independent professional valuer based
on the asset approach, subject to the downward adjustment of
60% of the loss of Jingxi Supply Chain between 27 April 2018 and
30 June 2019. The consideration is payable in cash within five
business days of the date of the Agreement. Upon completion of
the Acquisition, Jingxi Supply Chain becomes a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. The Acquisition will enable the Group
to consolidate its control in Jingxi Supply Chain and allow the
Group to continue its development of innovative financial services
industry and in relation to the integration of supply chain networks
with third parties leveraging on the Group’s knowledge in various
industries and accessibility to bank financing and capital markets.

As all the applicable percentage ratios in respect of the Acquisition
are more than 0.1% but less than 5%, the Acquisition is subject
to the reporting and announcement requirements and exempt
from the independent Shareholders’ approval requirement under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Acquisition was completed in
December 2020.

For the details of the transaction, please refer to announcement of
the Company dated 2 December 2020.

*  For identification purpose only
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The following continuing connected transactions were recorded during AN AR ARG E A M & ZE A F R T2 B HI T
the year and up to the date of this annual report: SR HBERERS

As stated in the announcement of the Company dated 15 April
2015 and in the circular of the Company dated 26 May 2015, a
master facility agreement was entered into between the Company
and Shougang Group on 26 March 2015 (the “2015 Master Facility
Agreement”).

Pursuant to the 2015 Master Facility Agreement, the Company has
agreed to provide, or procure its subsidiaries to provide facilities by
way of entrusted payment and/or finance lease to Shougang Group
and/or its subsidiaries in an amount of up to RMB8,000,000,000
for a term of 3 years from 19 June 2015, the date on which the
condition precedent for the 2015 Master Facility Agreement was
fulfilled and the 2015 Master Facility Agreement became effective
(the “2015 Facilities”).

For the 2015 Facilities provide by way of entrusted payment and/
or finance lease, the interest rate payable by the borrower or
the lessee shall be at a rate equal to the cost of lending of the
Company (or its subsidiaries) plus 1% to 5%.

The annual cap of the 2015 Facilities for each of the financial years
ending 31 December 2015, 31 December 2016, 31 December
2017, 31 December 2018, 31 December 2019, 31 December 2020
and 31 December 2021 is RMB5,000,000,000, taken into account
of the expected maximum outstanding balance of the facilities
owed by the Shougang Group and/or its subsidiaries under the
2015 Master Facility Agreement for each relevant year.

The entering into of the 2015 Master Facility Agreement will enable
the Group to earn a net interest income under the 2015 Master
Facility Agreement.
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As at the date of the 2015 Master Facility Agreement, Shougang
Group was the holding company of Shougang Holding which
in turn was a controlling shareholder and connected person of
the Company. As such, the transactions contemplated under
the 2015 Master Facility Agreement constituted continuing
connected transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. As one or more of the applicable percentage
ratios for the transactions contemplated under the 2015 Master
Facility Agreement (including the annual caps) exceed 100%, the
2015 Master Facility Agreement constituted both a non-exempt
continuing connected transaction and a very substantial acquisition
for the Company under the Listing Rules.

The 2015 Master Facility Agreement was subject to approval by the
independent shareholders of the Company in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules.

The 2015 Master Facility Agreement and the annual caps
thereunder were approved, confirmed and ratified by the
independent shareholders of the Company on 19 June 2015.

As the 2015 Master Facilities Agreement between the Company
and the Shougang Group in relation to the provision by the
Group of the 2015 facilities to the Shougang Group expired on
18 June 2018, the Company entered into another master facilities
agreement with Shougang Group on 8 June 2018 (the “2018
Master Facility Agreement”).

Pursuant to the 2018 Master Facility Agreement, the Company has
agreed to provide, or procure its subsidiaries to provide facilities by
way of entrusted payment, finance lease and/or credit financing
to Shougang Group and/or its subsidiaries in an amount of up to
RMB5,000,000,000 for a term of 3 years from 8 June 2018, the
date on which the condition precedent for the 2018 Master Facility
Agreement was fulfilled and the 2018 Master Facility Agreement
became effective (the “2018 Facilities”).
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For the 2018 Facilities provide by way of entrusted payment,
finance lease and/or credit financing, the interest rate payable by
the borrower or the lessee shall be at a rate equal to the cost of
lending of the Company (or its subsidiaries) plus 1% to 5%, subject
to a cap of 10%.

The annual cap of the 2018 Facilities for each of the financial years
ending 31 December 2018 to 2024 shall be RMB1,500,000,000
each year, taken into account of the expected level of financing
required by Shougang Group and its subsidiaries based on
published public information on Shougang Group, and the amount
of financing that the Group is expected to be able to secure to
finance the 2018 Facilities, for each relevant year.

The entering into of the 2018 Master Facility Agreement will enable
the Group to earn a net interest income under the 2018 Master
Facility Agreement.

As at the date of the 2018 Master Facility Agreement, Shougang
Group was the holding company of Shougang Holding which
in turn was a controlling shareholder and connected person of
the Company. As such, the transactions contemplated under the
2018 Master Facility Agreement constituted continuing connected
transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios for
the transactions contemplated under the 2018 Master Facility
Agreement (including the annual caps) exceed 5%, the 2018
Master Facility Agreement constituted a non-exempt continuing
connected transaction for the Company under the Listing Rules.

The 2018 Master Facility Agreement was subject to approval by the
independent shareholders of the Company in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules.

The 2018 Master Facility Agreement and the annual caps
thereunder were approved, confirmed and ratified by the
independent shareholders of the Company on 7 December 2018.

For the details of the transaction, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 8 June 2018 and 20
November 2018 and in the circular of the Company dated 20
November 2018.
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As stated in the announcement of the Company dated 31 October
2018, the Company entered into the following transactions on 31
October 2018:

(A)

Long Cosmos Investment Limited (an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company), as tenant, entered into a tenancy
agreement with Billioncorp Development Limited (an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of Shougang Holding) as landlord,
in relation to the lease of office premise at a monthly rent
of HK$195,500, exclusive of rates and management fees,
for the three years ending 31 October 2021 (the “Tenancy
Agreement”). The payment under the Tenancy Agreement
should be made in advance on the first day of each and
every calendar month without deduction. The annual cap
of the tenancy agreement for each of the years ending 31
October 2019, 31 October 2020, and 31 October 2021
is HK$2,541,500, HK$2,346,000 and HK$2,346,000
respectively, taken into account of the payment commitment
of monthly rent under the tenancy agreement.

the Company entered into a master services agreement with
Shougang Holding for a term of three years commencing
from 31 October 2018 to 31 October 2021 (the “Master
Services Agreement”). Under which, Shougang Holding
would provide to the Company advisory services covering
areas in business and operational, investment management
and financial management disciplines, treasury and risk
management, key managerial recruitment and retention as
well as other operating practices and procedures, accounting,
corporate advisory, legal, company secretarial and other
services. The Company agreed to reimburse the actual costs
of the services incurred by Shougang Holding by reference
to a specified percentage of the remuneration of members
of the staff providing the Services to the Company, with
annual payment capped at HK$2,880,000 each of the three
years ending 31 October 2019, 31 October 2020, and 31
October 2021. The annual caps were determined after taken
the maximum payment obligation under the Master Services
Agreement.
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Given both the Tenancy Agreement and the Master Services
Agreement relate to the use of the office premise and the
service rendered in the office premise, these transactions shall
be aggregated according to the requirements of Rule 14A.81 of
the Listing Rules. Based on the transaction amounts of the two
transactions in aggregate, certain applicable percentage ratios are
above 0.1% but all relevant percentage ratios are less than 5%.
In accordance with Rule 14.76(2) of the Listing Rules, the Tenancy
Agreement and the Master Services Agreement together with
the respective annual cap for the three years ending 31 October
2021 are exempt from the circular (including independent financial
advice) and the Independent Shareholders’ approval requirements.

For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 31 October 2018.

On 21 July 2020, Jingxi Supply Chain entered into the cooperation
agreement with Suzhou Shougang Steel Processing Assembly Co.,
Ltd. (ERM & 8 37 h0 TECEX B PR A F), “Suzhou Shougang Steel”)
for a term of one year (“Cooperation Agreement”). Pursuant
to which, Jingxi Supply Chain agrees to purchase steel related
products from Suzhou Shougang Steel with an aggregated price
of not exceeding RMB16,000,000 from 21 July 2020 to 20 July
2021, the annual cap has been determined with reference to the
potential market demand for the steel related products and the
supplying capacity of Suzhou Shougang Steel for the steel related
products.

Suzhou Shougang Steel is wholly owned by Beijing Shougang
Steel Trade Investment Management Co., Ltd. (dt R &5 88 &
KEEEAHR AT, “Beijing Shougang Steel”), which is in turn
49% owned by Shougang Group. Shougang Group is the holding
company of Shougang Holding, the controlling shareholder of the
Company. Suzhou Shougang Steel is therefore a connected person
of the Company within the meaning of the Listing Rules and the
transactions contemplated under the Cooperation Agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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However, as additional time would be required to comply with the
regulatory requirements for the Cooperation Agreement, which will
seriously disrupt the supply plan of the steel related products to the
end-customers, Suzhou Shougang Steel and Jingxi Supply Chain
have mutually agreed to terminate the Cooperation Agreement on
30 July 2020. No transaction has been entered into pursuant to the
Cooperation Agreement.

For the details of the transaction, please refer to announcements of
the Company dated 21 July 2020 and 30 July 2020.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-
executive directors of the Company must review the continuing
connected transactions carried out under the 2015 Master Facility
Agreement, the 2018 Master Facility Agreement, the Tenancy Agreement
and the Master Services Agreement during the year and confirm whether
the transactions thereunder had been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(i) according to the agreements governing them on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the Company’s shareholders
as a whole.

The auditors of the Company have provided a letter to (the Board of
Directors of the Company) confirming the matters stated in Rule 14A.56
of the Listing Rules in respect of the continuing connected transactions
under 2015 Master Facility Agreement, the 2018 Master Facility
Agreement, the Tenancy Agreement and the Master Services Agreement
took place during the year.

The transactions regarding revenue under sale and leaseback
arrangements set out in note 35(b) to the consolidated financial
statements and the outstanding balance arising from sale and leaseback
business set out in note 35(c) to the consolidated financial statements
were connected transactions which had been approved by the
independent shareholders of the Company.
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The transactions regarding consultancy services expenses, management
fee expenses and lease payments set out in note 35(b) to the
consolidated financial statements were connected transactions which
were exempt from circular and shareholders’ approval requirements
under the Listing Rules.

The transactions set out in notes 35(d) and 35(e) to the consolidated
financial statements under the heading of “Related Party Transactions”
did not constitute connected transactions under the Listing Rules.

As far as the transactions set out in note 35(a) to the consolidated
financial statements are concerned, the remuneration of the Directors
as determined pursuant to the service contracts entered into between
the Directors and the Group were connected transactions which were
exempt from any disclosure and shareholders’ approval requirements
under the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to the facility letter entered into between SCG Finance
Corporation Limited (“SCG Finance”) and Chong Hing Bank Limited
(“CHB") on 23 December 2020 in relation to a revolving term loan
facility of HK$70,000,000 (the “Facility”), Shougang Group and
Shougang Holding shall remain as the largest shareholder (directly or
indirectly) of the Company during the term of the Facility. Breach of such
condition will constitute an event of default upon which CHB may cancel
the Facility or terminate the Facility and demand all outstanding amount
under the Facility be immediately due and payable. The availability of
the Facility is subject to CHB's periodic review and overriding right of
repayment on demand.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 22 to 51 of this annual report.

The Company’s compliance with the relevant provisions set out in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide in Appendix 27
of the Listing Rules for the financial year ended 31 December 2020 are
set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report on pages 52
to 79 of this annual report.
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A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general AAFEREERITZHRERFEFAE LIES
meeting to re-appoint Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the R:EZ @ BREE P KBS EHT AR

Company. NRZIZELRD o

By Order of the Board EEEGW®

Xu Liang FEREFLEITE
Chairman and Managing Director #%e

Hong Kong, 19 March 2021 B —E-—F=ZAThH
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To the Shareholders of Shougang Concord Grand (Group) Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

The consolidated financial statements of Shougang Concord Grand
(Group) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set
out on pages 112 to 250, which comprise:

o the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2020;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

. the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;
and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Y

R oK E

HEROG(RE)AERARZHEERR
(REREZEZTMA L BRE])

BEEOAFERAERATTERR)REWES
NEl(HHEIEEEDEHINE11285E5250
BRGREMTERE  HefE:

e RIZEEFF+_A=+—HNEKREH
BRI

s HEZRALFENGAEEZERSER

s HEZALFENGARERER R

s HANBRENHI(BREANGHER
BE) -

KIIRE  ZEZAUBRECRERES
SRR (BB AT)BEMNET B
WMEER (BB BREENDEEM AT i
Kk SEER_ZTZ_TF+_A=+—H
A BRAUNREHEZE IEFEHLR
EMBRBEEEARERE  UEERBES
NElEPIR R ERTEZ ABRE -

ATEREBEERSAMASRMANEERE
ERN(FBRBCER DETRE - NMTEZRF
EATHEIERNAREZBERESEFE
M REAENTE] P E— SR -

AITHEE - AIMESNESHBRERETENR
EEHRATHE RIREER -



We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

o Provision for expected credit losses of receivables under sale and
leaseback arrangements

o Impairment assessments of goodwill

Key Audit Matter
HRETER

Provision for expected credit losses of receivables under
sale and leaseback arrangements

EXR DL R N2 R IBZ BRI EE R

Refer to Note 3.1(b), Note 4(a) and Note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.
FHLHEG AP ERENE3.1(0b)  BisE4@@) RHIEE20 -

REZELSAMASRMNEXSTHIER
SAIATEREITRD - AITBYR BX

IS

B WEETTRITNEMERBERE -

REFFEASRBEATHERHE - R
HAHRASGMBRENEAR/EENSE
B REFEARNATETBREAVBRE
REABRBERE - MAT IS E L RHER
HBINER -

AT EEFHENNBARETFTES AN
-

EROBELHET 2 BUFAEZAHE
EERRE

o EERERE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RITHETT N EERRETSE

Our procedures performed in relation to the expected credit
loss allowance of receivables under sale and leaseback
arrangements included:

AITHERBELHIA T 2 BEFR 2 BMEEERRER

As at 31 December 2020, the balance of the receivables
under sale and leaseback arrangements amounted to
approximately HK$1,380,449,000, net of provision for e
expected credit loss (“ECL") of HK$22,432,000, which
represented approximately 63.9% of the total assets

of the Group. For the year ended 31 December 2020,

a net provision for expected credit losses of receivables
under sale and leaseback arrangements of HK$5,887,000 e
has been reversed in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

RZBEZTF+ZA=+—H ERELHTHETZE
WK TB 4 82 40 /756 1,380,449,0007 (IR TEHAEE S
B(IBEEEEE]) B#EE®22,432,000T) - 16 B
EBREENC3I% HEZTE-TF+-_A=1+—HL
FE  EROALZEETRKFIAZ EHEEHEES
R 155,887,000 B RS R E IR FZAED o

HeEF 8%

Understood, evaluated and validated on a sample
basis the key controls over the expected credit loss
assessment of the receivables under sale and leaseback
arrangements, including the reversal of brought forward
provisions;

TR M RBREHEROALTHET 2 BKK
BENTEREEBENGOEEEHEE  REREER
AEEERE



Key Audit Matter
BRETER

Provision for expected credit losses of receivables under
sale and leaseback arrangements (Continued)

ER LR N2 BN IRZ BRI E EER A ()

The Group assesses whether the credit risk of receivables
under sale and leaseback arrangements has increased
significantly since their initial recognition, and applies
a three-stage impairment model to calculate the ECL.
The Group measured expected credit losses based on an
individual assessment of each borrower, after considering
their credit profiles with reference to credit ratings
assigned by independent credit-rating agencies.
ERENAEROERHFRT 2 RKKENEERR B
IR AR ZER K%PM W R = B BRORBUE R AL 5T
HHEHEEEBR - SERERZBRANEER
% ﬁ%*%ﬁA%ﬂ%%E 2B EETRME
W EEX KRG ERAEERE -

The measurement model of expected credit losses involves
significant management judgements and assumptions,
primarily including the following:
BHREEEEN SRS N E AR E IR H i & RK
FEBFEUTIE :

(1)  Criteria for determining whether there was a
significant increase in credit risk, or a default or
impairment loss was incurred,;

(1) HEEEERBRIDABRENTENIREEBRENR
%

(2) Economic indicators for forward-looking
measurements;

(2) ATBEMERT EMEEIRAE |

(3)  The estimated future cash flows for credit-impaired
receivables in stage 3.
(3) F=-REREERLEEEREMNERKIBERGEEARKE

A=
EZanE °

In addition, the receivables under sale and leaseback
arrangements and provisions are significant to the
consolidated financial statements. In view of these
reasons, we identified this as a key audit matter.

Uboh - EEREIALHIE T 2 EUGIE RBEH GRS M
MEMEBEKN - ERZERA - NI B IERANAE—
IHEARERTEE -

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RITHENAEEFARETER

o Evaluated the significant judgements and assumptions
involved in the expected credit losses measurement
model, including management’s assessment of
credit risk of each borrower, considering their credit
profiles, historical repayment patterns, publicly
available information of these borrowers, reports from
independent credit rating agencies and forward-looking
factors such as market conditions and economic growth,
and assessed the reasonableness of the judgements and
assumptions adopted, including the reversal made;

s KRERZEBRANEELE EBLEXER  ZFHE
FARNDFAGEER  BUGETRBENRE UK
MISARRAREBEEREREERRR - FFHEBEE
BREABETRNERAEGRRE  BEEEEY

BEERAGERRAFTE - RV PTER A 2B & fRR
MA@E BIEFERD

o Evaluated the appropriateness of management
assessment of the ECL on credit impaired receivables
under sale and leaseback arrangements in stage 3,
taking into account the legal possession status and
other uncertainties on realising the relevant underlying
assets; and

s RERZZBAMMUNBRABAEREENHMTHE
EMREER  FEERERTEENAE=ERNE
BEELHFETZEREEERERKFIANTEHRE
EEE R

. Performed recalculation of the ECL model to assess the
accuracy;

o [EREHEEEERLEMITE - AT EERL

Based on our procedures performed, the significant
judgements and assumptions adopted by management in the
ECL assessment were considered acceptable.
RIBFAEFBAIEF  EREETERBEEERRARAE
KA RARR AR BT -



Key Audit Matter
BRETER

Impairment assessments of goodwill

BE B EFF

Refer to Note 2.9 and Note 18 to the consolidated
financial statements.
BLHERE Y BREWEF2.9RMFF18 -

As at 31 December 2020, the goodwill of the Group
amounted to HK$60,032,000 related to business
acquisitions in the current and previous years.
NZZE_ZF+_-_A=+—10 - EBEXBEZHEREE
60,032,0007T * BAFERBEFEEHWEER -

The Group’s goodwill was allocated to three subsidiaries,
being the lowest level within the Group at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purpose.
SEZBEIEE= F'WTJ% (B BEREHRAE
Eﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁ@ﬁ@ TEENARBKERBR)

The Group tests goodwill for impairment at least annually.
In carrying out the goodwill impairment assessments,
management determines the recoverable amount of each
group of cash-generating units (“CGUs") by using value in
use calculation (“VIU"). In assessing the VIU, management
applied the discounted cash flow method. These
assessments involved significant management judgements
and estimates in the discounted cash flow calculation and
the application of assumptions in the models, including
interest rate spread and gross profit margin for the coming
five years, terminal growth rates and discount rates used
in the projection periods. Based on the management’s
assessment, there is no impairment required for goodwill
for the current year.

SEELFFARA—REERE - HETEHERER
ﬁ EREEREREABE(ERABEDEESER
ReEABMN(REELABEUDNAKEEEE  ERE
RARRBEREEZTHEREE - ZFFEF LR
RenSrtEPEREEAHE R RAEREFRA
BR BRAKREFOHNXRZEREMNE - BAHRFAA
RIPERERPRE - RBEBENNGE  AFEHE

HAELRIE -

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RITHENAEEFARETER

Our procedures performed in relation to management’s
goodwill impairment assessment include:

AT ERBRERENERRNEFEE

o Evaluated the composition of the Group’s future cash
flow forecasts in developing the VIU calculations of each
group of CGUs, and the process by which they were
drawn up, including comparing the forecasts to the
latest budgets approved by management;

e Mt EREHMBENBREELBLZERAEBENE
MEBAIZBR(BREEEERIOMECRERTEA
L8 2 KRR RETEAAES

o Involved our internal valuation experts to assess the
discount rates applied by management in the valuation;

s AMEEZERZ2EFEHEEEBEGETMRANIER
SE’\ -

o Challenged management’s key assumptions in the
assessment including the interest rate spread and gross
profit margin for the coming five years in the forecasts,
the terminal growth rates, by making reference to the
historical performance and future business plans of each
group of CGUs and benchmarking the assumptions
used with our market analysis; and

s RKRBEZREFNREGELBMNELRELRKER
BIARKITOTISOMPAAMEROELR  ERER
BRIEMATIERRE  BEBARRAFOMNEER
EME RIFERE R

o Evaluated the sensitivity analysis performed by
management around the interest rate spread and gross
profit margin for the coming five years, terminal growth
rates and discount rates to ascertain that the extent
and likelihood of such changes have been appropriately
considered; and

o GIAEREURKRAFHNMEEZRENE  KILER
T&%ﬁf EIT RSN - LIEEZSEBCE

HEEZBZRERARNL : &



Key Audit Matter
BRESTER

Impairment assessments of goodwill (Continued)

BE B ERF I ()

We focused on this area due to the size of goodwill e
balance and the impairment assessment involved
significant judgements and estimates made by e
management.

HREBEHRZRE  ROTETRILEE - BRERE
B REBEIEL N ER G R EE -

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RITHEFTT N EERRETSE

Checked the mathematical accuracy of management’s
value in use calculations.

BHERENEREBEEFENRSERE

Based on the procedures performed, we found the
judgements and estimates made by management in relation

to the impairment assessment were supportable by available

evidence.

ERFTITRIEF - ANTHIREE EsURE R G 2 H 8 R b
A BERR -

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

BERTEFRAHEMENAS - HLENE
BFERAMANER  BTREREHBR
ERATHRERORBENRSE ©

ATHEEMBRENBERL NREEME
B AT AT HZEEMEHBEREFAER
B IRFE KM ©
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BB A B B WS AT BB T AT A
BRERREGEEAEBREUFEER
SEARBRL ©

ERATEATN I MATRR/EME
BEEEAHERRL  ATHEREZE
B o ATRM Y BEMFHEARS -



The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

ERIRBEBZBERIETE Eh —1

AITEREEHE  TRIFFZRRER -

ZN W)

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.
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o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Ng Ka Ho.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 19 March 2021
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE — T - F+ - A=+—HILFE

2020 2019
—ECEF —T—NF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5T BT T BT
Revenue under sale and leaseback EROHEZHERETERR
arrangements and entrusted loan PRI T 2 s
arrangements 5 78,691 71,601
Revenue from supply chain management REHEREERS C e
services 5 4,634 -
Consultancy service income and property BARBRARMERE
leasing income ON 5 2,053 6,101
Total revenue FAlE 85,378 77,702
Cost of sale and leaseback arrangements and &% (B8 Z2 5 &2 % s AR 1S
consultancy services BN 8 (11,618) (20,058)
Gross profit EF 73,760 57,644
Other income H A 6 12,388 21,191
Other gains, net H Ui F58 7 13,734 1,094
Selling expenses HEREZ 8 (1,420) (402)
Administrative expenses TERAY 8 (68,079) (65,232)
Change in fair value of investment properties &% 2 A i EEE) 17 (1,000) 2,400
Change in fair value of financial assets at fair BEREEFZ AN BEREE Y
value through profit or loss PREEZAREE 23 272 204
Reversal of impairment provision, net AR ERDFRE 10 5,916 1,887
Operating profit KRR 35,571 18,786
Finance costs BhE AN 11 (1,676) (5,987)
Share of profit of associates FE(EEEE R ANE T 19 1,258 2,614
Profit before income tax R B8 8¢ A F 35,153 15,413
Income tax expense FrS®if = 12 (16,959) (14,830)
Profit for the year FEEF 18,194 583
Profit/(loss) is attributable to: LU A £ SRR,
(E518) -
Owners of the Company ARBFEA 5,980 (7,921)
Non-controlling interests R 12,214 8,504

18,194 583



Profit for the year

Other comprehensive (loss)/income
Items that have been/may be reclassified to
profit or loss:

Changes in fair value of debt instruments
at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Transfer to profit or loss on disposal of
debt instrument at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to

profit or loss:

Currency translation differences

Share of currency translation difference of
an associate for using equity method

Change in fair value of equity instruments
at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Other comprehensive income/(loss) for
the year

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for
the year

Total comprehensive income/(loss)
attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings/(loss) per share
Basic and diluted (HK cents)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE =—T =T F+ - A=+ —HILFE

FEEF

Hit2mE (B8) W
E#E RIREEFSHE
RaZHE -
FREMEERER
AARBEREZEHTA
ZRARER
HEBBEMEEKER
AAEREZEHTA
R = Bk
T EEH T EERm
EH -
ERBEEH
R AR D 15 — R
BRRERREZE
FREMpEEEER
REREZEETA

N
2 ARES

FEAMEEKE(FHR)
FEXEKE (HR)EHE

UTALEERERE
(B518) 4% .
ZN/NCIESY N
JEVE R

BREFN (FHE)
EAN R 855 (B L)

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be
read in conjunction with the accompanying Notes.

2020
—s-%%
HK$'000
BET T

Note
B 5T

18,194

(173)

(29)

92,120

5,273

97,191

115,385

83,230
32,155

115,385
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2019
—E-NEF
HK$'000
BT

583

1,735

(1,022)

(18,497)

(1,370)

(2,917)

(22,071)

(21,488)

(25,472)
3,984

(21,488)

(0.20)

e B B 7 — 6 B3



At 31 December 2020 R—ZE-—ZFF+_-H=+—H

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Investment properties
Intangible assets
Interest in associates
Receivables under sale and leaseback
arrangements

Debt instruments at fair value through

other comprehensive income
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Prepayments
Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

Current assets
Receivables under sale and leaseback
arrangements
Trade and bill receivables
Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Term deposits with initial term over three

months
Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

Total assets

EQUITY
Share capital
Reserves

Capital and reserves attributable to
owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

aE
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N NI 5
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FBEMEER SR
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Notes

B 5t

15
16
17
18
19

20
21
23

22
29

20
22

22

24
25

30

2020
—E-FF
HK$°000
BT T

22,371
39,543
23,700
68,364
91,362
771,927
15,886
2,847

4,201
2,399

1,042,600

608,522
36,132

155,401

318,818

1,118,873

2,161,473

39,846
1,405,791

1,445,637

318,352

1,763,989

2019
—E-NEF
HK$'000
BT

25,369
40,827
24,700
68,033
88,361
864,582
31,676
2,575

3,019
10,088

1,159,230

426,614

6,024

94,382
607,782

1,134,802

2,294,032

39,846
1,315,303

1,355,149

388,349

1,743,498



At 31 December 2020 R—ZE-ZFF+_-H=+—H

2020 2019
—E-FF —T-NF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 BT T BEET I
LIABILITIES =N
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Secured bank borrowings BRI IRITIE K 28 146,995 168,539
Security deposits received B RFERE 20 5,952 8,427
Lease liabilities HERE 16 = 1,917
Total non-current liabilities EREBEEEEE 152,947 178,883
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables and accruals HEEARIBREGTER 26 62,014 25,222
Current tax liabilities BENEATIE B (& 31,346 26,301
Secured bank borrowings B MIRITIERK 28 143,308 297,018
Security deposits received EHRFRS 20 5,952 20,899
Lease liabilities HERE 16 1,917 2,211
Total current liabilities REEERE 244,537 371,651
Total liabilities BEAE 397,484 550,534
Total equity and liabilities BERREE 2,161,473 2,294,032

The consolidated financial statements on pages 112 to 250 were BEE@R _ZT-—F=ZA+HhBIEF112E
approved by the Board of Directors on 19 March 2021 and were signed  250E Z 43 & M EWME - W H THEEREXFE

on its behalf. 2o
Xu Liang Li Jing
®RE =5
Director Director
EE EE

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be read in 3t 48 & Bf #5 AR %0 3% /& B2 5 B B 5% — 4 B9
conjunction with the accompanying Notes. i e



Balance at 1 January 2019 ZE-NF-A-BEH
Comprehensive income 2ENE
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(ER)/EH
Other comprehensive (loss)/income ~ E b2 (58) /K
Currengy translation difference ERREEE

BaEREREN
BENASRAEER

BEAMREAGRLA
REZREIAZAAE

Share of currency translation difference
of an associate by using equity method

Change in fair value on equity
instruments measured at fair value

through other comprehensive income 29

Changes in fair value of debt instruments B2 ARRRAAE
at fair value through other REZEBIAZAAE
comprehensive income %

Transfer to profit or loss on disposal of HEEBEMIANER

debt instrument at fair value through MEREIERIAR

other comprehensive income FHTERE
Other comprehensive loss for the year FRE2EEER
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for ~ £E2E(E18) /K%

the year

Transfer to retained eamings on deemed (R EEBL 2 ERE

disposal of equity instrument at fair BAAEREZREIA
value through other comprehensive KEEERARA
income

Redlassifcation adjustment to retained HE-BRELARENS

eamings on disposal of an associate BRRERERN
(Note (c) (GR)

Transactions with owners in their BEEAEREASD)
capacity as owners EHRE
Non-controling interests on step FIARER HRNE -

acquisition of a subsidiary HEBAR
Cancellation of ordinary shares (Note 30)  sE BB (Hfz£30)
Dissolution of a subsidiary FH-EHEAR
Deemed capital contribution from the BieRERRRTE
intermediate holding company
Subtotal 15t
Balance at 31 December 2019 ZE-AE+ZB=t-A
23

Share
capital
e
HK$'000
BETT

40,083

(237)

(237)

39,846

Share
premium
i &E
HK$'000
BT

710,228

Property
revaluation
resenve
NEEHEE
HK$'000
At

26,065

(18,673)

7392

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE — T - F+ - A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KRAREAELR

Investment  Contributed Share
revaluation surplus— Translation options
Tesenve Teserve Tesenve Tesenve
RAEMREE S\RREE HHEE BREGR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT AT BETn BT

(Note (a))

(Fiz¥(a))
(126) 115,576 (80,522) 686
- - (14,320) -
- - (1,027) -
(2,917) - - -
1,735 - - -
(1,022) - - -
(2,204) - (15,347) -
(2,204) - (15,347) -
2917 - - -
- - 17,670 -
587 115,576 (78,199) 686

Other
resene
At
HK$000
BETT
(Note (c))
ko)

44,580

44580

44580

Retained
eanings
RERA
HK$'000
BT

467,698

(7921)

(7921)

457,863

Sub-total

It
HK$000
AT

1,339,688

(7.921)
(14,320)

(1,027)

(2.917)

1735

(1,022)

(17,551)

(25472)

(3,647)

44,580

40933

1,355,149

Non-
controling
nterests
FiofiEa
HK$'000
BT

286,402

8,504
8177)

(343)

(4520)

3,984

98,395

(432)

97,963

388,349

Total
1

HK%EOOU
B

1,626,090

583
(18,497)

(1370)

(2.917)

1,735

(1,022)

(220m)

(21,488)

98,395
(3647)
(432)

44,580

138,89

1743498



Balance at 1 January 2020 ZRCEE--Os
Comprehensive income 2ENE
Profit for the year ERET
Other comprehensive income/(loss) B2 AU/ (58)
Currengy translation difference ERREEE
Share of currenqy tranglation difference  EBFRERAHE-H
of an associate by using equity method ~ BYE DA SBAEEE

Changes n fair value of debt instruments AR M 2ERERAAE

at fair value through other REZBHBIAZARE
comprehensive income 25

Transfer to profit or loss on disposal of HERBEMEARER
debt instruments at fair value though MERRIERIA
other comprehensive income KERZRRE

Other comprehensive income/{oss) for ~~ EE M2 ERE/(BE)
the year

Total comprehensive income(loss) for ~ £E2EW/ (58) A%
the year

Transactions with owners in their BEEAGIEBAAGR)E

capacity as owners fithzs
Dividend paid EfRE
Lapse of share options BRERN

Acquisition shares from non-controlling ~ REFERERRERD
Interests

Capital reduction in a subsidiary —-HHBARRE
Subtotal Nt
Balance at 31 December 2020 ZRZZETZAZT-H
]

Share
capital
s
HK$'000
BMTR

39,846

39,846

Share
premium
R EE
HK$000
NI

766,818

766,818

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE =—T =T F+ - A=+ —HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

Property  Investment
revaluation  revaluation
reserve reserve
NEERRE REERRR
HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT

1392 587

- (113)

- (29)

- (202)

- (202)

7392 385

ESACEZN. 1
Contributed Share
surplus  Translation ~ options
reserve  reseve  reserve
YABRRE RERR BRERS
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
EMTn BB E%Tx
(Note (a))
(B (a))
115,576 (78,199) 686
- 73498 -
- 3,954 -
- 11452 -
- 17452 -
- - (686)
- - (686)
115,576 (747) -

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying Notes.

Other
reserve
Rt GE
HKS'000
BT
(Note (¢))
(Hr&E(Q)

44,580

1258

7258

51838

Retained
eanings
REEX
HKS'000
BT

457,863

5,980

5,980

686

686

464,529

Sub-total

gt
HK$'000
BT

1,355,149

5,980
13,498

3,954

(113)

(29

71,250

83,230

1258

1258

1,445,637

Non-

controlling
interests Total
FERER &t
HKS'000  HKS'000
BT BRTR

388,349 1,743,498

12214 18,194
18,622 92,120

1319 5213

(113)

= (29
19941 97,191

32,155 115385

(4329) (4329)

(16,005) (8,747)
(81.818)  (81,818)

(102,152)  (94,894)

31835 1,763,989

Bh K FE S BB MY P 5 — BF 5O



For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE — T - F+ - A=+—HILFE

Notes:

(a

(b)

The contributed surplus reserve represents the difference between the
nominal value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group
reorganisation in 1991 over the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in
exchange, and the transfer and utilisation as mentioned in Note (b) below.

A special resolution was passed by shareholders of the Company at the special
general meeting of the Company held on 6 June 2008 and completed thereafter
that an amount of approximately HK$425,259,000 standing to the credit of the
share premium account of the Company as at 31 December 2007 be reduced,
with the credit arising there being transferred to the contributed surplus reserve
of the Company. Upon the said transfer becoming effective, an amount of
approximately HK$311,818,000 standing to the credit of the contributed surplus
reserve of the Company has been applied to eliminate the accumulated losses
of the Company as at 31 December 2007. The Company has complied with
the requirements of section 46(2) of The Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended). Details of which were set out in the circular of the Company dated 9
May 2008.

As at 31 December 2018, non-current asset classified as held for sale is measured
at the lower of its then carrying amount and fair value less costs of disposal.

The disposal of 40.78% equity interest in Global Digital Creations Holdings
Limited (“GDC") was completed on 8 January 2019. The difference between
the carrying amount of non-current asset classified as held for sale and the sales
proceeds, which amounted to HK$44,580,000 has been recognised in equity
as a deemed capital contribution from the intermediate holding company upon
completion of the Disposal with Shougang Holding. The property revaluation
reserve amounted to HK$18,673,000 and translation reserve amounted to
HK$17,670,000 derived from share of associate’s reserves in prior periods was
reclassified to retained earnings upon disposal.

GEX

BABRBBRBERE-NANL—FZEEEA -
ARBARBERBELR 2RO EELEESKRE
METZARBBRHEEMRE 2 Z8 & T XMW
)it BRERBA -

#,%gﬂiﬁﬁﬁaﬁﬁz¢“ﬂ%$%%
AL ARRAREBAB—BREIRZRILR
HEZRRFRAD R_ZTLHF+-A=
+*H$Qah@mE%Z$%§%%%%
425,259,000 T # BIR + FTE £ 2 ERAGEE
EARRZHABGBEHEE - R @B ER
% ARABABRBBEZERSBOEE
311,818,000t E AAIKIHEA R RN T F
+TZA=+—BZRFEE ARADETA
RE-NN—FRENEUEIEE]) B46(DEZH
T ABHBHIRARRBHA-TTENE
AANE 2K

RZZE-N\E+ZRA=+—H 28ERFHEL
ENFRDEEANRLERRIMESRER R ER D
ERARZBIEEE -

PERBREBASIERABR AR (RIREE )
40.78% B EEER T —NF—ANBARE
Ko nBARBELEZIERBEENEEESR
B RS I 2 I Z 588 44,580,000 B R
BEHMERLEEETKEEE=PERRBRE
FREERREEE - BRTHABEGEEZE QR

REEREENYESHRHEE18,673,0007T &
& X A%17,670,000t R EEHEEF H

BEREBRN -



Cash flows from operating activities
Cash used in operations
Interest paid
Income tax paid

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZE =—T =T F+ - A=+ —HILFE

REEHRERE
REFAR S
ERFE
BT THR

RETHFRAREFR

REEFHRERE

Proceeds from redemption of term deposits
with initial term over three months
Dividends received from an associate
Interest received
Proceeds from disposal of assets
held for sale
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant
and equipment and intangible asset
Net cash inflow from the acquisition of
a subsidiary, net of cash acquired

Payments for acquisition of shares of
a subsidiary

Payments for acquisition of an associate

Net cash flow from dissolution of an
associate

Payments for term deposits with initial
term over three months

Proceeds on disposal of debt instruments
at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Payments for property, plant and
equipment

Payments for intangible asset

Net cash generated from investing
activities

FE [ U)iR BARR HR B = & A
8 E B TF AT 1S IR
B —EEE R T2 RE

EF B
HERELEEEZAE
RIE
HEME - BB M HE N
NMEFEE 2 5308
WE—FHNBARZES
MAFRE R E WK
RI3R %)
WiE—ENBARIRDZ
(E=
U B — B & A R) 2 3R
R —EBE R F 2
REemEFHE
A EARR BB =@ A
ERFR 2R
HEFBHEMEmMKRE
ARnERBZEBHIA
Fr15 508

WE - BB RREBZ IR

BIEEZ R

REZBHREHREFR

Notes

B &E

34

33

2020

—s-%%

HK$'000
BT

(128,774)
(11,371)
(6,198)

(146,343)

1,888,015
1,863
10,636

1,882

(8,747)

1,667

(1,793,545)

15,506

(46)

117,231

2019

—ET-NF

HK$'000
BT

(222,456)
(25,563)
(6,443)

(254,462)

787,265

19,968

154,792

84,598

(85,526)

(882,053)
40,448

(954)
(208)

118,330



For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZE — T - F+ - A=+—HILFE

2020 2019
—ECEF —T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Cash flows from financing activities RMETHRERE
Repayment of bank borrowings BEBITIER (470,963) (102,602)
Proceeds from bank borrowings SRITIE KB PTSFIA 283,683 70,000
Repayment of lease liabilities ERHEAE (2,346) (2,346)
Payments to non-controlling interests BERE BN (81,818) -
Payments for share buy back R1DEE B 2 K - (3,647)
Net cash used in financing activities RETEFMARSTE (271,444) (38,595)
Net decrease in cash and cash ReRkBFEeEEEERD
equivalents R (300,556) (174,727)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of ~REHIZEEREESE
the year JEH 607,782 806,150
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes fERGE) s & 11,592 (23,641)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of RERZRERESEE
the year HH 318,818 607,782

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in  F 4R & IR 4 % 2 & FE B4 BE B B 5= — 0F B
conjunction with the accompanying Notes. i o



Shougang Concord Grand (Group) Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited
liability and its shares are listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its controlling shareholder,
which is defined under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange as a person which is entitled to exercise or
control the exercise of 30% or more of the voting power at general
meetings of an issuer, is Shougang Holding (Hong Kong) Limited
(“Shougang Holding”), a company incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability, and the ultimate holding company of Shougang
Holding is Shougang Group Co., Ltd., a company established in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the Company
are disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section to the annual
report.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its significant subsidiaries are provision of sale and
leaseback arrangements services, property leasing services, supply
chain management services, assets management and consultancy
services.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi (“RMB")
as the primary economic environment in which the Company’s
subsidiaries operate is the Mainland China (for the purpose of this
report, “Mainland China” refers to the mainland of the PRC and
does not include Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in thousands of units of Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$'000"), unless otherwise stated.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRS") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income and investment
properties which are carried at fair value.

BEROG(EB)ARRB(AREDS
—FRBAREIMRLNERRCAERA
A HBROEBEMERIAAERRAF
(B2 P E7 - ARBZERRERGR
BEMXMEFLTRAUNZEE 6%
REBEITAZBRRREG TR FIEHTTE
30% XA ERFER 2 AL) BEHZER
(FBE)BRAR(EMIER]D - —ARN
FBEMKIZZBRAR - &SR
ZREERARREMEBEERAR
R—HERPEARAME (THE )KL
ZRFE  RRRZEMMERNEEE
EH B U NARFRIATEMN]
R o

ARBR/—HEREZERRR - EEEH
BRARCEEXHRREHERERDE LY
R - MEHEERS - HEBEER
% BEEELFEARSE

HRARBNBAREEMENEEL
BERESTFEAMGAREMNS - [F
BAIETRE A TREEE - R
FIkEE)  RARAZGEEE /AR
TARED - BREBEHRBI - AT
BEABETL(BETTDZY -

RAEZEHEAMBREMERAZEIES
AABEREINMT - RABAHAIN - ZF
BREXFB2BRFRERER -

ARRZEEMHBEHRETDRESR
BEMAR(HESFMAR])
BOHMAEERBEMBREE
A((FEMBRE LD RBER
AlEGI (55622 ) By I 58 A 7€ 1 4R
B o IR A M MEIRE L KAOER
5 YHBEHEBREREANE
REzEREE  FEREMEEK
BSEANERECEREERER
REARZEMEERERT



The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

The Group has applied the following standards and
amendments for the first time for their annual reporting
period commencing 1 January 2020:

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8

BEGHERE VR REB G EAFERIR ZIER]

Amendments to HKFRS 3

BB GWEEREIN ZEF]

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

AR BMEEAZESR  BAGHEREIRR
BERMBWEERNETRZAEET

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018

—T - \EBREREEAER

The amendments listed above did not have any material
impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and
are not expected to significantly affect the current or
future periods.

EERBENBHREEMNGRES
MEmER  ARBETEASR
bt BEEENAGERALAEES
SR Z B2 R HI T - P aE4
BESRBZHERBEMRZ 6
SRJLAEFEHREMERERE
TEZEE -

AREFOR -_E-FF— A
—BRRcFEREHBAS
IRERA A T ZERI R AERT -

Definition of Material
BERHEE

Definition of a Business
EBHER

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
FIR AT

Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting
AERT B TSR & B AE 2R

EXPrHIEERT $ B ER R
RN CREYEBEMNERY
ERERMTIGEATELRH
FEEJQZ*QEHH [l o



Amendments to HKFRS 16
BB RS AR E

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

BB RE LR F R -
BB G EAFEI95 -
FEMBREERFTHR -
BRWHHREERFAHR K

1658 25T

BRIV BRELERF 1698 21E5]
Amendments to HKFRS 3
R B RS EREIR 2 1E5]

Amendments to HKAS 16

R ERFE 16 2 &7
Amendments to HKAS 37
B G ERIEI7H 2 EFT
Annual Improvements

FENE

Amendments to Accounting
Guideline 5

ERECEIE Y4 Ll

Covid-19-related Rent Concessions

FRAFAEHRRSNHESESR
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2
M REAENE

FPEER

Reference to the Conceptual Framework

PSR 2 feit

Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use

ME - BER&E  FRERRZRAZ
PSR I8

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling
a Contract

BIEAH - BITAaRZKRAR

Annual Improvements to HKFRS Standards
2018-2020

%-Sz‘%ﬁﬁ‘ﬁi&iﬁﬁu_ - N\F=x
—E_TFREFESCE

Merger Accounting for Common Control
Combinations

HRZESIEHOAHEDE

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on

or after

RT5 B #is H iz
FihZ &5t AR & &K

1 June 2020
—E-FF
NA—H

1 January 2021

—E -
—H—H

1 January 2022
B F
—A—H

1 January 2022

— — —

—A—H8
1 January 2022

—_F_—
—HA—H
1 January 2022
—EF-_—
—A—H

1 January 2022

—F— —

=

~A—H



Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

EEREBESR(CT_ZTF)

HKFRS 17

ERPBHHREERFE 175

Amendments to HKAS 1
BB ERE 1R 2EF]

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

BB HREERNE 105 &
BEGHERIF 28R 2 EFT

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on

or after

RT 5B #is H iz
Fth 2 &t BRI £ R

Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a
Term Loan that Contains a Repayment

1 January 2023

on Demand Clause

MBHERNZI - ERAHEHRER —T=F

EEBERNTHERNDE
Insurance Contracts
REEEHL

Classification of Liabilities as Current or

Non-current

BENIBERARBAIFRD

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an

Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture

—H—H

1 January 2023
—E-=F
—A—H

1 January 2023
—E_=F
—A—H

To be determined

REEZHEABENFRAERFZHEH FEE

BEHEHRA

Certain new accounting standards, amendments and
interpretations to standards have been published that
are not mandatory for 31 December 2020 reporting
periods and have not been early adopted by the Group.
These standards are not expected to have a material
impact on the entity in the current or future reporting
periods and on foreseeable future transactions.

AETHETEAURERZ
B LRECERG  HE
WIERZZEZZEF+ A=
+— B AR S HIRE 5 5l A K
DAREBWHEIERRN - 78
Az EEATSHEEBNA
45 HA R oK ok B3R 45 HA R A
MEAERARRSGEERN

B/ %8B
2=



Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity where the Group
is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power to direct the activities
of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between Group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the transferred asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries
have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of financial position respectively.

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control or joint
control. This is generally the case where the Group
holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting, after initially being
recognised at cost.
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Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition profits or losses of the investee in profit
or loss, and the Group’s share of movements in
other comprehensive income of the investee in other
comprehensive income. Dividends received or receivable
from associates are recognised as a reduction in the
carrying amount of the investment.

Where the Group’s share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest in
the entity, including any other unsecured long-term
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of equity-accounted investees have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments
is tested for impairment in accordance with the policy
described in Note 2.10.
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The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. A
change in ownership interest results in an adjustment
between the carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount of the adjustment to non-controlling interests
and any consideration paid or received is recognised in
a separate reserve within equity attributable to owners
of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of control
or significant influence, any retained interest in the
entity is remeasured to its fair value with the change
in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. This
fair value becomes the initial carrying amount for
the purposes of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to
another category of equity as specified or permitted by
applicable HKFRSs.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.
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The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for all business combinations, regardless of whether equity
instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

° fair values of the assets transferred;

o liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired
business;

o equity interests issued by the Group;

o fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangements; and

o fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with limited
exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest's
proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net identifiable
assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
The excess of the:
o consideration transferred;

o amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired
entity; and

o acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquired entity.

Over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair
value of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired,
the difference is recognised directly in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase.
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Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is
deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted
to their present value as at the date of exchange. The
discount rate used is the Group’s incremental borrowing
rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing could be
obtained from an independent financier under comparable
terms and conditions. Contingent consideration is classified
either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as
a financial liability are subsequently remeasured to fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value
at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising from such
remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The chief operating decision maker,
who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the Managing Director of the Company that makes
strategic decisions.
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ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in HK$. The
functional currency of the Company is RMB.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in
profit or loss. They are deferred in equity if they relate
to qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net
investment hedges or are attributable to part of the net
investment in a foreign operation.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings are presented in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income within finance costs. All other
foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a
net basis within administrative expenses.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was determined.
Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried
at fair value are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss. For example, translation differences on
non-monetary assets and liabilities such as equity
instruments held at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain
or loss and translation differences on non-monetary
assets such as equity instruments classified as fair value
through other comprehensive income are recognised in
other comprehensive income.
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The results and financial position of foreign operations
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

o assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

. income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are translated at the
dates of the transactions); and

o all resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of any net investment in foreign entities,
and of borrowings and other financial instruments
designated as hedges of such investments, are
recognised in other comprehensive income. When a
foreign operation is sold or any borrowings forming
part of the net investment are repaid, the associated
exchange differences are reclassified to profit or loss, as
part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at
the closing rate.
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On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over
a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of significant influence over an
associate that includes a foreign operation), all of the
currency translation differences accumulated in equity
in respect of that operation attributable to the owners
of the company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result
in the Group losing control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, the proportionate share
of accumulated currency translation differences are
re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are
not recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial
disposals (that is, reductions in the Group’s ownership
interest in associates that do not result in the Group
losing significant influence), the proportionate share of
the accumulated exchange difference is reclassified to
profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when
replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are
incurred.
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Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their cost or revalued amounts, net of their
residual values, over their estimated useful lives or, in the
case of leasehold improvements and certain leased plant and
eguipment, the shorter lease term as follows:

Buildings Over the shorter of terms of the
lease of the land or 50 years

Leasehold improvements  Over the shorter of terms of the
lease or 5 years

Motor vehicles 4 years
Furniture, fitting and 3 to 10 years
equipment

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.10).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Investment properties, principally the residential property
units, are held for long-term rental yields and are not
occupied by the Group. Investment property is initially
measured at cost, including related transaction costs and
where applicable borrowing costs. Subsequently, they are
carried at fair value. Changes in fair values are presented
in profit or loss as part of consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

WERERATE  UREMEH
ERAFEHR  AHMAEEMEREE
K& T B HEEREE &R RIRIA
TRERMASEERARERLS
B EReER) :

B¥ + b Bk 504F
(B s B%E)
MEmELE HHNSF(EEH
& BZE)
qE 45
RE-£E 3E10F
NG

SETIBEERTEREHNE
BEBREN - LEEEFER T
i -

WEEREESREMGATKES
BARY - % A R BRI (B A5 B0 B ORL
EHAREEHE(FIEE2.10) °

HE BB R BB AMEFRER
HEMET - THGEA2EKRER
B ©

BREME(EEREEMEEL) TS
AERHERAMESR - ATH
AEBEGER - REMENTIZKA
(B HE TR RE A9 3 5 A AR e 18 UK AR
(HEM))TE - Bi& - BEAR
BFtE - 2AEEBIERGEAEE
W R H—#B DT ABEER o



Goodwill is measured as described in Note 2.3.
Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that it might be impaired, and
is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include
the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity
sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for
the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is
made to those cash-generating units or groups of
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the business combination in which the goodwill
arose. The units or groups of units are identified at the
lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes, which is not larger than an
operating segment.

The acquired software platform is stated at cost
less accumulated amortisation and impairment loss.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate the cost over their estimated lives of
5 years.

Goodwill that has an indefinite useful life is not subject to
amortisation and is tested annually for impairment, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which
are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets
or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of
each reporting period.
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The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

° those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income
("OCI") or through profit or loss), and

. those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held
for trading, this will depend on whether the Group
has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment at fair
value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only
when its business model for managing those assets
changes.

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership.
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At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL"),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or
loss.

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are
three measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

o Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest are measured at amortised cost. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest rate
method. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
is recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in other gains, net together with
foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment
losses are presented as separate line item in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest, are
measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying
amount are taken through OCI, except for
the recognition of impairment gains or losses,
interest income and foreign exchange gains and
losses which are recognised in profit or loss.
When the financial asset is derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised
in OCl is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss and recognised in other gains, net. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest rate
method. Foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in other gains, net and impairment
expenses are presented as separate line item in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL.
A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at FVPL is recognised
in profit or loss and presented net within other
gains, net in the period in which it arises.
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Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL
are recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as applicable. Impairment
losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity
investments measured at FVOCI are not reported
separately from other changes in fair value.

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments at amortised cost and at FVOCI. The
impairment methodology applied depends on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the consolidated statement of financial position
where the Group currently has a legally enforceable right
to offset the recognised amounts, and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously. The Group has also entered into
arrangements that do not meet the criteria for offsetting
but still allow for the related amounts to be set off in certain
circumstances, such as bankruptcy or the termination of a
contract.
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Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods
sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business.
They are generally due for settlement within 30 to 90 days
and therefore all classified as current.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain
significant financing components, when they are recognised
at fair value. The group holds the trade receivables with
the objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and
therefore measures them subsequently at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement
of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on
hand and deposits held at call with financial institutions.

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from
the proceeds.

Where any Group company purchases the Company's
equity instruments, for example as the result of a share buy-
back plan, the consideration paid, including any directly
attributable incremental costs (net of income taxes) is
deducted from equity attributable to the owners of the
Company as treasury shares until the shares are cancelled or
reissued.

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year
which are unpaid. Other payables are presented as current
liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after
the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid
on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this
case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the
extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or
all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised
as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the
period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated statement
of financial position when the obligation specified in the
contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has
been extinguished or transferred to another party and the
consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred
or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as finance
costs.

Where the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated and
the entity issues equity instruments to a creditor to extinguish
all or part of the liability (debt for equity swap), a gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss, which is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability and the fair value of the equity instruments issued.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.
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General and specific borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of
time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

Borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period in the countries where the Company and
its subsidiaries and associates operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.
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Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and
are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

The deferred tax liability in relation to investment property
that is measured at fair value is determined assuming the
property will be recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable that
future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those
temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount and
tax bases of investments in foreign operations where the
Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is
a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and where the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities
are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to
offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case,
the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.
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Short-term employee benefits are recognition at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid as and when employees rendered the services.
All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an
expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits the
inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employee (such as wages and salaries, annual leave and
sick leaves) after deducting any amount already paid.

The Group operates a defined contribution plans for
its employees in Hong Kong and Mainland China.
A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under
which the Group pays fixed contributions to publicly
or privately administrated pension insurance plans
on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The
Group has no legal or constructive obligation to
pay further contributions if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating
to employee services in the current and prior periods.
The contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future
payments is available.

In addition, pursuant to the relevant regulations of the
PRC government, the subsidiaries in Mainland China
participate in local municipal government retirement
benefits schemes (the “Schemes”), whereby the
subsidiaries in the PRC are required to contribute a
certain percentage of the basic salaries of its employees
to the Schemes to fund their retirement benefits. The
local municipal governments undertake to assume the
retirement benefits obligations of those employees of
the subsidiaries in the PRC. Contributions under the
Schemes are charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as incurred.
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The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses and profit-sharing based on a formula that
takes into consideration the profit attributable to the
Company'’s shareholders after certain adjustments.
The group recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created a constructive obligation.

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the group before the normal retirement
date, or when an employee accepts voluntary
redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits at the earlier of the
following dates: (a) when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits; and (b) when
the entity recognises costs for a restructuring that is
within the scope of HKAS 37 and involves the payment
of terminations benefits. In the case of an offer made
to encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination
benefits are measured based on the number of
employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits
falling due more than 12 months after the end of the
reporting period are discounted to present value.

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events,
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.
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Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s
best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount
rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.

Revenue is measured at the transaction price which is the
amount of consideration to which the Group is entitled to in
exchange for transferring promised services or goods to the
customer. The Group allocates the transaction price to each
performance obligation based on the relative standalone
selling prices. Revenue for each performance obligation is
then recognised when the Group satisfies the performance
obligation by transferring the promised goods or services to
the customer.

The Group enters into sale and leaseback arrangements
with individual customers, in which, the Group acts
as buyer-lessor and the customers act as seller-lessee.
As the transfer of the asset does not qualify as a
sale in accordance with HKFRS 15, the transaction
is in substance a collateral financing and the Group
recognises a receivable from sale and leaseback
arrangements and related interest revenue is recognised
over the lease period using the effective interest rate
method.
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Property leasing income from investment properties is
recognised on a straight line basis over the terms of the
respective leases.

Consultancy service income is generated from advisory
services to the customers in relation to the financing
activities. The revenue is recognised either on a straight
line basis or at the point of performance obligation
have been satisfied base on the contract terms.

Revenue from supply chain management services is
generated from the provision of logistic and agency
services in PRC. The revenue is recognised at the point
of performance obligation have been satisfied.

Dividends are received from financial assets measured at FVPL
and FVOCI. Dividends are recognised as other income in profit
or loss when the right to receive payment is established. This
applies even if they are paid out of pre-acquisition profits,
unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the
cost of an investment. In this case, the dividend is recognised
in OCI if it relates to an investment measured at FVOCI.
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Basic earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by dividing:

. the profit/(loss) attributable to owners of the
company, excluding any costs of servicing equity
other than ordinary shares, and

o the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for
bonus elements in ordinary shares issued during
the year and excluding treasury shares.

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share adjusts the figures
used in the determination of basic earnings/(loss) per
share to take into account:

. the after-income tax effect of interest and other
financing costs associated with dilutive potential
ordinary shares, and

o the weighted average number of additional
ordinary shares that would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares.
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Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is
available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components.
The Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
the lease and non-lease components based on their relative
stand-alone prices. However, for leases of real estate for
which the Group is a lessee, it has elected not to separate
lease and non-lease components and instead accounts for
these as a single lease component.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other
than the security interests in the leased assets that are held
by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured
on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net
present value of the following lease payments:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments),
less any lease incentives receivable

o variable lease payment that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group
is reasonably certain to exercise that option, and
payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement of
the liability.
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The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
which is generally the case for leases in the Group, the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate
that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the
funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the
right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with
similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group

o where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions since
third party financing was received, and

o makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g term,
country, currency and security.

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available to the
individual lessee (through recent financing or market data)
which has a similar payment profile to the lease, then the
group entities use that rate as a starting point to determine
the incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the
lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each

period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

o the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

o any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received

. any initial direct costs, and

L restoration costs.
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Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter
of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-
line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain to exercise a
purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over
the underlying asset’s useful life. While the Group revalues its
land and buildings that are presented within property, plant
and equipment, it has chosen not to do so for the right-of-
use buildings held by the Group.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and
all leases of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-
line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases
are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less without a
purchase option.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a
lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
underlying asset and recognised as expense over the lease
term on the same basis as lease income. The respective leased
assets are included in the statement of financial position
based on their nature. The Group did not need to make any
adjustments to the accounting for assets held as lessor as a
result of adopting the new leasing standard.

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared,
being appropriately authorised and no longer at the
discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the reporting
period but not distributed at the end of the reporting period.

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary
to match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.
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Interest income from financial assets at FVPL is included in
the change in fair value of FVPL.

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost (other
than sale and leaseback arrangements) and financial assets
at FVOCI calculated using the effective interest method is
recognised in profit or loss as part of other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except
for financial assets that subsequently become credit-impaired.
For credit-impaired financial assets the effective interest rate
is applied to the net carrying amount of the financial asset
(after deduction of the loss allowance).

The Group's financial instruments include debt instruments
at FVOCI, financial assets at FVPL, receivables under sale
and leaseback arrangements and trade and bill receivables,
deposits and other receivables, term deposits with initial
term over three months, cash and cash equivalents, secured
bank borrowings, other payables, security deposits received
and other deposits received. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include market risk (i.e. foreign
exchange risk, cash flow and fair value interest rate risk and
other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.
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The normal operations and investments of
the Group are mainly in Hong Kong and
Mainland China, with revenue and expenditure
denominated in HK$ and RMB which are primarily
transacted using functional currencies of the
respective group entities. The Group is exposed
to the US Dollar (“US$"”) denominated cash and
cash equivalents and the debt instrument at fair
value through other comprehensive income.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company
(the “Directors”), HK$ are pegged against with
US$ under the Linked Exchange Rate System,
and therefore, the Group does not have any
significant foreign exchange risk in respect of
transactions or balances denominated in US$.
Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis is performed.

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk due to the fluctuation of market interest
rate on variable-rate receivables under sale and
leaseback arrangements, cash in banks, and
secured bank borrowings as disclosed. It is the
Group'’s policy to keep majority of its receivables
under sale and leaseback arrangements and bank
borrowings at floating rates of interest so as to
minimise the fair value interest rate risk.
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The Group is also exposed to fair value interest
rate risk in relation to variable-rate receivables
under sale and leaseback arrangements and bank
borrowings.

The Group currently does not use any derivative
contracts to hedge its exposure to interest rate
risk. However, the management will consider
hedging significant interest rate exposure should
the need arise.

At 31 December 2020, if interest rates had been
50 basis points (2019: 50 basis points) higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s pre-tax profit for the year ended
31 December 2020 would increase/decrease by
approximately HK$1,141,000 (2019: pre-tax
profit would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$211,000).
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The Group is exposed to equity price risk
through its investments in listed bonds and
equity securities. The management manages
this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risks. The Group’s
equity price risk is mainly concentrated on equity
instruments of entities operating in Hong Kong
which are quoted in stock exchanges in Hong
Kong. The Group currently does not use any
derivative contracts to hedge its exposure to other
price risk. Management closely monitors the price
risk and will consider hedging the risk exposure
should that needs arise.

At 31 December 2020, if the prices of the
respective equity instruments at fair value through
profit or loss had been 10% (2019: 10%)
higher/lower, pre-tax profit for the year ended
31 December 2020 would increase/decrease
by HK$285,000 (2019: pre-tax profit would
increase/decrease by HK$258,000) as a result of
the changes in fair value of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss.

The Group's exposure to other price risk for debt
instruments at FVOClI is not included in the above
analysis as the management considers that such
exposure is insignificant.
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Credit risk arises from the cash at banks, debt
instrument at fair value through other comprehensive
income, term deposits with initial term over three
months, trade and bill receivables, deposits and other
receivables as well as credit exposure to receivables
under sale and leaseback arrangements.

In order to minimise the credit risk, management
has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts.

Before accepting any new customers, the Group
would assess the credit quality of each potential
customer and define limits for each customer.
The Group also demands certain customers to
place security deposits and/or pledge assets with
the Group at the time the sale and leaseback
arrangements is entered into. The Group would
also review the repayment history of customers
payments for each customers with reference to
the repayment schedule from the date of sale and
leaseback was initially granted up to the reporting
date to determine the recoverability of receivables
under sale and leaseback arrangements.
Furthermore, the Group would assess and review
the fair value of the pledged assets continuously
to ensure the value of the relevant collateral
could well cover the borrowings granted to the
customers and any outstanding receivables under
sale and leaseback arrangements.

The credit quality of trade and bill receivables
as well as the deposits and other receivables
has been assessed with reference to historical
information about the counterparties default
rates and financial position of the counterparties.
The Group considers that credit risk associated
with deposits and other receivables is low with
reference to historical information about the
counterparties default rates.
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The Group applies expected credit loss (“ECL")
model for impairment assessment. The Group
considers the probability of default upon initial
recognition of asset and whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk on an
ongoing basis. Certain receivable with significant
credit risk have been credit impaired as at 31
December 2020 and 2019. To assess whether
there is a significant increase in credit risk, the
Group compares the risk of a default occurring
on the asset as at the year ended date with the
risk of default as at the date of initial recognition.
It considers available reasonable and supportive
forward-looking information, especially the
following indicators are incorporated:

o internal credit rating
o external credit rating

o actual or expected significant adverse
changes in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause a
significant change to the counter party’s
ability to meet its obligation

o actual or expected significant changes in
the operating results of the same counter

party
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significant changes in the value of the
collateral supporting the obligation or in the
quality of third-party guarantees or credit
enhancements

significant changes in the expected
performance and behaviour of the counter
party, including changes in the payment
status of customers in the Group and
changes in the operating results of the
counter party.

ECL model for the receivables under sale and
leaseback arrangements, as summarised below:

The receivables under sale and leaseback
arrangements that are not credit-impaired
on initial recognition are classified in “Stage
1" and have its credit risk continuously
monitored by the Group. The expected
credit loss is measured on a 12-month basis.
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If a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition is identified, the financial
instrument is moved to “Stage 2" but is
not yet deemed to be credit-impaired. The
expected credit loss is measured on lifetime
basis.

If the financial instrument is credit-impaired,
the financial instrument is then moved
to “Stage 3”. The expected credit loss is
measured on lifetime basis.

In Stages 1 and 2, interest income is
calculated on the gross carrying amount
(without deducting the loss allowance). If a
financial asset subsequently becomes credit-
impaired (Stage 3), the Group is required
to calculate the interest income by applying
the effective interest method in subsequent
reporting periods to the amortised cost
of the financial asset (the gross carrying
amount net of loss allowance) rather than
the gross carrying amount.
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ECL model for the receivables under supply chain
management services, as summarised below:

The receivables under supply chain
management services includes the bill
receivables and the other receivables in
relation to the purchase cost paid on behalf
of the customers.

The receivables that is not credit-impaired
on initial recognition is classified in “Stage
1" and has its credit risk continuously
monitored by the Group. The expected
credit loss is measured on a 12-month basis.

If a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition is identified, the financial
instrument is moved to “Stage 2" but is
not yet deemed to be credit-impaired. The
expected credit loss is measured on lifetime
basis.

If the financial instrument is credit-impaired,
the financial instrument is then moved
to “Stage 3”. The expected credit loss is
measured on lifetime basis.
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The impairment of the receivables under sale
and leaseback arrangements was provided based
on the “three-stages” model by referring to the
changes in credit quality since initial recognition.

The key judgements and assumptions adopted by
the Group in addressing the requirements of the
standard are discussed below:

The Group considers the receivables to have
experienced a significant increase in credit
risk when backstop criteria have been met.
A backstop is applied and the receivables
under sale and leaseback arrangements
considered to have experienced a significant
increase in credit risk if the borrower is past
due on its contractual payments.

The Group defines a financial instrument
as in default, when the borrower is more
than 90 days past due on its contractual
payments or the counterparty is in the
process of liquidation or insolvency.
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The ECL is measured on either a 12-month
or lifetime basis depending on whether
a significant increase in credit risk has
occurred since initial recognition or whether
an asset is considered to be credit-impaired.
The ECL is the discounted product of the
Probability of Default (“PD"), Exposure at
Default (“EAD") and Loss Given Default
("LGD").

The calculation of ECL incorporates forward-
looking information. The forward-looking
factor included the market conditions
and economic growth. The Group has
performed historical analysis and identified
the key economic variables impacting credit
risk and ECL for the receivable portfolio.
Judgement has been applied in this process
of determining the key economic variables
and their associated impact in the loss rate.
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The credit risk on term deposits with initial term
over three months and bank balances are limited
because the counterparties are banks with high
credit ratings assigned by independent credit-
rating agencies.

The Group only invests in debt securities with
low credit risk. The Group’s debt instruments
at FVOCI mainly comprise listed bonds that are
graded in the high credit rating and therefore are
considered to be low credit risk investments.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by
geographical locations is mainly in Mainland
China, which accounted for 100% (2019: 100%)
of the receivables under sale and leaseback
arrangements as at 31 December 2020 and 2019.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by
related parties accounted for 50% (2019: 75%)
of the receivables under sale and leaseback
arrangements as at 31 December 2020 and 2019.
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As at 31 December 2020 as 34% (2019: 27%)
and 98% (2019: 99%) of the total receivables
under sale and leaseback arrangements was
due from the Group's largest sale and leaseback
customer and the five largest sale and leaseback
customers. The Group’s five largest sale and
leaseback customers are spread across diverse
industries such as manufacturing industries and
property development. Over 99% (2019: 99%) of
balance of the sale and leaseback customers have
good repayment history with no record of late
payment. For those sale and leaseback customers
with late payment, the management of the Group
has delegated a team to monitor the level of
exposure to ensure that follow up actions and/or
corrective actions and/or legal actions are taken
promptly to lower the risk exposure or to recover
the overdue balances. Furthermore, the Group
would negotiate with certain customers with
late payment by means of debt restructuring, to
recover the overdue debts by instalments.

For some receivables under sale and leaseback
arrangements the Group may obtain security in
the form of guarantees, term deposits, deeds of
undertaking, pledged of land and building as well
as secured over the leased asset which can be
called upon if the counterparty is in default under
the terms of the agreement.
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The Group has four types of financial assets that
are subject to the ECL model:

. receivables under sale and leaseback
arrangements;

. trade and bill receivables;

. debt investments carried at FVOCI, and

deposits and other receivables

While cash and cash equivalents are also subject
to the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the
identified impairment loss was immaterial.

As part of the Group’s credit risk management,
the Group regularly monitors the internal credit
rating based on available information at each
reporting date for its receivables under sale and
leaseback arrangements. The following table
provides information about the exposure to
credit risk and ECL for receivables under sale and
leaseback arrangements as at 31 December 2020
and 2019.
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The Group writes off a receivable under sale
and leaseback arrangements when there is
information indicating that the sale and leaseback
borrower is in severe financial difficulty and there
is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the
sale and leaseback borrower has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, whichever occurs earlier.

As at 31 December 2020

Internal credit rating

RESEC G

A3 to Aaa
A3ZAaa
B3 to Baal
B3%Baal
C to Caal
C%ECaal

Credit impaired
EERE

12-month or
lifetime ECL

12MEAZ2H
RHGEEES

12-month ECL
(A AEHEEER
12-month ECL
A ATEHEEER
12-month ECL
NEAEREEESE

Stage

&5

Stage 1
F—&
Stage 1
F—&
Stage 1
F—

Stage 3
E=R

Average
loss rate

FHRAER

0.05%

0.30%

3.16%

EEEMBEREREM
fERARBRBREMEA
I 4 B 7] B KB HI A
BRT - flanEREE
ERARBRIEEAN
WERFR (AREH
EERE)  AEES®
BERMBELZHETZ
JEWRIA M 35 o

RIEZEF+=ZA=
+—H

Gross  Impairment

carrying loss
amount allowance
2020 2020
—EBCER —E-EF
REAE RESERE
HK$'000 HK$’000
BETR BETR
691,760 (320)
671,252 (2,017)
20,418 (644)
1,383,430 (2,981)
19,451 (19,451)

1,402,881 (22,432)



As at 31 December 2019

Internal credit rating

REEETR

A3 to Aaa
A3ZAaa
B3 to Baal
B3ZBaal

Credit impaired
EERE

12-month or
lifetime ECL
AER %S
BHEEER

12-month ECL
RMEATEHEEER
12-month ECL
NEAEGREEESRE

Stage

Gl

Stage 1
F—/&
Stage 1
F—

Stage 3
E=/

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019, there is no movement between stage 1,

stage 2 and stage 3.

During the year, there was a reversal of
impairment provision on receivables under sale
and leaseback arrangements of HK$5,887,000
(2019: HK$1,811,000) recognised in profit or

loss.

Average
loss rate

T EKE

0.07%

2.50%
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Gross Impairment
carrying loss
amount allowance

2019 2019

“E-WF ZE-NF
REAE RESBRE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BRI
970,397 (690)
319,830 (8,006)
1,290,227 (8,696)
50,557 (40,892)
1,340,784 (49,588)
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The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for
all trade receivables.

Given the track record of regular repayment
of trade receivables and good credit profiles
of customers, the Directors are of the opinion
that the risk of default by these customers is
not significant, taking into account forward-
looking information on macroeconomic factors.
Therefore, expected credit loss rate of trade
receivables is assessed to be insignificant.

All of the Group’s debt investments at FVOCI
are considered to have low credit risk, and the
loss allowance recognised during the period
was therefore limited to 12-month expected
losses. Management consider “low credit risk”
for listed bonds to be an investment grade credit
rating with at least one major rating agency.
Other instruments are considered to be low
credit risk where they have a low risk of default
and the issuer has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near
term.

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents and credit facilities deemed adequate by
the management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of
bank borrowings and ensures compliance with loan
covenants.
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The following table discloses the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest dates on which the Group can be required
to pay. Specifically, bank borrowings with a repayment
on demand clause are included in the earliest time band
regardless of the probability of the banks choosing to
exercise their rights. The maturity dates for other non-
derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows
are floating rates, the undiscounted amount is derived
from weighted average interest rate at the end of
reporting period.

Weighted On demand
average or less than
interestrate 3 months
mE  RERKZR
HHE  FE=fEA
% HK$'000
BETR

Non-derivative finance FTELRER

liabilities
Other payables AR IE - 4,880
Security deposits RERS 5.00 =
Lease liabilities BEERE 432 586
Secured bank borrowings BEBRTES 436 95,904
As at 31 December 2020 R-2=%%

t-B=t+-AR 101,370

3 months
to 1 year
=f8A
B-f
HK$'000
BETR

13,231
5952
1,369

55,942

76,494

TREBEAKEITESR
BEZHTAHIHAE - 1t
RIOIRBEAREBER AR ER
BEeRMABIRFAMZ
ABBRBASRERE - A8
mE - THRITETEA AL
BEITEEERN  ARAR
EREERIGERZRITERG
AR FREEE - HM3E
TEeRABEZIHAS
HEEFRAH - Lk RBFER
ERASHERE - HH L
MERFHMNE - QRS
SRR M E A RE 2 I
FHMEGFE -

Total
1-5 undiscounted  Carrying
years  cash flows amount
- AERRE
BRI RESH RAEE
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BEBTR  EBTx
- 18,111 18,111
6,250 12,202 11,904
- 1,955 1,917
156,132 307,978 290,303
162,382 340,246 322,235



Weighted ~ On demand
average  or less than
interest rate 3 months
Mg RERER
THHE  AR=EA
% HK$'000
BETT

Non-derivative finance FTESREE

liabilities
Other payables EtER A - 8,245
Security deposits RERS 5.00 15,281
Lease liabilities HEER 425 586
Secured bank borrowings BHEBFTER 5.21 183,793
As at 31 December 2019 RZZ-NE

+-A=1-H 207,905

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause
are included in the “on demand or less than 3 months”
time band in the above maturity analysis. As at 31
December 2020 and 2019, the aggregate principal
amounts of these bank borrowings amounted to
HK$78,170,000 and HK$150,950,000 respectively.
Taking into account the Group's financial position,
the Directors believe that it is probable that the banks
will not exercise their discretionary rights to demand
immediate repayment. The Directors believe that these
bank borrowings will be repaid in accordance with
the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements.

3 months
to 1 year
=f8A
F-F
HKS$'000
BETT

207
5618
1,760

127,198

134,783

Total
1-5  undiscounted Carrying
years  cash flows amount
- RERRE
FIE  RELE REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT Akt BBt
- 8,452 8,452
8,848 29,747 29,326
1,955 4,301 4128
181,711 492,702 465,557
192,514 535,202 507,463
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The following table details the Group’s aggregate
principal and interest cash outflows for bank
borrowings (with a repayment on demand clause)
based on scheduled repayments. To the extent that
interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted
amount is derived from weighted average interest rate
at the end of reporting period.

Weighted
average
interest  Less than
rate 3 months
mig iy
HRE =fR
%  HK$'000
BB
Secured bank borrowings with HiEBREXER
repayment on demand clause 2B &
RITER
As at 31 December 2020 R-BZ5%
t-A=t+-A 261 71,701
As at 31 December 2019 RZZE-n%
+-A=t+-H 485 144246

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders, to support the
Group's stability and growth, and to strengthen the Group’s
financial management capability. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

3 months
to 1 year
=faA
B-F
HK$'000
BETT

2,274

2,419
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REEXR(AREREERK
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Total
1-5 Over contractual ~ Carrying
years  5Syears cashflows  amount

- R
EREE EENE REAE  BEE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BETT BETR AT BT
5,520 - 79,495 78,170
8,978 - 155643 150,950
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The Directors review the capital structure regularly and
manage its capital structure to ensure an optimal capital
structure and shareholders’ returns, taking into consideration
the future capital requirements of the Group, projected
operating cash flows, projected capital expenditures and
projected strategic investment opportunities. The Directors
monitor capital mainly using gearing ratio and current ratio.
These ratios as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 were as

follows:

Total borrowings
Total equity (Note i)
Gearing ratio (%) (Note ii)

Current assets
Current liabilities
Current ratio (%)

The Directors considered that the Group maintained healthy
capital as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 as the Group has
excess of current assets over current liabilities.

Notes:

(i) Total equity equals to all capital and reserves of the Group (i)

including non-controlling interests.

(ii) Gearing ratio equals total interesting bearing borrowings divided (i)

by total equity and multiplied by 100%.

EHhRMT -
2020
e
HK$’000
BET T
BB 290,303
wa vz (P FED 1,763,989
& E A EE(%) (D) 16
MENEE 1,118,873
mEIaE 244,537
BN (%) 458

FIR@ER -
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2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
BT

465,557
1,743,498
27

1,134,802
371,651
305
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This section explains the judgements and
estimates made in determining the fair values
of the financial instruments that are recognised
and measured at fair value in the consolidated
financial statements. To provide an indication
about the reliability of the inputs used in
determining fair value, the Group has classified
its financial instruments into the three levels
prescribed under the accounting standards. An
explanation of each level follows underneath the
table.

The Group’s financial assets that are measured at
fair values at 31 December 2020:

CHEE
BRBEZRERAR
BEREZE/
BE
FREMEERE
BAREREYZ
EHIA

Financial assets
Financial assets at FVPL

Debt instruments at FVOC|

Level 1
F-&
HK$’000
BB

2,847

15,886

18,733

Level 2
ot
HK$'000
BETR

AEBEREERA M
BHREFIZ DA ERER
FETENEBT AR
S B PR B H B B fh
it REAAREER
AREHGABENASE
- AEEEHESRE
TADBEREERT
BB =ERR - F&R
RIE BRI TR

RZE-_FF+-_A=
+—BAREBEURARE

FECEREBE
Level 3 Total
FE=R @gt

HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BET T
- 2,847
= 15,886

- 18,733



The Group's financial assets that are measured at
fair values at 31 December 2019:

Financial assets
Financial assets at FVPL

Debt instruments at FVOC|

CHEE
BRBEZRERR
BEREZE/
BiE
FREMEERE
BAREREYZ
EHIA

There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3
during the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019:

Nil).

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into
and out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end

of the reporting period.

Level 1
F—)
HK$'000
BETT

2,575

31,676

34,251

R-B-NAF+-A=
T—HAKENURARE

FIECEREBE
Level 3 Total
E=R st

HK$'000 HK$'000
AETT  ABTR

- 2,575

- 31,676

- 34,251

HE-_Z-ZTF+=HA
—+—HIEFEF—
B _BRE=ZRZ
M EEE(ZT—A
F ) o

AEBBR RN
BERRRIABERER
Rl R ENEARE
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Level 1:

Level 2:

The fair value of financial instruments
traded in active markets (such as
publicly traded debt, and equity
securities) is based on quoted market
prices at the end of the reporting
period. The quoted market price
used for financial assets held by the
Group is the current bid price. These
instruments are included in level 1.

The fair value of financial instruments
that are not traded in an active
market is determined using valuation
techniques which maximise the use
of observable market data and rely
as little as possible on entity-specific
estimates. If all significant inputs
required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included
in level 2.
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Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs
is not based on observable market
data, the instrument is included in level
3. This is the case for unlisted equity
instruments.

In relation with debt instruments at FVOCI
and financial assets at FVPL, the fair values are
determined by using quoted market prices. In
relation with equity instrument at FVOCI, the
fair value was determined by income approach.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

Some of the Group’s financial assets are
measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. The following table gives
information about how the fair values of these
financial assets are determined (in particular, the
valuation technique and inputs used), as well as
the level of the fair value hierarchy into which the
fair value measurements are categorised (levels 1
to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to
the fair value measurements is observable.
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Financial assets

TREE

Financial assets at FVPL
FRBRREANERE
LEREE

Debt instruments at FVOC|
BAREMZAREELR
BEREZERKIA

Fair value as at

|

31 December
2020
R=B=%fF
+ZF=1-H

Listed equity
securities:

= in Hong Kong:
HK$2,847,000
EHRARS
-REE:
%12,847,0007T

Listed bonds:

= in Hong Kong:
HK$15,886,000
L%
-RER:

7 15,886,0007

31 December
2019
215

R
“A=t-A

t-A
Listed equity
securities:

= in Hong Kong:
HK$2,575,000
FTRAES
-REE
72,575,000

Listed bonds:
= in Hong Kong:
HK$31,676,000

rifE%
-REE
75%31,676,00070

Fair value
hierarchy

RABRE

Level 1
F-R

Level 1
F-R

Valuation technique

and key inputs
RERHR
TERARE

Quoted bid pricesin an

active market

i3 Al VAN

Quoted bid pricesin an

active market

REMSHREAE

Relationship of
unobservable inputs
to fair value
EEHERAYE
BAREZERE

N/A
TEm

N/A
TEA



The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires the
use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal
the actual results. Management also needs to exercise judgement
in applying the Group's accounting policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that may have a financial impact on the Group and
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The provision for expected credit losses of receivables under
sale and leaseback arrangements is based on assumptions
about risk of default and expected loss rates. The impairment
loss recognised or reversed is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows with the consideration
of expected future credit loss of the respective financial
instrument.

The Group applies a three-stage impairment model to
calculate the expected credit losses and the impairment
model that involved significant judgement and assumption
from the management. In determining the credit risk stage
of each borrower, the Group takes into consideration
the credit profiles, historical repayment patterns, publicly
available information of these borrowers, reports from
independent credit rating agencies and forward looking
factors such as market conditions and economic growth.
The Group measures expected credit losses based on
individual assessment of each borrower, after considering
their credit profile with reference to credit ratings assigned
by independent credit-rating agencies. Judgement is required
to determine whether a borrower experienced significant
increase in credit risk.
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The Group tests whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment on an annual basis. For the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019, the recoverable amount of cash-
generating units (“CGUs") was determined based on value-
in-use calculations which require the use of assumptions.
The calculations use cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a five-year
period.

Details of impairment charge, key assumptions and impact of
possible changes in key assumptions are disclosed in Note 18.

Significant judgements are required in determining the
provision for income tax. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such difference will impact the income
tax and deferred income tax provision in the period in which
such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences are recognised when management considers to
be probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised. The outcome
of their actual utilisation may be different.
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Information reported to the Managing Director, being the chief
operating decision maker (“CODM"), for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses on
types of services provided. No operating segments identified by
the CODM have been aggregated in arriving at the reportable
segments of the Group.

The Group is currently organised into four operating divisions: sale
and leaseback arrangements services, property leasing services,
assets management and consultancy services and supply chain
management services.

Sale and leaseback arrangements service is engaging in collateral
financing activities. Property leasing service is engaging in rental of
properties. Assets management and consultancy service is engaging
in the provision of referral and corporate financial advisory services.
Supply chain management service is engaging in the provision of
logistic and agency services.

Segment results represent the profit or loss of each segment
without allocation of central administration costs, gain on disposal
of debt instruments at FVOCI, reversal for impairment losses in
debt instruments at FVOCI, changes in fair value of financial assets
at FVPL, finance costs, and share of profit of associates. This is
the measure reported to the CODM for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.
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The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by
operating and reportable segments. Segment revenue reported
above represents revenue generated from external customers.

There were no inter-segment sales in the current and prior years.

During the year ended
31 December 2020

Revenue under sale and
leaseback arrangements
Revenue from supply chain
management services
Property leasing income
Consultancy service income

Segment revenue

Segment results

BE-2-FF
T=A=t-H
LLFE

EREBR
BTz
KEfEEEE
R 2 Wz
MEHERA
RIS U

Sale and
leaseback
arrangements
services
E&EH
ZHRE
HK$'000
BETT

78,691

78,691

65,976

Property
leasing
services
/ES
HERK
HK$'000
BB

339

339

(970)

T ARTEEREERAZRY HE D
ZWRREEDN - Ll 2W 2z HEIK
@EIRBINARP - RAFERBESF
SN0 EB 2 R SHE o
Assets
management
and  Supply chain
consultancy management
services services Total
EEEER ftrEgE
AR ERRK st
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

BETL  BmTR  BMTR

- - 78,691

- 4,634 4,634

- - 339
1,054 660 1,714
1,054 5,294 85,378
(5,259) 2,431 62,178



During the year ended
31 December 2019

Revenue under sale and
leaseback arrangements
Entrusted loan payment
interest income
Property leasing income
Consultancy service
income
- recognised point in
time
= recognised over time

Segment revenue

Segment results

BE-_Z-N&
+=A=+-H
LEE

EREHELTH
BTz e

REEFFENE

LN
MEHEWA
A ARBIA

- KRB
w2
- BRI

Bl

W
B

NEEE

Sale and
leaseback
arrangements
services
Ei&EME
ZHERRTS
HK$'000
BT T

71,568

33

71,601

48,331

Property
leasing
services
IS
HE R
HK$ 000
AETT

573

573

2,065

Assets
management
and
consultancy
services
BEERRK
H R
HK$'000
BT
(Restated)
(E=7)

4,812

4,812

(305)

Supply chain
management
services
fHtpese
BB RG
HK$'000
AT
(Restated)
(E=5)

716

716

(2,070)

Total

st
HK$'000
BT

71,568

33
573

4,812
716

77,702

48,021



Segment results

Unallocated

Central administration costs

Changes in fair value of financial assets at
FVPL

Gain on disposal of debt instruments at
FVOCI

Other income (Note)

Reversal for impairment losses in debt
instruments at FVOCI

Finance costs

Share of profit of associates

Profit before tax

Note:

Unallocated other income represents interest income from debt instruments at
FVOCI and bank deposits held by investment holding companies and government
grant received from the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative

Region under the Employment Support Scheme.
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BRE Ak AR

JEAG BN T ZHEF

B B A A

BYaE

2020
—g-%%F

—_—

HK$°000
BT T

62,178

(29,648)

272

29
2,711

29

(1,676)
1,258

35,153

[ T AER 2 BT AR B o

2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
BT T
48,021

(36,422)

204

1,022
5,885

76

(5,987)
2,614

15,413
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The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities by

operating and reportable segment:

Segment assets

Sale and leaseback arrangements services
Supply chain management services
Property leasing services

Assets management and consultancy services

Total segment assets
Interest in associates
Debt instruments at FVOCI

Financial assets at FVPL

Term deposits with initial term over three
months
Other unallocated assets

Consolidated assets

Segment liabilities

Sale and leaseback arrangements services
Supply chain management services
Property leasing services

Assets management and consultancy services

Total segment liabilities
Unallocated secured bank borrowings
Other unallocated liabilities

Consolidated liabilities

AEEEERBEST
2020
—E-EH
HK$’'000
BET T
DEWEE

E&BALERE 1,576,469
e E 1R RS 274,395
Y E T E RS 24,718
BETENARARE 71,175
DEEELER 1,946,757
/N o - e 91,362

BREMEENSEEALBEREZ
BEIA 15,886

BREBERREAREEREEZ SR
B 2,847

PIHEEARR BB =8 B M E BiE R
BEROEEE 104,621
REEE 2,161,473
2020
—EEHF
HK$’000
BET T

SHEE

E1% 0T HERTS 292,052
HEEE R R 19,223
YT E RS 224
BEETENKZEHRE 1,395
DEBEES 312,894
FHEBEIFRITER 78,170
B RoiLaE 6,420

3
S
H

ARf

/

AT RIZEE D BRAZHD

397,484

(Bt

|5z

2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
BT T
(Restated)
(geE7)

1,553,347
227,871
36,313
86,350

1,903,881
88,361

31,676
2,575

94,382
173,157

2,294,032

2019
—hE
HK$'000
BT T
(Restated)
(feE5)

389,207
529

60

23

389,819
150,950
9,765

550,534



For the purpose of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments:

all assets are allocated to reportable segments other than
interest in associates, debt instruments at FVOCI, financial
assets at FVPL, term deposits with initial term over three
months and other unallocated assets (including primarily
unallocated property, plant and equipment, cash and cash

equivalents and prepayments).

all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other
than unallocated secured bank borrowings not for sale and
leaseback arrangements services and other unallocated

liabilities.

For the year ended 31 December 2020

Additions to non-current assets  FETENEE 211
(Note) (33

Depreciation of property, plant ~ ¥1% + BifE kikfe
and equipment ik

Amortisation charge on EVAERHER

intangible asset

Interest income from bank
deposits, term deposits with
initial term over three months
and debt instruments at FVOCI

Impairment loss reversed on
receivables under sale and
leaseback arrangements, net

Impairment loss reversed on
debt instruments at FVOCI

RITER - MEHR
BE=EANTEY
ERRERER
SARSERA
REZEHIAZ
MEBA

ERERZHAT
MR RE
BEREFR

ERAMEERE
BAREREZ
BEBIAZRE
BEED

Sale and
leaseback
arrangements
services
ek
RYRE
HK$'000
BETT

32

334

1,719

5,887

Property
leasing
services
nE
HERB
HK$'000
BT

87

RERDHRAERRSBZEOEE

R

PMBEREADBETEZHBAHM - T
BREARBZEARzEZR  EBH
fiEERERAAEREZER L
H BREBREREAAERECE
BMEE  TIRHMRBAE=EANT
PERREAARIEEE(XTEER
BADEYE  BEMERE Re
MIREFEEBIARBMNFRIEA) -

FIBREANETEAZHBNE - T
BREIBERLOBAREREZARD
FECEARTEREEMRDER

(E

BE-_Z-_ETHF+-_A=1t—HIFE

Assets
management
and
consultancy
services
BEEER
EH RS
HK$'000
BETT

163

1,433

Supply chain
management
services  Unallocated Total
g3
BERY ADE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BET T BETT
= 14 46
386 1,150 2,120
2,956 = 2,956
5,869 1,615 10,636
= = 5,887
= 29 29



For the year ended 31 December 2019

Additions to non-current assets
(Note)

Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment

Amortisation charge on
intangible asset

Interest income from bank
deposits, term deposits with
initial term over three months
and debt instruments at FVOCI

Impairment loss reversed on
receivables under sale and
leaseback arrangements, net

Impairment loss reversed on
debt instruments at FVOCI

FERBEEEM
(Bf3E)

nE - BERRE
wE

B AEHHER

RITER - MEHR
BB=fEANTH
FRREBER
EERERANE
BEZEHIAZ
MEBA

EROBLHRET
WG RE
BRERFE

ERAEANE
BRAREREZ
BEHIAZRE
BREED

Sale and
leaseback
arrangements
services
EEEA
ZHE RS
HK$'000
BETT

890

8,363

Property
leasing
services

VES
R E RS
HK$'000
BT

257

362

Note: Non-current assets exclude goodwill, interest in associates, financial
assets, deferred tax assets and right-of-use assets.

BHE

Assets
management
and
consultancy
services
BEEBRR
AR
HK$'000
BETT
(Restated)
Ee-gl)

3,314

86

1,260

—E-NEFE+ZA=T—HLEFE

Supply chain
management
services
e
EER%
HK$'000
BETT
(Restated)
(f==7)

208
447

1,259

4,515

FRBDEETBERE  RE

Unallocated

A
HK$'000
AT

5830

76

Total
Eohs

HK$'000
BB

3,857
1913

1,259

19,968

76

FERNEZ

ez SREE  BERBEBEENRE
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The Group operates in two principal geographical areas — the
Mainland China and Hong Kong.

The Group's revenue from external customers by location of the
relevant subsidiary’s operations and information about its non-
current assets by location of assets are detailed below:

AEEXBUNMETZMmE - FERA
WREE -

AEERBREMBAR 2K LB 5
KEIREP 2 W - RIREEMBERN
BN HIRBDEEZEMFMRIT

Revenue from Non-current assets
external customers (Note)
REIAEBF 2K R B & E (B EE)
2020 2019 2020 2019
—B-%F —TNF ZB-BF T NF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T BT T BT
Mainland China [ A3, 84,756 77,470 19,702 60,122
Hong Kong BE 622 232 38,902 41,125
85,378 77,702 58,604 101,247

Note: Non-current assets exclude goodwill, interest in associates, financial
assets, deferred tax assets and right-of-use assets.

Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of the total
revenue of the Group under reportable segments of sale and
leaseback arrangements services for the corresponding years are as
follows:

Customer A BPA
Customer B =B
Customer C EFPC
Customer D ZFD
Customer E ZFE

Note: The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total
revenue of the Group.

Mz FERDEETEERE RBEARZ
ez SREE  BEERRBENARE
REEE -

UTARBRFEREESEDEZHER
BZAEWMNE  HAEE B =ET R
10% A EZ2EF ¢

2020 2019
—EoEH —E-NF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
32,434 16,910
15,965 21,951
11,796 11,946
8,638 8,941

(Note) (Fff=E) 8,605

izt ERRESEEAREBKRETR10%
PAE e



Interest income FIE WA

~ bank deposits - RITEK

- term deposits with initial term -~ YIS HARR A =8 A /Y

over three months TEBATE R
- debt instruments at FVOCI -FREMEANEZARE
BRIz EHTA

Government grant (Note) B 478 B (B 5T)
Others EAh
Note: During the year, government grant included HK$918,000 received from MsE

the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region under
the Employment Support Scheme. The remaining subsidies and awards of
HK$391,000 (2019: HK$852,000) received from the relevant authorities
in the PRC which is an incentive payment to the Group whereby no future

related cost is required or expected to be made.

Gain on disposal of debt instruments at
FVOCI

Loss on disposal of property, plant and
eqguipment and intangible asset, net

Recovery of receivables under sale and
leaseback arrangements previously
written-off

Others

HEBBEMEEKSERAAE
BRIBZ BB ITAZ K

HEME - BB MBI R ET
BEZERFRE

Y Bl Rz s SR L BER T
Z FEMRIR

Hitp

2020 2019
—ECFF i
HK$"000 HK$'000
BET T AT T
4,053 4,298
5,603 12,878

980 2,792

10,636 19,968
1,309 852

443 371
12,388 21,191

FR - BTMHAREREMRMZEIG
B EEBERTHREBRF KIS
918,0007T » Efp A BT EAMIFIE
152 AL & 2EHE 391,000 (ZF —
FLEE - B#852,0007T) ¢ ARAERE Y
Nz gBs  BABEFTIEMLES
R RFARAA A o

2020 2019
—E-FF —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
29 1,022

(10) (5)

13,715 -

- 77

13,734 1,094



Cost of sale and leaseback arrangements and
consultancy services (Note)

Auditor’s remuneration
= Audit services
— Non-audit services

Employee benefit expenses (Note 9)

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment (Note 15)

Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 16)

Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 18)

Legal and professional fees

Management fees charged by Shougang
Holding (Note 35)

Short term lease expenses

Insurance

Annual listing fees

Building and management fees

Printing and stationery

Exchange loss, net

Office expenses

Others

Total (including cost of sale and leaseback

arrangements and consultancy services and

selling and administrative expenses)

Note: During the year, cost of sale and leaseback arrangements and consultancy

SR LB KK IR A AR
(M)

1% BB 355 B
- B IRTS
- FEEAT IR

RERMFAX (H5E9)

M - W MR ETE (EE15)

EREEEE M6

B EEHEMFE18)
ZREISEE S

B RN R B IR B (P RE35)

MHHEEA
R

FELMER
EFREREER
ENfH R 32 B
P& 5 E518 5 5
WRAEFRT
Hh

RE(RREEREERYE RE AR
BRA - HERX RITHFA)

services included HK$10,192,000 (2019:HK$19,305,000) interest on bank

borrowings (Note 11).

GEE

2020 2019
—ECFF i
HK$"000 HK$'000
BET T AT T
11,618 19,305
1,200 1,200
710 810
40,888 36,814
2,120 1,913
3,403 2,834
2,956 1,259
3,339 4,310
2,880 2,880
821 1,297

497 650

554 634

476 536

293 516

125 393
2,729 2,097
6,508 8,244
81,117 85,692

R EEARTHRBARERR
BIERITIEKF 2% 10,192,0007T
(ZZ—N%F : B%19,305,0007T) (M
AR



2020 2019

—EEF —E—NF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

Wages, salaries and other benefits TE - HrekHMEH 39,210 34,641

Directors’ fee =Yk 1,005 1,543

Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIRTEFIET B 5K 673 630

Total employee benefit expenses EEEAFAZ AT 40,888 36,314

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year FRN - FAEEREESHREREBE =S

included three directors (2019: three directors), details of whose BR(CTNEF ZKEFR) BERE

remuneration are set out in the disclosures above. Details of the EMEFBREERE - REAFER -

remuneration for the year of the remaining two (2019: two) highest EaHEEPNRTMEAL(ZE—A

paid employees who are neither a director nor chief executive of F:MB)UIFARAEFTIESITHRA
the Company are as follows: B BHEMeFHBmT -

2020 2019

t g 32 —E-NF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T ST T

Wages, salaries and other benefits I& - #HehEMETR 2,455 2,454

Retirement benefit schemes contributions RIREAETEIE R 36 84

2,491 2,538



The number of the highest paid employees who are not the

Directors and whose remuneration fell within the following bands FEEABLT

is as follows:

Nil to HK$ 1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000

During the year, no remuneration was paid by the Group to the
Directors of the Company or the five highest paid employees as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation

for loss of office.

Impairment loss reversed:
— Receivables under sale and leaseback
arrangements
— Debt instruments at FVOCI

2020
S

T & 11,000,0007T -
75 #1,000,0017C £ B % 1,500,000 2
71,500,001 28 %2,000,0007T =

2020
—E-%F
HK$'000
BETT
REE B
- BB HEE T EKRIE
5,887
-FEREMEEKSEARERE
BrEBIA 29

5,916

MENFUTHERNELHFEEZHS

2019
—E-NF

FR - AREYENEAMHES TAR
RAEEXAABZSHFEEFER/MAZIRN
ARG B & 2 RS AEABERAE -

2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
BT

1,811

76

1,887



2020 2019

—ECFF i
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Interest on bank borrowings RITIERZFE 11,733 25,064
Less: amounts included in costs of sale and & : 2t AEE BRI LT HK K
leaseback arrangements Z I8 (10,192) (19,305)
1,541 5,759
Interest on lease liabilities HEaBEFE 135 228
1,676 5,987
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Current tax; BIEATIA -
- Hong Kong - Bk 5 5
- PRC - E 9,115 7,107
9,120 7,112
Deferred income tax (Note 29) EFEFT S (T 7E29) 7,839 7,718

Income tax expense FriS i & 16,959 14,830



Notes:

(a) On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed The Inland
Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill”) which introduces
the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill was signed into law on
28 March 2018 and was gazetted on the following day. Under the two-
tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of profits of the
qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2
million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profit of group entities not qualifying
for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a
flat rate of 16.5%.

(b) Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law")
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC
subsidiaries is 25% for 2020 (2019: 25%).

The taxation for the year is reconciled to profit/(loss) per the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income as follows:

Profit before income tax

iR <<ff tﬁmw J)(%H‘)f‘m
BIEZRY (MEBIEZR]) - 3| AFIBHBAR
%‘J BEOERERR T N\F=ZA=+N

BERAEE YAXBHEER-1R
ﬂ’fﬁlﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%&%\l REREEEBRES
#2,000,0007T 4 7 1% 12 8.25 % K Fi = 4
o RHBiEB 2,000,000 K 5 FI i 4%
16.5% T BB o TRFA IS B AR H
ERNEEEENEIBEEIZ165%2
B RBKEE -

(@ »
&

(b)y BEFRCEMBSBEATEERSHIED
REEMEITEABREDN  RZT=F
F HhERBRRZHER25% (2T —
NE 2 25%) °

FERREKBESGE2ARERZ)E
R,/ (B8 HERIAT -

Tax calculated at PRC statutory income tax
rate of 25%

Tax effect of amount which are not
deductible/(taxable) in calculating taxable
income:

Share of results of an associate

Expenses not deductible for taxation
purposes

Income not subject to taxation

Tax losses for which no deferred income tax
was recognised

Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries
operating in other jurisdiction

Withholding tax on dividends of the PRC
subsidiaries

Expense for the year

2020 2019
—E-EF —T-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
R P15 B AT 8 A 35,153 15,413
TR EETEMB R E25%
FTE IR 8,788 3,853
TE5T 8 e SRR U A B R AT HI0RL,
(TR CEOHBETE
H—EBEQRNES (315) (654)
R
227 791
BAGFBA (1,079) (1,503)
RIERELE TSR AR EE
5,642 9,641
\Aﬂﬁiﬁﬁﬁéiﬁzwg
RAETEME 2 & 2,430 2,702
o B B 2 mIRR B 2 TEH0RL
1,266 =
FEMAX 16,959 14,830



No dividend has been paid, declared by the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per
share attributable to owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

Profit/(loss) attributable to owners of

the Company (HK$'000) (BT )

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares (thousand)

Basic earnings/(loss) per share (expressed &Y EAZF|, (E518)
in HK cent per share) (FR%BAL)

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to
assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. No
diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 December
2020 as there was no dilutive potential ordinary share. For
the year ended 31 December 2019, the computation of
diluted loss per share does not assume the exercise of the
Company'’s outstanding share option since their exercise will
reduce loss per share.

i3

%m%

B RhnAE g B ER (TR

E-E-_TE+-_A=+—HIE
s ARB W R RNHEREARE (=
—NEF ) o

ARARFBEARGERENRE#
SEEN,(B18) ThER AT 8+

s

=

KARFE ARG R, ()

2020 2019
e —T-NF
5,980 (7,921)
3,984,640 4,001,410
0.15 (0.20)

BREERT,(BR HEBRE
"E?I\ﬁﬁﬂ§ﬂﬂ$2¥iﬂﬁi - BA
f““iﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ B T B T
- AR EBA S E R - &
@i—?—?ﬂz—'— A=+t—H1
FEVTESHESEN -HE-T
*jLEJr*ﬂ:ﬂL*EIJJ:EJﬁ &t
HBERETERYBERRARAZ
RARITEBREETE  RESE
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At 1 January 2019
Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Year ended 31 December 2019

Opening net book amount
Adjustment for change in
accounting policy

Restated opening net book amount

Exchange difference

Transfer from investment

properties (Note)

Acquisition of a subsidiary

Addition

Depreciation charge

Disposal

Closing net book amount

At 31 December 2019

Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

R-E-h"§-A-H
AR
ZETE

REFE

BE-Z-NE+=R
=+-HILEE

FEEFE
HEHRERDAE

KEFFNRARE
EREE
BEREMEREA

GiE3)
WE—-RAHERR
~E
FEER
&

FRREFE

R-E-NE+=A
=+-8
oz
2ithiE

REFE

Leasehold

Buildings improvements

BF
HK$:000
AT

20,630

(5,364)

15,266

15,266

(13,028)

2,238
72

22,299
(927)

21,372

B
MRERE
HK$'000
AT

254
(231)

546

857
311

546

Motor
Vehicles

nE
HK$'000
AT

2,040

(655)

1,385

(599)

784

2,036
(1,252)

784

Furniture,
fitting and
equipment
BRE - #£8
kR
HK$'000
BT

4,439
(3,974)

465

465

465
(496)

2,695
700
(692)

2,667

6,904
(4,237)

2,667

Total

st
HK$°000
ARETT

27,735

(10,096)

17,639

32,096
(6,727)

25,369



Furniture,

Leasehold Motor fitting and
Buildings improvements Vehicles equipment Total
HE HE £B
g3 MELE "E SET @t
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
BT BETT BB BETT  BETR
At 1 January 2020 R-ZB-ZEF-f-H
Cost 3% 22,299 857 2,036 6,904 32,096
Accumulated depreciation ZitinE (927) (311) (1,252) (4,237) (6,727)
Net book amount REFE 21,372 546 784 2,667 25,369
Year ended 31 December 2020 B2_Z_ZF+ZH
=t+-HEE
Opening net book amount FUERFE 21,372 546 784 2,667 25,369
Exchange difference IE 5 =R 381 = 9) 40 412
Addition NE = = = 46 46
Depreciation charge HEBR (585) (266) (569) (700) (2,120)
Disposal HE - - - (1,336) (1,336)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 21,168 280 206 717 22,371
At 31 December 2020 R-E-ZF+=A
=+-H
Cost A 22,720 860 2,050 5,130 30,760
Accumulated depreciation ZETE (1,552) (580) (1,844) (4,413) (8,389)
Net book amount REFE 21,168 280 206 717 22,371

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2019, a Group’s commercial
property unit and a residential property unit originally classified as
investment properties were transferred to land and building due to the
change of use. For details of valuation process prior to the change, please
refer to Note 17.

At 31 December 2020, all of the Group’s buildings are located on
land in Hong Kong and Mainland China with the remaining lease
terms of 40 and 30 years (2019: 41 and 31 years).

Depreciation expense of HK$2,120,000 (2019: HK$1,913,000) was
charged in administrative expenses.

fit: BE_FT-NhF+_A=+—HLHF
B RESERBREMEN —BAKE
BEYEEM N -REEMEECEA
A ERRF S - 2817 -

R-ZBE-THE+_A=+—0H K&£E
FTBERFHMNREERPRAM - T
M BAOFRIOF(ZE—NF : 41F
K314F)

WEMXHE®2,120,000(ZZT— AN
& B¥1,913,0007T) BEFATTH X
ﬁq °



The consolidated statement of financial position shows the

following amounts relating to leases:

Right-of-use assets

Office premises
Land use right

Lease liabilities
Current portion
Non-current portion

EREEE
N
T L AR

HEAE
mENER
FERBEE D

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the land use right
being part of the commercial building property amounted to
HK$23,989,000 was transferred from investment properties

(Note 17).

r—b
vT

o)

SO

TH

Fw>

2020
e
HK$°000
BETT

1,837

37,706

39,543

1,917

1,917

BIFEAIR RSB A T A E A

2019
—NF
HK$'000
AT

4,041

36,786

40,827

2,211

1,917

4,128

2 E—NF+_A=+—81t
FE - BLOBEEFYWENLHE
A A5 %523,989,0007T 2 IR E

WEEH(ME17) -



The consolidated statement of comprehensive income shows
the following amounts relating to leases:

Depreciation charge of right-of-use FREEENEEAR
assets

Office premises /N

Land use right - fsh A

Interest on lease liabilities (included in MERBEZFE
finance cost) GrABEKAN)

Expenses relating to short-term leases REAMEEERX
(included in administrative expenses) GrATTEFSR)

The total cash outflow for leases during the year ended 31
December 2020 was HK$2,346,000 (2019: HK$2,346,000).

The Group leases various properties in Hong Kong and
Mainland China. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed
periods of 1 year to 2 years. Lease terms are negotiated on an
individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms
and conditions.

WIN

Yz R 5IE A T A & 4R

&%
288

2

=

2020 2019
. —T-NF
HK$"000 HK$'000
BETT AT T
2,205 2,205
1,198 629
3,403 2,834

135 228

821 1,297

HEZZ-_TF+-A=+—HL
FE G HENBEREQELEE
#2,346,0007c(Z = — N F : B
2,346,0007T) °

AR ENES R B A E 5
M - MEANAERIFE2F
> Bl SR - AE R R AR
REERL 4 & T F A R 16
fi o



At fair value /NI =]
At 1 January Rn—H—H
Change in fair value recognised in REEEEHEBERERZANE
the consolidated statement of b=

comprehensive income
Transfer to property, plant and equipment ~ BEEZ=Y% - BE M RE

(Note 15) (M$5£15)
Transfer to right-of-use assets (Note 16) HEEFERAEEEMT16)
Exchange differences ME =R

At 31 December R+-—A=+—8H

2020
—g-%%F

—_—

HK$°000
BT T

24,700

(1,000)

23,700

2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
BT

66,705

2,400
(19,453)

(23,989)
(963)

24,700



Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for investment properties:

Rental income el A

RREMERNGAZHARERERNE

Direct operating expenses from properties ~ EEM & W ANE 2 BELERA

that generated rental income

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no unprovided
contractual obligations for future repairs and maintenance (2019:
Nil).

The following table analyses the investment properties carried at
fair value, by valuation method.

Recurring fair value measurements KEMEARERE
Residential property units located in MR BEEBHEEY
Hong Kong

There were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

EERE
2020 2019
—EEHF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
339 573
(82) (12)

R_F_FTF+_A=1+—8  A&H
VTEBBRREERREZRBEAD
BHCE-NFHE) -

TREBETEDMRAAEIIRNE

Significant unobservable
inputs (Level 3)
EXRBEZEERAMB(E=R)

2020 2019
— i —T-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T AT

fi
23,700 24,700

REAN F—HK B_R/RBE=FRZME
I



For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZ=-ZF—h&E+=A

=t+t—BLHFE
Opening balance at 1 January 2019 RZZE-—hF—HA—BH&
FHEER
Change in fair value recognised RiFE 2 ERERERLZ
in the consolidated statement of N BEEE

comprehensive income
Transfer to property, plant and equipment #ZE =2 « iR & E

Transfer to right-of-use assets EREERAREE
Exchange differences EHZER

Closing balance at 31 December 2019~ R=-Z—AF+ A
=t+—HBZFERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ_—Z_-F&+_f

=t+—BLHFE
Opening balance at 1 January 2020 RZZ_TF—H—HH
FHER
Change in fair value recognised RiFEZHE SR ER
in the consolidated statement of NREE

comprehensive income

Closing balance at 31 December 2020 H-ZT-ZTF+ -4
=+ —BZERER

Commercial

Residential property units
property units located in
located in Mainland
Hong Kong China
NREBN NRPERHEH
EEMESEN BEEWESN
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
37,500 29,205

2,400 -
(15,200) (4,253)

- (23,989)

- (963)

24,700 -
24,700 o
(1,000) -

23,700

Total

Mgt
HK$'000

BET T

66,705

2,400
(19,453)
(23,989)

(963)

24,700

24,700

(1,000)

23,700



The fair values of the Group’s investment properties at 31
December 2020 and 2019 have been arrived at on the basis
of a valuation carried out on those dates by Greater China
Appraisal Limited, an independent qualified professional valuer
not connected with the Group. Greater China Appraisal Limited
is a registered firm of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, and
has appropriate qualifications and experience. The valuation was
arrived at by reference to market evidence of transaction prices for
similar properties in the same location and conditions and where
appropriate by capitalisation of rental income from properties.

Market comparable approach has been adopted for valuing the
Group’s residential property units. One of the key inputs used in
valuing the Group'’s residential property units was the price per
square feet, which ranged from HK$17,014 to HK$23,561 per
square feet (2019: HK$17,174 to HK$24,460 per square feet).
An increase in the price per square feet used would result in an
increase in fair value measurement of the residential property units,
and vice versa.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, a Group’s commercial
property unit and a residential property unit were transferred to
land and building. Market comparable approach has been adopted
for valuing the abovementioned properties. One of the key inputs
used in valuing the Group’s commercial property units and the
Group's residential property units were the price per square feet,
which are HK$5,286 per square feet and HK$25,041 per square
feet, respectively.

AEBEREMER_T_TFR_T—
NFF+ZA=+—HZAREBETRER
SEYEBB B EREXGEM
REFEARARANZET ARET A
BitE - ZEFEARATDR/TBANE
MMEesR A ARkEREEERRE
B HMEDZEUNERMLERRELZ
BUMERZEZITHRE  LTEANL
YEHEWAUHER)E -

AEBMNEFEMESEMEMSE L E
B o AMEAE BN EE Y EEMNEAT
FEANEZERHABEZ —RFFHFRE
% BEEENTEFEAFRBEL17,014T
EAM3 561 TT(ZE—NE  FFHIR
EEE17 174 2B 824,4607T) » (EAK
BEFRES EABEREEMHESEN
WARBENELF  RZIA -

BHE-_ZT—hAhF+-_A=+—HBLHF
B —BEASEREmESME AL
EMEEVERE L NET o FiY
¥IRmIGE L AT - FHEAEBE K
REMEBNRASEENTEDEEN
BREANETEGAREZ —=28FH
RE » HE®RDBFF T RES,286
TC N B #E25,0417T °



There were no changes to the valuation techniques during the year.

The following table analyses the level 3 investment properties
carried at fair value, by valuation techniques.

Fair value at
Property 31 December
R+=A=t+-AH
I ZARE
2020 2019
ZECEF “TNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BBTT A%TrT
Residential property 23,700 24,700
units located in
Hong Kong
IREAMEENREN 23,700 24,700

Valuation Unobservable Range of
technique(s) inputs unobservable inputs
hER BLEERANE BLIEFRAUEERE
2020 2019
“ECEF CTNF
HK$ HK$
BET BT
Market comparable Market unitsales ~ 17,014to 17,174 to
approach price 23,561 24,460
mELERE  TRENEE 170142 171742
23,561 24,460

WP+ A E R AT R 2T -

TRZGEERMOTIRAABARZSE
ZIRIEME -

Relationship of
unobservable inputs to
fair value
BLEERANE
BNREZEE

The higher the unit selling
price, the higher the fair
value

EUEEHS  DrE
He



At 1 January 2019
Cost

Net book value

Year ended 31 December 2019
Opening net book amount
Acquisition of a subsidiary

(Note 33)
Addition

Amortisation charge
Exchange difference

Closing net book value

At 31 December 2019

Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net book value

Year ended 31 December 2020
Opening net book amount
Disposed

Amortisation charge
Exchange difference

Closing net book value

At 31 December 2020

Cost
Accumulated amortisation

Net book value

R-ZE—-NF—A—H

DN

RmEFE

BE-2-N¥F

+=—BA=+—RHiLLEE

FHEREFE

Ui B — FEI P B 2 )
(B13E33)

NE

BiNE R

&R =%

FAREREFE

R-ZZE-h&F

t=A=+—H
AR
Rt

R FE

BE—_ZT_-FF

+=ZA=+—HILEE
FYREFE

HE

BB A

P& 3 =58

FAREREFE

R-ZB-2F

t=A=+—H
PRA
Rt

fRmEFE

Amortisation expense of HK$2,956,000 (2019: HK$1,259,000) was

charged in administrative expenses.

Goodwill
(Note (a))

BmE
(B &£ (a))
HK$’'000
BETIT

50,848

50,848

50,848

6,479

(667)

56,660

56,660

56,660

56,660

3,372

60,032

60,032

60,032

Supply chain
financing
platform

(Note (b))
HEERETYA
(B &£ (b))
HK$'000
BETT

12,689
208
(1,259)
(265)

11,373

12,589
(1,216)

11,373

11,373
(556)
(2,956)

471

8,332

12,738
(4,406)

8,332

Total
et

HK$'000
AT

50,848

50,848

50,848
19,168
208

(1,259)
(932)

68,033

69,249
(1,216)

68,033

68,033
(556)
(2,956)

3,843

68,364

72,770
(4,406)

68,364

SR XA 2,956,000 (ZE— A,
£ FB¥#1,259,0007T) D EF AT B X

A o



Goodwill is tested for impairment on an annual basis or when
there are indications the carrying amount may be impaired.
For the purpose of impairment testing, the Group allocates
its goodwill to the relevant CGUs or group of CGUs, and
compares the recoverable amounts of these CGUs or group
of CGUs to their respective carrying amounts. A summary of
goodwill allocation for each group of CGUs of the Group is
as follows:

BESSFANLREEE LR
ERER PR B B EA © 5L
RERAAME - AEEKEERES
RERBARSELBUSIBRSES
BiAR  WHEZEFREESEM
FIMNSELE BB IKRE SRR
HEXBEMRAEETLR - A%
ERERNREELBEMNBESR
BMEWNT :

At 1 January 2019

Acquisition of a subsidiary

(Note 33)
Exchange difference

At 31 December 2019

Exchange difference

At 31 December 2020

R-E-h#&F
—HA—8

Wi — R Bl B

(P 5E33)
fE H Z&E

RZZE—hF

+t=A=+-

PE 5 R

R=Z=%F

Sale and management

leaseback
arrangements
services
segment
E#&EHE
THRB DB

South China
Leasing
mAhHE
HK$'000
BT T

49,927

=)

(561)

H 49,366
2,938

+=B=+—H 52,304

The recoverable amount is calculated based on the higher of
value-in-use calculation or fair value less costs of disposal.

Assets
and  Supply chain
consultancy management
services services
segment segment
EEEER a3
HAHARBoH EEREDS
Jingxi
Shouhua Supply
Fangtai Chain Total
BERE mAftER et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BETT
921 - 50,848
- 6,479 6,479
(10) (96) (667)
911 6,383 56,660
54 380 3,372
965 6,763 60,032
ARE & EIHAERBEFEAR
AN

FRAAREREERAZBRSEG



The recoverable amount of South China Leasing is
determined based on value-in-use calculations. The value-
in-use calculations used cash flow projection based on
financial budgets prepared by management covering a five-
year period. The interest rate spread in the value-in-use
calculations is 2% (2019: 2%). The discount rate used of
approximately 11% (2019: 11%) is pre-tax and reflects the
specific risks related to the relevant business.

Any reasonably possible change in any of these key
assumptions would not result in an impairment of the
goodwill.

The recoverable amount of Jingxi Supply Chain is
determined based on discounted cash flows calculations.
This calculation uses cash flow projections based on five-
year financial budgets, with reference to past performance
and expectations for market development, approved by
management. The annual revenue growth rate during
the projection period is 3% (2019: 3%) whereas the cash
flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated with
an estimated terminal growth rate of 1% (2019: 3%). The
discount rate used of approximately 17.5% (2019: 17.5%) is
pre-tax and reflects the specific risks related to the relevant
business.

Any reasonably possible change in any of these key
assumptions would not result in an impairment of the
goodwill.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
acquired the software platform through the acquisition of a
subsidiary (Note 33). The Supply chain financing platform is a
software platform to support the supply chain management
services of the Group.

As at 31 December 2020, the Directors are not aware of any
events or changes in circumstances which would indicate
that the carrying amount of the intangible assets may not be
recoverable.
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Set out below are the associates of the Group as at 31 December
2020. The entities listed below have share capital consisting solely
of ordinary shares, which are held directly by the Group. The
country of incorporation or registration is also their principal place
of business, and the proportion of ownership interest is the same
as the proportion of voting rights held. All of these associates
are accounted for using the equity method in these consolidated
financial statements.

Place of
business/
Nature of Principal country of
Name of entity relationship  activities incorporation
BEBY
EReH BENNE TEXBED HERRIER
ERTHMAZERBEEE  Associate Investment The PRC
PEBERAE) (“Shouhe management
Venture Capital”)
(Note (a))
FEIEMAIZREAERE HBERR k&EE g
rE(BRER)
(M%) (@)
rAREREERAR Associate Provision of The PRC
(Beijing West Business factoring
Factoring Company services in
Limited*) (Note (b)) PRC
REBEREERAT BE N R B i
GE{D) RIERT
Notes:

(a) On 15 December 2020, Shouhe Venture Capital was dissolved and all the
investment cost was returned to the Group.

(b) On 24 July 2019, the Group completed an acquisition of 41.41% equity
interest in AR EREABR AR (Beijing West Business Factoring
Company Limited*) (“Beijing West Business Factoring”) at a consideration
of approximately RMB75,263,000 (approximately HK$85,526,000) from
IERBBHEHRERERERE(BRAER) (Beijing Services New
Shougang Venture Capital Investment LLP*), a non wholly-owned
subsidiary of 3t R & & & ER A7) (Beijing Shougang Fund Co., Ltd.*)
(“Shougang Fund”).

*  For identification purpose only

*

UTIEAREER T _EF+ A=
+—BZHMERAT - THEERASEE
ML mIRAEN  AASEEEES -
M ZERERNABEETEZEEME - AT
B PIRTRRIE ER L HIAER -
FIBEZEBE N ERAESENGE
IS RE AR -

Effective % of

ownership interest Carrying amount
FERERRREAL fREE
2020 2019 2020 2019

“ESRF TONF SERSRF TR

% % HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR  ERTRT

- 24.28% - 1,573
41.41% 41.41% 91,362 86,788
91,362 88,361

(@ RIE_ZF+-A+EHA EMEIER
Bt mAKEREMARLERRE °

by RZZE—AE+A-+MNA  xEEDZ
REt ARG MR EREIREDE
(BEREB)traMEeBRAR(E
MESDNIIEZEWBAR) KERAR
XREBERAA(IRAREREDZ
M MN%RE - REABHARETS5,263,000
T (4975 #85,526,0007T) °

1B %



Cost of investment in associates:

As at 1 January

Addition to interest in associates during
the year

Dissolution of an associate during the year

As at 31 December

Share of operating profits

Share of other comprehensive income/(loss)

Dividend received

Interest in associates

FARRE—EEE AT
R+—_A=+—8
Al R AT

FEAG HoAth 2 W as, (B518)
E U E

As at 31 December 2020, included in the cost of investment in
Beijing West Business Factoring, an associate of the Group, is
goodwill of approximately HK$25,748,000 (2019: HK$24,578,000)

arising from the acquisition during the year.

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s material

associates is set out below.

2020 2019
bt 33 —NEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT
88,361 1,591

- 85,526

(1,667) -
86,694 87,117
1,258 2,614
5,273 (1,370)
(1,863) -
91,362 88,361

R-FB_BF+-_A=+—H8 RB=R
AREREARREZBERAR) 2RE
KRAETFBRREFARBEENEED

25,748,000t (ZE — NLF : B
24,578,0007T) ©
AN AEEE TEE N A MBS E R

Z3HWT -



Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities

Net asset

Less: Non-controlling interests

Revenue

Expenses, including income tax

Profit for the year

Profit for the year attributable to the
owners of Beijing West Business Factoring

MBEE
FRBEE
mEBAEE

BEFE
B R aS

Ygs
sz (BIEFTIS )
FRE A

2020 2019

RERRRER B ARG FERF

The information above reflects the amounts represented in the
financial statements of Beijing West Business Factoring (and not
the Group'’s share of those amounts) adjusted for differences in
accounting policies between the Group and the associate.

Movements of interest in Beijing West Business Factoring are as

follows:

Interest in an associate
At 1 January

Acquisition of an associate
Share of results

Dividend received
Exchange differences

At 31 December

R—EBE QR 2 ERE

R—A—H
Yo B — B & N A
FEAG 4B
SALEEES)
PE 5 = %E
BR+=-—A=+—H”

—ECFF —FNF
HK$"000 HK$'000
BET T AT
637,602 576,543

12,358 7,110
(473,460) (433,424)
176,500 150,229
(18,050) -
158,450 150,229
343,531 181,140
(340,311) (174,828)
3,220 6,312
3,039 6.312

FREHRRAARERENH GRS
MER(LIFAKEREEE  CHRA
SEEZBEATNSHARRERET
EEI

o

fi

REAEEEREZESZEINT

2020 2019
—g-8F —T-N&
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT
86,788 -

- 85,526

1,258 2,614
(1,863) -
5,179 (1,352)

91,362 86,788



Reconciliation of the summarised financial information presented
to the carrying amount of its interest in Beijing West Business

Factoring is as follows:

Summarised financial information

Opening net assets as at 1 January
Acquisition of an associate
Post-acquisition profit for the period
Dividend paid

Exchange differences

Closing net assets as at 31 December

Group's share in %
Interest in the associate
Goodwill

Carrying amount as at 31 December

MBERRE

R—A—BZENEERE
W — el B i R )

HA P U F 12 )2 7

EfREE

bE =5

Rt -—A=1T—BZFREEHE
AEBEEGEBEDL
N NI F

kS

Wt -A=1+—HZEKHE

2020
S
HK$°000
BT

150,229

3,039
(4,498)
9,680

158,450

41.41%
65,614
25,748

91,362

FE5IMBEMBE RN R AR ERE
ZiEm 2 BREEZHERMT

2019

—E-NF

HK$'000
BT

147,183
6,312

(3,266)

150,229

41.41%
62,210
24,578

86,788



mBEE
FRBEE

Current assets
Non-current assets

At 31 December, the Group's receivables under sale and leaseback
arrangements were repayable as follows:

Within one year —FRN
Between 1 and 2 years —ZEZMF

Between 2 and 3 years

~

% Ol A2 HE IR T e Ya B 50R

Overdue receivables under sale and =
leaseback arrangements

2020

S e L
HK$'000

BT

608,522
771,927

1,380,449

2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
BT

426,614
864,582

1,291,196

RTZA=+—H AEEEREHE%Z
PRR TN 2 RGREENT

2020
S8
HK$'000
BT T

608,522
576,436
195,491

1,380,449

1,380,449

2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
BT

416,952
388,166
476,415

1,281,533

9,663

1,291,196



2020 2019

—ECEF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Analysed as: ST
Current receivables under sale and EROELHEIE T EBOREN TR
leaseback arrangements R+l ARER
(receivable within 12 months) 629,626 470,851
Non-current receivables under sale and EREELHEIE T EWIER B
leaseback arrangements SR (R =@ A & e
(receivable after 12 months) 773,255 869,933
1,402,881 1,340,784
Provision of impairment loss allowance B BB (22,432) (49,588)
1,380,449 1,291,196
Fixed-rate receivables under sale and EREIELHEE T RTS8 5B
leaseback arrangements 862,040 867,820
Variable-rate receivables under sale and EROELHEIE T EEOE B8
leaseback arrangements 518,409 423,376
1,380,449 1,291,196
The interest rates represent prevailing People’s Bank of China MERER_ZE_ZFR-_ZT—NEF
Renminbi Lending Rate (“PBC rate”) or Offshore Chinese Renminbi TZA=T—HREARITHEA
Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“CNH HIBOR”) as at 31 RRITARBEFFNE(TARRITER

December 2020 and 2019, respectively.

MEDEBMEBTBRITRAEARERE
(BBRITRARAREBHRED -

Effective interest rates per annum of the above receivables under MAFE - L E&REIHALHEIE T EK
sale and leaseback arrangements for the years are as follows: REZEBEREMELNT -

2020 2019

—EC-2F —E-hF

Effective interest rates
Fixed-rate receivables

Variable-rate receivables

B =
JEUE B FR0R 5.0% to 12.0% 5.0% to 7.5%
5.0EZ12.0&F 5.0EZE7.5E

FEUUE B 5RT8 5.5% t06.7% 5.0% t07.7%
5.5EZ6.7E S0EZR77E



Interest rate of variable-rate receivables is reset when there is a
change of the prevailing PBC rate or CNH HIBOR.

As at 31 December 2020, carrying value of the receivables under
sale and leaseback arrangements of HK$321,283,000 (2019:
HK$308,478,000) have been pledged against specific bank
borrowings granted to the Group (Note 28). The pledges will be
released upon the settlement of bank borrowings.

At 1 January 2019

Net reversal for the year
Write-off

Exchange differences

At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020

Net reversal for the year
Write-off
Exchange differences

At 31 December 2020

The provision for receivables under sale and leaseback
arrangements amounted to HK$22,432,000 (2019:
HK$49,588,000) of which an amount of HK$19,451,000
(2019: HK$40,892,000) is related to credit-impaired
receivables under sale and leaseback arrangements and those
borrowers were either under severe financial difficulties,
placed in liquidation or in legal proceedings. In the opinion of
the Directors, these amounts cannot be recovered due to the

debtors’ default in payment.

YT B HRBENFERRITARRITE

BHMELEEFEBRITRAZARERELE

BEED -

O 7 % #F ] T & WK

RZEZEF+A=+—H &
HEER®EAES
#321,283,000L(ZF— L6 : B
308,478,000 0) B FRITIEAR

FTAS B ERITER BT
28) - WK RIRITIERE R RBELR -

HK$'000
BT I
RZZE—NhF—H—H 81,150
FEREDFEE (1,811)
b 6] (28,838)
PE 5 = %E (913)
RZE—NF+-_A=+—HK
—E-TF—H—H 49,588
FERDFEE (5,887)
i1z (22,557)
PE X =% 1,288
R-ZE-ZEF+-_A=+—H 22,432
EREHALTHE T RWGRERE A
BH22,432,000L(ZF— 1L4F
49, 588,0007T) @ HA B

EITERNE

IRT RN -

19,451,000c (=& — & : K
40,892,0007T) B8 A (E ERER
BB EHELZHEIE T B
MAARE (B R A B E I TSR &
WA ERD - ES
RE - BREBANTELD

BB

ZER



Security deposits of HK$11,904,000 (2019: HK$29,326,000)
have been received by the Group to secure the receivables
under sale and leaseback arrangements and classified into
current liabilities and non-current liabilities based on the final
lease instalment due date stipulated in the sale and leaseback
agreements.

Analysed as: PaR)ilE

Security deposits received BRRFLRS
- due with one year - —F A EH

Security deposits received ERFRS
- due after one year - —F1& 3|5

In addition to security deposits, the receivables under sale and
leaseback arrangements are secured over the leased assets
mainly machineries, building, sewage pipeline networks and
build and transfer project of a scenic belt as at 31 December
2020 and 2019.

The Group is not permitted to sell or repledge the collateral
of the receivables under sale and leaseback arrangements
in the absence of default by the lessee. Estimates of fair
value of collateral are made during the credit approval
process, determined using valuation techniques commonly
used for the corresponding assets. These estimates of
valuations are made at the inception of sale and leaseback,
and management would review it periodically. The Group
also takes into consideration the financial positions and
the guarantors of the relevant customers and the expected
timing, legal possession status and other uncertainties on
realising the pledged assets in the impairment assessment.

AEBEOWBRRIBTESBE
11,904,000 (=T — N 4F : B
29,326,0007T) ' {EAEREHER
BB T EWFUEMER  WREE
e HT B B HEE S R
BHIMAMBEEREARDEREK
SERBIALME -

2020 2019
. —FNF
HK$"000 HK$'000
BET T AT IT
5,952 20,899
5,952 8,427
11,904 29,326

BT IRFIR S EREMEZHE
TRERURERNR-_ZE_EFER_F
—NWF+-—A=+—HLUBEEE
EFEAKSE EF  5KEH
RENHEEREEER)IEAE
o

HABALEERZLDY - AEERE
EXBERRSFEREBELAT
FEY IR ER R - RNMEEFELE
2 BEREE AR EREEER
HEEERANMGETAEE - &
FEEMFTIRERDERBEE
- W EEEEHER o RRE
AR - ARETNEEEERERS
ZHBARRRIERANRBREEE
WEEZTREHE  ARIEEHA
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2020 2019

—E-BH ZE-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Listed bonds, with fixed interest of 5.30% EmfES - BEB5.308
(2019: 3.88% t0 5.30%) (ZZ— N : 3.88EZE5.30F)
A 15,886 31,676

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group had disposed
of a listed bond with sales proceed of HK$15,506,000.

As at 31 December 2020, the fair value of an investment in listed
bond is determined by reference to the quoted market bid prices
available and a loss on changes in fair value on a listed bond
of HK$173,000 has been recognised in other comprehensive
income during the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: gain of
HK$1,735,000).

Details of impairment assessment and risk exposure are set out in
Note 3.1.

HE_ZTZ-_ZF+_A=+—HILHF
FAEBEBEHE LTES  HEMS
I AE15,506,0007T °

R-ZE-_EF+_-_A=+—H "  +tH&E
SR ENARBEHLENBSHMBE
ANBHREET VCHRBE_ZE_-F
F+_A=Z+—HUEFENEMLE2A
WHER ETESFAABEEHHEREIR
173,000 (ZE—NE - B
1,735,0007T) °

(B ATl K B b O 2 B S SR MY
3.1°



2020 2019

—B-RF —ZE-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Trade and bill receivables FEWE 5 IR E N R IE 36,132 =
36,132 -
Prepayments (Note (i) T At 3R IE (B () 22,742 4,531
Other receivables (Note (ii)) o e Wi sk (B R (Gii)) 135,950 3,565
Deposits Re 910 947
195,734 9,043
Non-current FEmED 4,201 3,019
Current Dink2) 191,533 6,024
195,734 9,043

Notes: sk -
(i) As at 31 December 2020, prepayment of HK$17,142,000 (2019: Nil) was 0) R-ZBE-ZTF+-_A=+—8 BptieE
paid to the supplier in relation to the supply chain management services. 85 12 AR 75 [7) it FE 7 2 A TE A SRIB B

17,142,000 (=T —N4F : ) °

(ii) As at 31 December 2020, other receivables of HK$132,746,000 (2019: (ii) R-E-_FEE+-_A=+—8  H#iE
Nil) was receivable in relation to the purchase cost paid on behalf of W R IE A H132,746,0007C(—FE— L6 ¢
customers under supply chain management services in which the Group B RERASBEREEREZHERER
was acting as an agent. FRISIE TRERE P X 2 SRR AR H) FE I

R °



The credit terms of trade receivables are normally 30 to 90
days as at 31 December 2020. The maturity periods of bill
receivables are normally 6 to 12 months as at 31 December
2020. The aging analysis of trade and bill receivables are as
follows:

Within 3 months =@AR
4-6 months A El

Due to the short-term nature of the trade and bill receivables,
their carrying amounts are considered to be the same as their
fair value.

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade and bill receivables

are denominated in RMB.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, other receivables are
secured, interest-free and repayable within one year from
end of reporting period.

Analysed by denominated currency:

HK$ s
RMB AR

RZBEZZTF+=-_A=+—H &
WE SRR ZEER K AE30E
90R - MZZE_ZTF+_-_A=+
—H - BEREBZISHR—KE
612 A - EUE SR KB
EEZRESITIT

2020
SE X
HK$'000
BT

36,035
97

36,132

HRERE PR N ERERBE
HHE  HREERGSEEQR
BHER -

AEBERKE SRR NEREERZ
FREEAARBHE

RZE_EFR-_FT—NF+=A

=+—H" ﬁMEW DR Ry

# - B RAERREHRE—F

NEE o

BETEEE ST

2020 2019

—EEF —E-NF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT

286 630

135,664 2,935

135,950 3,565



Listed equity securities measured
at FVPL ETIRARE S
- Hong Kong - Bk

The fair value of the listed equity securities is determined by
reference to the quoted market bid prices available and gain on
changes in fair value on the listed equities of HK$272,000 has been
recognised in profit or loss during the year ended 31 December
2020 (2019: HK$204,000).

Information about the Group’s exposure to price risk is provided
in Note 3.1. For information about the methods and assumptions
used in determining fair value refer to Note 3.3.

As at 31 December 2019, the weighted average effective interest
rate of the Group’s term deposits with initial term of over three
months was 3.7% per annum. The term deposits with initial
term of over three months denominated in RMB were principal-
guaranteed and deposited with a bank in Mainland China. The
Directors classify the above deposits as financial assets at amortised
cost as the business model for the term deposits with initial term
over three months is to hold to maturity, and the contractual terms
only give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal. The conversion of the RMB-denominated
balances into foreign currencies and the remittance of funds out
of the Mainland China is subject to the rules and regulations of
foreign exchange control promulgated by the Government of the
PRC.

BRBEREAAENELZ

2020 2019

—g-8F —T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BEFT

2,847 2,575

EIRABEHAABIIZEASENM
BEAEBREET BERBE-T—
EFE+-_AZt+—HIFENERE
HETMBRAAAREESHERLE B
272,000t (ZE— N4 : #¥204,000
JL) °

< 5% [ Py [ e (B AR L B O AR B B R B RS
fiFE3.1 - BB ERAAERMERZT
ERBRER - FLHME33

R-ZE-NF+-_A=+—H &x&H
Y146 BAMR A2 38 = A 00 € 7 52 hn g
FHEBRMNEREF3I 7% - AARE
BZVEEREB=ANTERFRE
FEAGEREFERFBEAL —RERT - &
SR Ll R B RS B A A B IR
ZEREE FAAVGBHRBE=MEA
MERFRZBERESHAZIE -
BANGIREELCREREMARR
SNARERAENEMEFE - AR
BRI I R e h B A [E &
& 7838 T B U 28 A B SN B R AR B
KB -



Cash at banks and in hand

Analysed by denominated currency:

HK$
RMB
us$

RIThEFRE

REHERE T -

B
AR®
X7

The Group’s deposits carry interest rate at prevailing bank deposit
rates ranging from 0.01% to 0.51% (2019: 0.01% to 2.45%) per
annum. The conversion of the RMB-denominated balances into
foreign currencies and the remittance of funds out of the Mainland
China is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange
control promulgated by the Government of the PRC.

Accrued salaries and bonuses
Accrued legal and professional fees
Other tax payables

Interest payables

Receipt in advance from customers
Others

FEATEr & MAEAL
RBEDERLEXEN
H At e TR IA

S FILE

B ENEF 2 508
Hity

2020
—E-FHF

HK$°000
BT T

318,818

72,597
241,109
5,112

318,818

2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
BT T

607,782

118,795
446,077
42,910

607,782

REB FHIERITRITERENEN
F0.01EXE0S51E(ZZ—NEF : 0.01E
Z245F)FE - ARBEHEZEBREBRK
INE R AR B A IE HE S HE TR
ERAT AR Y SN B 2 45 Bl UK 4R o

2020
—E-FF
HK$"000
BETT

15,417
2,132
12,408
517
16,078
15,462

62,014

2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
BT T

7,347
2,307
10,177
891

4,500

25,222



The Group holds the following financial instruments:

Financial assets
Financial assets at amortised cost
— Receivables under sale and leaseback
arrangements
— Trade and bill receivables
— Deposits and other receivables
— Term deposits with initial term of over
three months
— Cash and cash equivalents

Debt instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
— Other payables
= Secured bank borrowings
= Security deposits received
— Lease liabilities

TRMEE
BRBERARIEZ SHEE
- EREER PR T REEIA

- RN E B IR BN RE

~ e R EAEWGIR

~ Pta HR R B = 18 A &
E#TF R

-HEekReFEEAB

BREMEMPREAAE
I 2 BT A
FRBEERBEAAEREZ
TREE

TRAE
BRBERAREZEHAE
- HAb e R

- BEIRIRITER

- BRERE
-HEAE

2020

=

—_—

HK$'000
BETT

1,380,449
36,132
136,860

318,818

15,886

2,847

1,890,992

18,111
290,303
11,904
1,917

322,235

AEBFEATZ2ERMIE -

2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
BT T

1,291,196
4,512
94,382
607,782

31,676

2,575

2,032,123

17,875
465,557
29,326
4,128

516,886



Non-current portion

Secured bank borrowings

Current portion

Secured bank borrowings

FEENERER
EHIFRITHER

BN A ER 2
EHIRRITER

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group’s borrowings
were repayable in accordance with scheduled repayment dates as

follows:

Carrying amount repayable:

Within 1 year

Between 1 and 2 years
Between 2 and 3 years

FEEEREE

—FR
—EMF
ME=F

2020
—g-%%F

—_—

HK$°000
BT T

146,995

143,308

290,303

2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
BT T

168,539

297,018

465,557

R-B-FFR-F-AFT-A=T

—B > AEEEZTE

EsmT

2020
—ECE®H

HK$’000
BT T

65,138
84,419
62,576

212,133

BHERZ

2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
BT

146,068
84,269
84,270

314,607



Carrying amount of bank borrowings that contain a repayable on
demand clause (shown under current liabilities) but repayable:

Within 1 year —FRA

Between 1 and 2 years —EMF
Between 2 and 3 years ME=F
Between 3 and 4 years = EYF

At 31 December 2020, the borrowing of HK$78,170,000 (2019:
HK$150,950,000) and HK$212,133,000 (2019: HK$314,607,000)
were denominated in HK$ and RMB respectively.

For the bank borrowings pledged by certain assets are disclosed in
Note 31.

The ranges of effective interest rates on the Group’s secured bank
borrowings are as follows:

Effective interest rate: BB F &
Variable-rate secured bank borrowings % B B KRR K

2020 2019
—E-%F —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
72,852 142,751
2,886 2,825
2,432 2,899

- 2,475

78,170 150,950
290,303 465,557

NRZTBE-FEE+-A=+—8 &
#¥78,170,000L (= — LF : B
150,950,0007T) K &% 212,133,000
(ZZ— N4 : #1314,607,0007T) 7 f&
RO RIABE R AREHE -

RITBEFRNETEELRRERNME
31

AEBEERRTERERMNXEEN
T

2020 2019
—E-FF —T-NF

1.18% to 5.00%
1.18E£5.00=Z

2.63% 10 5.70%
2.63E£5.70E



The interest rates for the Group’s bank borrowings vary from
different subsidiaries. The interest rates vary from Hong Kong
banks’ prime rate minus 2.75%, Hong Kong Interbank Offered
Rate (“HIBOR") plus 1% to 2.4% and variable Loan Prime Rate
("LPR") plus a percentage spread of 1.15% (2019: Hong Kong
banks’ prime rate minus 2.75%, HIBOR plus 1% to 2.5% and
variable PBC rate plus a percentage spread of 20%). Secured
bank borrowings of HK$78,170,000 (2019: HK$150,950,000)
are exposed to the fluctuations of HIBOR and Hong Kong
banks’ prime rate while the remaining HK$212,133,000 (2019:
HK$314,607,000) are exposed to the fluctuation of PBC rate. The
interest is repricing every month for secured bank borrowings
of HK$8,170,000 (2019: HK$10,950,000), and repricing every
quarter for secured bank borrowings of HK$282,133,000 (2019:
HK$454,607,000). The proceeds were used as funding for sale
and leaseback arrangements services business and general working
capital for the Group for the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, there was
HK$168,697,000 secured bank borrowings early repaid (2019: Nil).

For assets pledged as security for bank borrowing, please refer to
Note 31.

AEEBRTRMH B QR ZRITERF
EHFRAE - MENFHEBRTE
BEFERFE2.75FE - HHRITRAERE
([BBRITAZEHREDINMEZE24E R
FEERMS &F“ﬂ?((% RS IRE
FEDEZIASE(ZE—NE : B
ﬁiﬁa@ﬁ%ﬂ%iﬁm.m@ - BBRT
AERSIMEZ2SERIHARE
BRAE EF202) - BIKFRITER
7E#578,170,000C (ZE — NLF : B
150,950,0007T) H#&A X BB IRTT R ZEHF
ERBBRTREZFEEH AR
Mme T~ 2 B%212,133,000c (= — 1
F : 1#314,607,0007T) BIZBEAS AR
BERF R EE 2Rk - DEMRITE
FEEES,170,000L (ZZF— L4F : B
10,950,00070) Z M EFAEHEBRE
IR TR ER 282,133,000 L (=F
— L5 : B #454,607,0007T) 2 K 2B
BFENTE HE-T-_ZTFR=-F
—NEFE+-A=Z+—HIEFE  FIER
HEREARSBE SR O HELHREZE
BESR—REEES -

HE_ZTZ-_THF+_-_A=+—HIHF
B REBECHEBROTEREE
168,697,000 (ZF—N4F : &) o

EBEARTERRFEENTE 82
BARTEE3T ©



For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement
of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities
have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax
balances for financial reporting purposes:

Deferred tax assets EEIBEEE
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEEE

The following are the major deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior
years:

Provision of
loss allowance
for receivables

under sale
and leaseback
arrangements
TRE#
Bz
BTz EWEH
EHERRE
HK$'000
BETT
Movements 2
At 1 January 2019 R-E-NE-FA—-H 28,174
(Charged)/credited to consolidated REA2ERER
statement of comprehensive income  (¥1%) /3 A (7,825)
Exchange differences EXESE (313)
At 31 December 2019 and RZZE-h&
1 January 2020 +ZA=+t-AK
—Z2-2%-A-H 20,036
(Charged)/credited to consolidated RiEA2ERER
statement of comprehensive income  ($1%) /3t A (6.885)
Exchange differences EHER 718
At 31 December 2020 R=B-%%F
+=HA=+-1 13,869

BREEMBHRRKRAZY - HTRIE
MEEERAEDEE - THABER
HESRIAM S 2B 2D

zozo 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT I
13,869 20,036
(11,470) (9,948)
2,399 10,088

NTREERZTEREREBEEE (8
B ARERARFERBEFE 2 EE :

Withholding
tax on
undistributed
profits of the
Mainland China Revaluation

Subsidiaries of property Total
e
WEAR
R EEH

ZRNH MEEL CHY

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BETT BETT

B (10,168) 18,006

- 107 (7,718)

- 113 (200)

- (9,948) 10,088

(1,266) 312 (7,839)

- (568) 150

(1,266) (10,204) 2,399



At the end of the reporting period, the Group has the following REIEHR - AEEEATAREARIE

unutilised tax losses available for offsetting against future taxable E BRI SR R ERBUEF - AL
profits for which no deferred tax asset is recognised: UL TERBRLETIB A E
2020 2019
—ECEF —NEF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Tax losses expiring: RUATEIM R 2 BB & -
Within 5 years AFEA 14,193 11,126
Without expiry date mEE A 475,664 444,313
489,857 455,439
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the above FR R R TR R S M) 2IOIR - R I A Bt
tax losses due to unpredictability of future profit streams. FIRTRIEEERRIRERIBEE ©
Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends RIBEFREPEMSHE  BZTZN\F
declared in respect of profits earned by the Group's subsidiaries in —)5] Hie - ghAE B R B At 2 B
Mainland China from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation Tﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁl/ﬁnﬂ k2R EAHRTE
has not been provided for in the consolidated financial statements ?D WHeRZETF+T_A="1T— Ei
in respect of temporary difference attributable to the retained ARAREESZERE Wi’Mﬁ%
earnings earned by the subsidiaries in Mainland China amounting WREBEE - BZEEREEA6
to HK$65 million as at 31 December 2020 (2019: HK$62 million) A Rk EEmE - S&IHW*AHM@&
as the Group controls the dividend policy of these PRC subsidiaries LR ERHE A R R ZREEF
and it is probable that these temporary differences will not reverse JE A B = KB 565,000,000t (& —
in the foreseeable future. FLEE © 7#62,000,0007T) VB E T F B

B o



Number of

shares Amount
R EE S8
HK$'000
BT T
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BREEEE0.01TT2 TR
Authorised: VERE
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019 R-ZT—hF—HF—H -
and 31 December 2020 —E-NFTZA=+—8H
—ZE_TFE+_A
=+—H 10,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BEEITREHRE :
At 1 January 2019 RZE—NF—HA—H 4,008,288,703 40,083
Cancellation of shares (Note) A EAR D (R EE) (23,649,000) (237)
At 31 December 2019 and 2020 R-ZB-NFR_ZF_FTF
—A=+—H 3,984,639,703 39,846
Note: MiaE -
During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company repurchased HE-ZT-—NF+ZA=+—HLFE ' ~2Q
23,649,000 of its own shares. The total amount paid to repurchase the shares ElkE Hﬁ%E’JB 649,000% %17 - B[l A BEA%
was approximately HK$3,410,000 and was charged to share premium within MBS LN BB3,410,000c 5 AR
shareholder’s equity. All of the repurchased shares were cancelled during the FEEANNROEE HEZ_T-—NFTZA

year ended 31 December 2019. =T—BIEFEEHEERM BTN -



The carrying amount of assets pledged as security for non-current
assets are:

ETHERERSIERBDEENEARMZE
EREES

2020 2019
—E-%F —T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Investment properties (Note (a)) wE W (M) 23,700 24,700
Property, plant and equipment (Note (a)) YIEE - MRS Rk (5T () 14,549 14,921
Receivables under sale and leaseback EREMALHET 2 EBUFKIE

arrangements (Note (b)) (B (b)) 321,283 308,478
359,532 348,099

Notes: BIEE -

(@) The Group's investment properties with an aggregate carrying value of
HK$23,700,000 (2019: HK$24,700,000) and the Group's building with
carrying value of HK$14,549,000 (2019: HK$14,921,000) were pledged
to banks to secure for bank borrowings with outstanding amount of
HK$8,170,000 (2019: HK$10,950,000).

(b) The Group's receivables under sale and leaseback arrangements with
a carrying value of HK$321,283,000 (2019: HK$308,478,000) were
pledged to banks to secure for bank borrowings with outstanding
amount of HK$212,133,000 (2019: HK$314,607,000).

The Company has two share option schemes, which were approved
and adopted on 7 June 2002 (the “2002 Scheme”) and 25 May
2012 (the 2012 Scheme") respectively, pursuant to which share
options may be granted to directors (including executive and non-
executive directors), executives, officers, employees or shareholders
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries or any of its associated
companies and any suppliers, customers, consultants, advisers,
agents, partners or business associates to subscribe for the shares
of the Company. Both share option schemes are valid and effective
for a period of ten years commencing on the adoption date of the
scheme.

(a) BRME#AEHE23,700,000(=F—H
& ##24,700,0007T) 2 NEEIHRE
MR BREEAE 14,549,000 (= F
—NEF : E¥14,921,0000) 2 A EE
BFERBTFRT  ERAREERRITE
RAEHS,170,000L(ZF—LF : B
10,950,0007T) 2 # 4 ©

(b) BREEB%321,283,000c(=ZFE— AR
£ #1308,478,0007T) 2 AR EEE 4 [
MZHET 2 EBRRBEDEEFRT - 1
BAEERITEFRE212,133,0007T(=
T— N4 ¢ B1314,607,0007T) 2 HKIH -

KA EMIBERETE DR =F
TE-FXNALB((ZZEZE_F:428DE
—E——_FRA-tHRA(Z=ZE—=F
ETEIDEROEI R - itk - BEARER
B T ARA B BB A G
EMBERARZES(BIENTTRIERHR
TEE) THRAER  =HBE - -EB
SRR R AHRERS - BF - BAA
Bl 12 ARANEBBEAUR
BARQRKRMGD - MEBRETSIHEMR
MR ZEr B ER M B e+ F B &
B o



The 2002 Scheme was terminated on 29 May 2012, no further
options can be granted under the 2002 Scheme. During the year,
all the outstanding 3,586,880 share options granted under the
2002 Scheme were lapsed. Accordingly, no shares of the Company
may be issued under the 2002 Scheme as at the date of this annual
report.

Under the 2012 Scheme, the maximum number of shares of the
Company available for issue upon exercise of all share options is
115,219,246, representing 4.31% of the issued share capital of
the Company at the commencement date of the 2012 Scheme.
The total number of shares of the Company issued and which may
fall to be issued upon the exercise of share options to be granted
under the 2012 Scheme to each grantee in any 12-month period
up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of grant. Any further grant
of share options in excess of this 1% limit shall be subject to the
issue of a circular by the Company and shareholders’ approval in
a general meeting. No share options has been granted under the
2012 Scheme.

Under both share option schemes, the exercise price in relation to
each share option is determined by the Directors at their absolute
discretion and shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of the shares of the Company as stated in the daily quotation
sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of offer of share options; (ii)
the average of the closing prices of the shares of the Company as
stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of offer of share
options; and (iii) the nominal value of the share of the Company on
the date of offer of share options. Each grantee is required to pay
HK$1.00 as consideration for the grant of share options. The offer
of share options must be accepted within 60 days and 30 days
from the date of the offer, under the 2002 Scheme and the 2012
Scheme respectively.

TR _EFHERN T —FHEA-T
NBKIE  BTEBRE-_ST _F&
ElE—SREERE -RAFE 1R
BT _FaBEZHARTELZ
3,586,880 EREE KM - HIL © K
ANEFHZEBRY  TERPAIRE-Z
ZFET B T LABET o

BIBEZT—Z—F58  BBREITEER
EMABTZARE RaRNEE A
115,219,246% * (ERRER =T —=4F
FTEIF R H BB BITIRA4.31% » &
BARERLE B HaTER+ — @A HE R
TEREBE-_Z——FHEB RO ZE
%%ﬁaﬂﬁﬁ&%%%ﬁ2$ﬂﬂ%
PBH - TEBANKLBBEAR

BITIRAZ1% o Wi — i&ﬁhﬁ%
1%MREE 2 BEIRE - NARIZEE L @K
MERBEBRREARG EHE - ERE
ZE - FEEIR AR -

RIEMBRBRERE - SBREZTE
BLHEFENBET  EXEBTE
PRUATZz&EE  (IRRLBERER
HAZR X R 0 PO B X P & B SR B R PR
zuﬁsz = (i) %E?ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂgﬁ,ﬁﬁﬁl il
fE& % B ARRBRMORE RIS HRE
%%ﬁZﬁﬂ%mﬁ,&mmﬁm%%
BEPARRRN ZEHE - FERAR
BB 1.00TERER TREE 2K
B -RE_FT_FFFERk_FT——F
AE IR TZEEREADNIEHE
#) B HAEET60H 308 MEEM -



The following table discloses the details of the share options and
movements in the share options under the 2002 Scheme during
the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019:

For the year ended 31 December 2020

Category of grantees  Date of grant

ERAER BRHAH

Employees of the Group 14 December 2010

AEEES “Z-ZF+ZR
THA

Exercise period

TS

14 December 2010 -
13 December 2020

“T-F512f
tmNEZE-Z2-%
+-A+=H

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Category of grantees Date of grant

ESINF] BB

Employees of the Group 14 December 2010

TEEES “E-TF+A
Jr@ A

Exercise period

718

14 December 2010 -

13 December 2020
“F-T4+8

THRE-Z-%F

T-A+=H

Exercise price
per share

BRITER

HK$0.53

0537

Exercise price
per share

SRATREE

HK$0.53

BH0.537

Note: As a result of the Rights Issue which was completed on 31 October 2018,
the relevant exercise prices were adjusted from HK$0.54 to HK$0.53
under the 2002 Scheme and the numbers of outstanding share options

were adjusted accordingly.

TEBEEREBE_FT_TFR-_F—A
F+-_A=T—BLEFE RE-TT
—FEIECBREREEE ZFIE

HE_Z_2H+_-_A=t+—-HLEE

At

1 January
2020

i
—2-%F
-A-H

3,586,880

HE_-Z

At

1 January
2019

i
“T-NEF
—A—8

3,586,880

Number of share options
BREHA
Adjustment
Lapsed as a result of At
during the rights 31 December
the year issue 2020
gt St 2.3
ERERM T=A
EREXM  FHHRE =t-H
(Note)
(Bif &)

(3,586,880) - -
—hE+-A=t-ALFE
Number of share options

BRESE
Adjustment
Lapsed  as aresult of At
during the rights 31 December
the year issue 2019
RZZE-NE
AR TR
FREM  {EHMEE =+-H
(Note)
(Bt &)
- - 3,586,880
HRHBRER-_Z-N\F+A=+—H

FERK -
HBH0.54THER

ZET-FHFHETHBITEED
H¥0.537T 0 Flgk
RERR iR E 2 IERE R -



Movements in the number of share options outstanding and their

DEN

TEMNBRESE REEBINET

related weighted average exercise prices are as follows: BITEEZESHHT -
2020 2019
—E-FF —T-NF

Average Average
exercise price Number of exercise price Number of
in HKS per share options in HK$ per share options
share option (thousands) share option (thousands)

BHBREN FiBEREDN
FHITEE BREHAE FIGITREE BEHE
(8%) (F4) (B (F17)
At 1 January mn—A—H 0.53 3,587 0.53 3,587
Lapsed B 0.53 (3,587) = =
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H = = 0.53 3,587

On 11 July 2019, a subsidiary of the Group, 17 ERUER & &
AL FR)VER 2 a], formerly known as 137 5 BER & & (R
JNEBRE A A (Ecko Investment Company Limited*),
completed a capital injection into Jingxi Supply Chain,
pursuant to the investment agreement entered into between
Shougang Fund and Jingxi Supply Chain in June 2018. The
total consideration for the capital injection was
RMB200,000,000. As a result of this capital injection, the
Group’s shareholding in Jingxi Supply Chain increased from
10% to 70%. Jingxi Supply Chain is engaged in the operation
of supply chain management services in the Mainland China.

Details of the purchase consideration, the net assets acquired
and goodwill are as follows:

Ae B

Cash consideration

*  For identification purpose only

RZE—NFtA+—8 ~&£E
—HMEARNERERERSA
AtR)BRAT - s REER
BEREACRINBRAR - BIEHH
ASHRAHEERENR - —\EX
AR MR E B - TRE R
JESEREE - FEMNBREAAR
#200,000,0007T ° A LR E
& NS E R T E S RO AR R
10%IEBIMNET0% o AL EED
FER Y EHEREERE -

WREERE - B AR FEREE
ST

HK$'000
BETT

227,273

* ERESI S



The assets and liabilities recognised as a result of the

acquisition are as follows:

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible asset

Other receivables and current asset
Cash and cash equivalents

Other current liabilities

Net identifiable assets acquired

Less: fair value of 10% equity interest
previously held

Less: non-controlling interests

Add: goodwill

ME - BERRE

B EE

Hip EW s A MR B B E
RekREeFEEAR
HipREBE

B R BRI B EFE
B ST R FTRE 10% A Y

DhfE
W IR
e

The goodwill arising from the acquisition is attributable to the
synergies expected to arise from the business combination
and enable the Group to rapid entry into the fast growing

supply chain finance business in the PRC.

The Group elected to recognise the non-controlling interests
in Jingxi Supply Chain at its proportionate share of the

acquired net identifiable assets.

R BERNEENREGEDT

Fair value
ARE
HK$'000
BT T

2,695
12,689
2,045
311,871
(1,480)

327,820

(8,631)
(98,395)
6,479

227,273

WRBELNHEREARERKEHE
HAE RO h (R 3K FE » (E ANER 1S IA
HURHE A B PR IR B R O £ PR S
HER -

AEREEBZ AR A B
FEET RGP RER AP R
P IFIER A ST



2019

—ZE-NEF

HK$'000

BT T

Cash consideration paid BERNRENRE 227,273
Less: cash and cash equivalents acquired W FTENRE MRE

F(EEA (311,871)

Net cash inflow BERAFEE (84,598)

For the year ended 31 December 2019, acquisition-related BE_T-NFT+A=1+—HIL

cost of HK$270,000 was included in administrative expenses FE o WEEMARBKAEE 270,000

in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income and TL BERRAE EEWERET AT

in operating cash flows in the consolidated statement of cash X EREERERERTALE

flows. HERE °



Profit before income tax
Adjustments for:

Changes in fair value of financial

assets at FVPL

Depreciation of property, plant

and equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Amortisation of intangible assets

Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment and

intangible asset, net

Gain on disposal of debt

instruments at FVOCI

Reversal of impairment provision,

net

Change in fair value of investment

properties
Finance costs
Interest income

Share of profit of associates
Net exchange difference

Operating cash flows before
movements in working capital

Changes in working capital:

Receivables under sale and leaseback

arrangements

Entrusted loan payment receivable
Prepayments, deposits and other

receivables

Other payables and accruals

Contract liabilities
Security deposits received

Cash used in operations

5 15 B4 A1

EE
FBERERAAE
R SRAEY
AR ERD

WE - BERRETE

FRREENE

E A EEH
HEME - BEX
BEUAREBEREEZ
EEFE
HEBEBEAM P ERES
BRAREREZER
THAZWE
VERIERE L Ebest]

BAMEL DR EE

BEMA

M BHA

eI R N RDE A
PE 5 2 RRRE

LEETEIH 2 KE
Reneg
LEESEE:
EREELZ R T ER
A

FE KRR FEEFFIA
BNRIA - Be REM
JEWRIA

HAib e FUA M BT E B
BMAE
BRREES

REFmMASE

2020

—EEHF

Notes HK$’'000
M5 BET T

35,153

(272)

15 2,120
16 3,403
18 2,956

(29)
(5.916)

1,000

11 11,868
(10,636)

(1,258)

125

38,524

(5,824)

(175,922)
33,122

(18,674)

(128,774)

2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
BT

15,413

(204)

1,913
2,834
1,259

(1,022)
(1,887)

(2,400)
25,292
(19,968)

(2,614)

18,621

(229,876)
8,349

(502)
3,675
(3,992)
(18,731)

(222,456)



In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from
disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangible

asset comprise:

Net book amount (Note 15)
= Property, plant and equipment (Note 15)
= Intangible asset (Note 18)

Loss on disposals of property, plant and
equipment and intangible asset, net
(Note 7)

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment and
intangible asset

SR FE(BIEE15)

- W% - BB R EEIES)

- B EEMEE18)

HEME - BB MK
B EERIRFA

HEME - K5
BV EEZPI1SH0R

HIAR
(BF3E7)

RE AR

Ezﬁ/\ imb%%‘*‘ Hj%%%
i R a8 A LA R SR & B 2 FTS K
BB :

2020 2019
—g-®F —T-I&
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
1,336 5

556 -

1,892 5

(10) (5)

1,882 -



This section sets out an analysis of the movements in
liabilities arising from financing activities for the years ended
31 December 2020 and 2019 presented.

At 1 January 2019
Recognised on adoption of
HKFRS 16

Financing cash flows
Foreign exchange adjustments
Other charge

At 31 December 2019

Financing cash flows
Foreign exchange adjustments
Other charge

At 31 December 2020

R-ZE—NFE—HA—H
RERRE BT S HE
AR F 165 FER

MERORE
SR
B2

R-B-hF+=A
=t+-—n

BERTRE
SINEE FEEE
Hi & A

REHIARBE_T_TFR_
E-NF+_A=+—RHILFER

Lease

Borrowings liabilities Total
EEN HESE L
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT BT
494,541 - 494,541
- 6,246 6,246
494,541 6,246 500,787
(32,602) (2,346) (34,948)
3,618 - 3,618

- 228 228
465,557 4,128 469,685
(187,280) (2,346) (189,626)
12,026 - 12,026

- 135 135
290,303 1,917 292,220



The Controlling Shareholder of the Company defined under
the Listing Rules is Shougang Holding which is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Shougang Group Co., Ltd., a state-owned enterprise
under the direct supervision of the State Council of the PRC.
Accordingly, the Company and the Group are controlled by
Shougang Group Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
as “Shougang Group”). The transactions and those balances with
Shougang Group and other PRC government-related financial
institutions are disclosed below:

Key management personnel includes directors (executive,
non-executive and external directors) and the senior
management of the Group. The compensation paid or
payable to key management for employee services is shown
below:

Wages, salaries and other benefit IT& HehEMETR
Retirement benefit scheme contribution 3Rk 5245

Total employee benefit expenses EERFFXEE

RELMRANZER  ARRAZERK
RAEMER  mMEMZERISEHNE
BAR AR (P EEKREREES 2 E
BRF)ET22ENBRR - At - K
ARARASEXEHEEBRAFRE
= PNCICE VIR SETRDE AL il
B E N E T BT AR B
BTG NEREEWT ¢

FTEEBAERRES(MITE
FFBOTEFERIINSBEE) LA
SESREREAS - HEERKE
Nkt = BEIEANBFBan T AR
A

2020 2019
e —TNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T ok
8,237 7,638

50 39

8,287 7,677



Revenue under sale and leaseback
arrangements (Note (ii))
Subsidiaries of Shougang Group
Associate of Shougang Holding

Consultancy services income (Note (i))
Subsidiaries of Shougang Group

Management fee expenses (Note (i))
Shougang Holding

Lease payments (Note (i))
Subsidiary of Shougang Holding

Sales of property, plant and
equipment and intangible asset
(Note (i))

Subsidiary of Shoucheng
Holdings Limited

EREARFERN 2WHE
(B = (i)
EMEEZKHBAR
EEitEd e N

A R WA (B EE())
EHEEZHBAR

EEE M (M)
B AR

HEMA (M)
EEiif23 oAy ~UN:]

HEWHE - MERKBUR
B A E (M)

BERERERAFZ
ERi=PNG

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=+—HLEE

2020
—E-FF
HKS$"000
BETT

53,295

53,295

1,003

2,880

2,346

1,882

2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
BT T

46,873
827

47,700

1,065

2,880

2,346



Notes:

(ii)

The transactions were carried out in accordance with the relevant
lease and other agreements.

The transactions were carried out in accordance with relevant sale
and leaseback and loan agreements summarised as below:

M

Pursuant to the sale and leaseback agreement, South
China Leasing provided sale and leaseback amounting to
RMB70,000,000 to Tengzhou Eastern Steel Cord Co. Ltd,
an associate of Shougang Holding, for a term of 3 years
commenced from August 2016.

The Company entered into the master facility agreement
with Shougang Group Co., Ltd., pursuant to which the
Company has conditionally agreed to provide or procure
its subsidiaries to provide the uncommitted facilities to
Shougang Group Co., Ltd. and/or its subsidiaries in an
aggregate principal amount of up to RMB5,000,000,000
for a term of 3 years commenced from June 2018.

Pursuant to the sale and leaseback agreement, South
China Leasing provided sale and leaseback amounting
RMB60,000,000 to R E & HIRIFHEHEEFRAA,
a subsidiary of Shougang Holding, for a term of 1 year
commenced from February 2018.

Included in receivables under sale and leaseback
arrangements of the Group as disclosed in Note 20, there
are receivables under sale and leaseback arrangements from
subsidiaries of Shougang Group with total carrying amount
of HK$691,440,000 (2019: HK$984,612,000) as at 31
December 2020.

GEE

(i)

ZERHREABAHEERE MR

17 -

729

X <7 2K

SRBEABEREERER

W AETT - BT

(M

@)

REEREMARZE  mAHA
ErBMNRSMEZERR
A (EMER 2B E N F)IE
HEZLHASEAARE
70,000,0007T * BH=4F -
BT —AFNARS-

AArIREHEEERAR
R REEmE - Rt - K
RNARIE B GHF R E R K
REEMBARMEHER
ERABIE/SEMBAFR
REASBESRZAARE
5,000,000,0007C 2 JE#GE
Bz BYI=F B=%—
NERNARE ©

BEEREMERE  mAHA
ERKBET S REESE
AR A A (& M ZE R A
BARRHEERLOE SR
A AR¥60,000,0007T © A
H—F BT \F_A
FE

BERMF20MEENLAERE
BEMELTHEETRERZE R
T-TFE+-_A=+—H  K§H
EMEEC HBEARNEREHEE
BB TRERZBEREEGEABE
691,440,000 (ZZF—NF : &
#984,612,0007T) °



At 31 December 2020, the Group’'s financial assets at
FVPL included listed securities of 12,370,000 shares (2019:
12,370,000 shares) of Shougang Concord Century Holdings
Limited (“Shougang Century”) with carrying amount of
HK$2,746,000 (2019: HK$2,486,000), and 46,000 shares
(2019: 230,000 shares) of Shoucheng Holdings Limited
("Shoucheng”, formerly known as Shougang Concord
International Enterprises Company Limited) with carrying
amount of HK$101,000 (2019: HK$89,000). Shougang
Century and Shoucheng are associates of Shougang Holding.

Apart from the transactions and balances with the Shougang
Group as disclosed in Note 35(b) and 35(c), and the
investments in related companies as disclosed in Note 35(d),
the Group has entered into various transactions in its ordinary
course of business including deposit placements, borrowings
and other general banking facilities, with certain banks and
financial institutions which are government-related entities.
As at 31 December 2020, Nil, 99% and 97% (2019: 100%,
100% and 98%), respectively, of term deposits with initial
term over three months, bank balances and bank borrowings
are held with these government-related financial institutions.

R-ZE-_TF+_HA=+—H"
REFEZEBESRREARER
BremEERRLTESRER
EFEEAERARNIEREEEDZ
12,370,000/ & h (= F— N5 -
12,370,0000% i 17) BRI (B B & 1
2,746,000t (ZZE—NF : B
2,486,00070) R B2 IER AR A A
(TERER] - I RERSE
BRAT]) 246,000/ H (=ZZF—
FLEE ¢ 230,0000% 0% 17) BR BB A5
#101,000c(ZE— N F : B
89,0007T) - BEREBEENMEEER
BEMERZEE R -

B B 5E35(b) &2 35(c) P i 5 £ 15 3
SB 2R 5 MEHRMFE35(d)AT
WRENREEQR ZIREIN » AEE
REBBEKBEFTEBBTIER
ERATRITRSRIEEIT LS
HR S BREER - ERREM—
MIRTRE - RZE-_ZTF+_A
—+—H  VIREBREA=EAN
FEHGFEH - RITET RIRITER
AR E I E BT HE S B E S
BE 9% NIT7%(ZFT—NF :
100%  100% f98%) °



The remuneration of every director and the chief executive for the
year ended 31 December 2020 is set out below:

2020
Executive directors of
the Company
Xu Liang
Su Guifeng
Li Jing

Non-executive directors of
the Company
Liu Dongsheng (Note (i))
Huang Donglin
You Wenli

Independent Non-executive
directors of the Company
Tam King Ching, Kenny
Fei Jianjiang (Note (vi))
Zhang Xingyu (Note (vii))
Wan Siu Wah, Wilson

Total emoluments

—g-%f
ARTYTES

r &
YESS
F B

AREFUTES

BUZRTH (B EE())
BEM

B
ADTBLHFHTES
BB
BT (K1 EEV)

o5 0. R (i)
Pt

[k

Fees

ik
HK$°000
BRI

58
190

252

55
198
252

1,005

BE_ZT-_EF+_-_A=+—HILEE
EETHAB ZHME 5

BEEER

s 8

Salaries
and other
benefits
FeRk
HibgRl
HK$'000
BET T

3,360
2,883
990

7,233

Contributions
to retirement
benefit scheme
RRER

ST B
HK$'000
BT T

18
18
14

50

Total

2020

#sct
“E-EF
HK$'000
BET T

3,378
2,901
1,004

58
190

252

55
198
252

8,288



The remuneration of every director and the chief executive for the
year ended 31 December 2019 is set out below:

Fees
e
HK$'000
BT T
2019 —T—hF
Executive directors of the KARHMITESE
Company
Xu Liang " B2 -
Liu Dongsheng (Note (i) 2 F (B EEG)) -
Su Guifeng (Note (ii)) R ARS8 (B REGl) -
Li Jing (Note (iii)) =3 G =) -
Non-executive directors of RAREHMTEE
the Company
Liu Dongsheng (Note (i)) 25 A (B FE() -
Huang Donglin |EAM 190
You Wenli (Note (iv)) 5 SR (B REGv)) -
Independent Non- executive ZAATBEIFHTES
directors of the Company
Tam King Ching, Kenny = E 264
Yip Kin Man, Raymond R PW)
(Note (v)) 262
Fei Jianjiang (Note (vi)) BT (M EE(vi) 264
Wan Siu Wah, Wilson Ik 264
Total emoluments [ gt 1,244
Notes:
(i) Liu Dongsheng ceased to be managing director and was appointed to

be non-executive director on 22 August 2019. Mr. Liu was subsequently
ceased to be non-executive director on 21 May 2020.

(ii) Su Guifeng was appointed on 19 September 2019.

(i) LiJing was appointed on 22 August 2019.

(iv)  You Wenli was appointed on 31 May 2019.

(v) Yip Kin Man, Raymond resigned on 1 January 2020.

(vi)  Fei Jianjiang resigned on 20 March 2020.

(vii)  Zhang Xingyu was appointed on 20 March 2020.

BE_ZT—hhF+-_A=+—HBILEE
ZREERERITHAE ZFHEET 0

T~

Salaries
and other
benefits
ek
HAb @
HK$'000
BT

2,506
2,640
816
432

Contributions
to retirement
benefit scheme
RIKEF

FT B K
HK$'000
BT T

18
12

39

Total

2019

HBET
—E-NF
HK$'000
BT T

2,524
2,652
819
438

190

264
262

264
264

7,677

0) BERARZT—NEFENA=Z+=BTHEA
BEERCBVEZTAIENTES - D%

EHEBER-_ZE-_TFRA-T

FMITEE -
(i) FHEER-_ZF-NFALATNLBEZE-
(i) ZFHER-Z-NFNA_T_HEZRE-
(iv) E%%@E@:%*HEEEHEJr*EZ%é

—BTEBAR

(v) HRRR-_Z_TFE—-A—-HEIE-
vy BERIN-_Z-_ZTF=-A-_TtHEET-
(i) RESBNR-_ZE_TF-A_F+HEZRT-



Details of principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2020 and 2019 are

as follows:

Name of subsidiary

WEARER

Direct subsidiaries
EENBAR
SCG Investment (BVI) Limited

Jeckman Holdings Limited

Indirect subsidiaries
HENEAR
Gold Cosmos Development Limited

TEERERATF

Grand Park Investment Limited

HEREBRATF

Grand Phoenix Limited

Linksky Limited
ERBRAT]

Long Cosmos Investment Limited

REREBRATF

Lyre Terrace Management Limited
ERERARAA

Place of
incorporation or
establishment/
operation
EMRIRARL,
L i

British Virgin Islands
("BVI")

RERLES
(RBRLES])

BVI
RBRIEHS

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
Bk

BVI
RBRIES

Hong Kong
Bk

Hong Kong

BB

Hong Kong
&R

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered

and paid-up
capital
ERTRBERE
AR ERRA
(Note (i)

(HE=E())

HK$100,000

#1100,0007T

US$100
100% 7T

HK$10,000
##10,0007T

HK$2
2T

US$1
(E

HK$2
B2

HK$2

BT

HK$1,000,000
7 #£1,000,0007T

ZA/N
A=

N,

+

Proportion of ownership
interest held by the Company Principal activities

KADFHEAR
2t

2020 2019

—g-g5 -T-n%

100% 100%

100% 100%

100% 100%

100% 100%

0% 100%

100% 100%

100% 100%

100% 100%

AR E_EFR_E-NF+=
—BZEFEMBRARFBELOT

FEXR

Investment holding

REZR

Investment holding
REER

Investment holding

RERK

Property investment

NERE

Investment holding
REER

Property investment

NERE

Provision of
administrative and
management services

RRETHR R EE RS

Property investment

NERE



Name of subsidiary

WEAREM

On Hing Investment Company,

Limited

SCG Capital Corporation Limited

BRIOTBEERLT

SCG Finance Corporation Limited

BRETHMBEERAT]

SCG Financial Investment Limited

SCG Leasing Corporation Limited

BROMEERRAA

South China International Leasing Co.,
Ltd. (“South China Leasing”)
BHABRRHEERARI(EAEE]

Strenbeech Limited

Place of
incorporation or
establishment/
operation

SMARIRAL,
BemE

Hong Kong

B

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
BE

BVI
RBRIES

Hong Kong
BE

PRC (Note (ii))
D)

BVI
RBRIES

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered

and paid-up
capital
BERTRERKRE
df R EARA
(Note (i)

(P=E())

HK$1,000
(ordinary)
HK$2,000,000
(non-voting
deferred)
11,0007T
(@R

7 12,000,0007C
(ERZRELR)

HK$20
B2
HK$20
B 07T
US$1,000
1,000%7T
HK$2
BT

US$162,000,000
(Registered capital)
162,000,000 7T

Gaiiey)

HK$147,000,008
7 #147,000,0087T

Proportion of ownership
interest held by the Company Principal activities

ARRFERRE
B2t
2020 2019

= e

100% 100%
(Note (iv)) (Note (iv))
(RFE(iv)) (GEID)
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
75% 75%

0% 100%

TEEHR

Property investment
and investment
holding

MERERBEEZR

Investment holding
REER

Provision of financial
services

RS BARTS

Investment holding

RERK

Inactive
TmEE

Provision of sale and
leaseback services

FRHtER DI R

Investment holding

RARK



Name of subsidiary

WEAR AR

Tin Fung Investment Company,
Limited

REEXBERAR

Valuework Investment Holdings
Limited

Ecko Investment Company Limited*

HEREREZAIRERAF

Beijing Shouhua Fangtai Investment
Management Co., Ltd.*
("Shouhua Fangtai”)

LREEFRREERERAF
EEZES))

Beijing Jingxi Supply Chain
Management Co., Ltd.*
("Jingxi Supply Chain")

ITRR A EREERERAR
(TrrftRes )

*  For identification purpose only

Place of
incorporation or
establishment/
operation

SMARIRAL,
BemE

Hong Kong

BE

BVI
RBRIES

PRC (Note (jii)

F B (P i)

PRC (Note (jii))

F B (i)

PRC (Note (jii))

BEIGED)

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered

and paid-up
capital
BERTRERKRE
df R EARA

(Note (i)
(BHEEG))

HK$975,000
(ordinary)
HK$210,000
(non-voting
deferred)
75#975,0007T
(EEk)

75 1#210,0007T
(ERFRELR)

US$100
100% 7T

HK$261,700,000
(Registered capital)
#%261,700,0007T
Galiiey)

RMB70,000,000
(Registered capital)

AE#70,000,0007C
(R REA)

RMB60,000,000

AE%60,000,0007T

Proportion of ownership
interest held by the Company Principal activities

AARFBHERE
3l ]
2020 2019
= e
100% 100%
(Note (iv)) (Note (iv))
(M (iv)) (GEI)
100% 100%
100% 100%
86.71% 86.71%
100% 70%
(Note (v))
(HHaE(v)

* ERBESIAE

TEEHR

Inactive

TEEX

Investment holding

REER
Investment holding

REZR

Provision of corporate
financial advisory
services

RECERERER
FR%

Provision of supply
chain management
services

Rft R B e RS



Notes:

(i) All issued share capital are ordinary shares unless otherwise stated.

(ii) This entity is sino-foreign equity joint venture.
(i) These entities are limited liability enterprises.
(iv)  Interests only refer to ordinary shares which are voting shares.

(v) During the year, the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with Shougang Fund, a non-controlling shareholder of Jingxi Supply
Chain, to acquire the remaining 30% equity interest with the
consideration of HK$8,747,000. After the acquisition, the Group owns
100% equity interest on Jingxi Supply Chain.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the
opinion of the Directors, principally affect the results or assets and
liabilities of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would,
in the opinion of Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

BeE

(iii)

(iv)

BIERBHA  BAMEERTRADS

ZHEBRTIIAERE -

ZERRREREERT] -

%

BB RER BRI MR -

FA - AEEERAEER S IEERR
REWNESTVEE NS  LWKEBHT
30% 0% HE - R{BAAB18,747,0007T ° A
WiER  NEEHESE RAMHEE100%R
¥ o

EREFINEZR/EAEEZEEN
EENABEIEREZASENER
Bl - EER /I EMHE R R FIEH
TRIBBNRITK -

A7 6F [ i SR By % B 19 o By o) O 28 B
BRABRKEEMNESES



The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of TREIEEERNFERER L AEKHE
the Group that have material non-controlling interests: FEEWB AR ZFFIS

Proportion of ownership

Place of interests and voting rights  Profit for the year
establishment  Principal held by non-controlling allocated to non- Accumulated non-
Name of subsidiary ~ and operation activities interests controlling interests controlling interests
B R FERERFSREE PEREFERES
WEARER EELH TEXH BERREE L ZEERR EHE S
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
“¥CBF —T-NF ZBCBE —TNF Z¥CBE TR
% %  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000

BT  A%TT BETn  A%TR

South China Leasing PRC Provision of sale 25 25 12,887 9,083 318,749 291,628
BHHE H and leaseback
services
RHEERDME
R
Jingxi Supply Chain PRC Provision of - 30 49 (620) - 96,517
REftER HE supply chain
management
services
Rt HtEEER
k%
Individually immaterial (397) 204
subsidiaries with
non-controlling
interests

{ERIFEAMAEAE
ERiER < MBAT

318,352 388,349



South China Leasing is the non-listed company established in
Mainland China and provides sale and leaseback services in
Mainland China.

The Group has indirect ownership interest of 75% (2019: 75%)
in South China Leasing at 31 December 2020, which is held by
wholly owned subsidiaries of the Group. The remaining 25% non-
controlling is held by Shougang Holding.

The Directors conclude that the Group has a sufficiently dominant
voting interest to direct the relevant activities of both subsidiaries
on the basis of the Group’s absolute size of equity interest and the
relative size of the interest owned by the other equity owners.

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
subsidiary that has material non-controlling interests is set out
below. The summarised financial information below represents
amounts before intragroup eliminations.

EARERRPREANMMKYZEETR
A AR BRI HEREERS -

AEBRZE-_ZEF+_A=+—HR
MAAEEBETIS%(ZE—AF : 75%)
MEEaEREs  MEHTHERLAEER
ZHEEEMBATRFA - B T25%3FE
RSt s S IR A o

ExzEmr ERAEEZBHBRE
MR R EMAAERA ARA Z A
RE AEERARHTIEHRRE
ARSI mEM B AR 2 BRES -

BRABAERFEREDR 2 AEEMNE
NEMBERBEEHIN AT - Tt
ZHBEMEEEARARYENZ S
L



Current assets
Current liabilities

Current net assets

Non-current assets
Non-current liabilities

Non-current net assets

Net assets

Accumulated non-controlling interests

RBEEFE

FRBEE
FRBAE

FRBEEFE

BEEFE

RETFERER

2020

S 8L
HK$'000

BT T

702,932
(188,935)

513,997

913,946
(152,947)

760,999

1,274,996

318,749

2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
BT

591,173
(259,197)

331,976

1,013,763
(179,227)

834,536

1,166,512

291,628



Revenue

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income/(loss)

Total comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income allocated to
non-controlling interests

Net cash generated from/(used in)
operating activities

Net cash used in investing activities

Net cash used in financing activities

Net cash outflow

Yo g

& B F
E b2 mEikas (B518)

2HE W EARE

DEEIHERERE
2R EARE

REEBME/(FAA)REFE

RETBHMARSFR
METBMARSFR

BREm#a8

2020
SE
HK$’000
BT T

78,691

51,548
77,988

129,536

32,384

2020
e

HK$°000
BT

51,937
(7,282)
(99,872)

(55,217)

2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
BT

71,568

36,335
(13,759)

22,576

5,644

2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
BT T

(212,408)
(87,154)
(26,302)

(325,864)



Assets
Non-current assets

Investment in subsidiaries, net (Note)
Amounts due from subsidiaries, net (Note)

Current assets

Prepayment, deposits and other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets
Liabilities
Current liabilities

Other payables and accruals

Total liabilities

Net current assets

Net assets

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

BE

FRBEE

RIB AR Z &&= )
R W PR 88 2 AR TR 3 R (M RE)

RBEE

BN - HE MEAEKEIR
Re MREFERAE

BEMAE

&fE&

RBAE

H b FE 3R M BT &

BEAE

RBEEFE

BEFE

BRA R

L@
fié 45

2020
—s=%%
HK$'000
BT

509,068
563,203

1,072,271

193
202

395

1,072,666

102

102

293

1,072,564

39,846
1,032,718

1,072,564

2019

—E-NF

HK$'000
BT T

485,928
513,421

999,349

193
454

647

999,996

167

167

480

999,829

39,846
959,983

999,829



Note: As at 31 December 2020, the amounts due from subsidiaries with
carrying amount of HK$563,203,000 (2019: HK$513,421,000) are
unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. In the opinion of
the Directors, the Company will not demand for repayment within
one year from the end of reporting period and the amounts due from
subsidiaries are therefore considered as non-current. Interest-free advance
is measured at amortised cost and the related effective interest income
of HK$35,105,000 (2019: HK$33,433,000), which is non-distributable,
was recognised in profit or loss for the current year and accumulated
effective interest income of approximately HK$140,010,000 (2019:
HK$104,905,000), which is non-distributable, was recognised in retained

earnings.

At 1 January 2019

Cancellation of ordinary shares

Loss for the year

Exchange difference arising on
translation into presentation
currency

At 31 December 2019

Lapse of share options

Profit for the year

Exchange difference arising on
translation into presentation
currency

At 31 December 2020

Share
premium
R EE
HK$'000
BETL
RZE-nF—A—H 770,228
SHLER (3,410)
FEER =
BERZ|ERELY
ERES
RZE-nE+-A=1+—H 766,318
BRELY -
FEEE =
BERRNERELEY
EHEE
RZE-FF+-A=1—H 766,318

Contributed
surplus
reserve

EONA:
HK$'000
BETT

113,441

113,441

113,441

=
St
&

Share
options
reserve

BRERR
HK$'000
ARTTL

686

686

(686)

MNZTE-_TF+-_A=+—0 " ELK
M B A ) 3R IE BR A {E 4 #5563,203,000
TT(ZZ— N4 : #B¥#513,421,0007T)
BEEKE RERBRERKEE -ES
RE  ARABETERBEEHBARE—
FAREERENR - HULR R E UK
BRARIKIERIERS - REBFRIIR
BBERAGFEMHEBERMN KA
75%35,105,000 0 (ZE—NF : B
33,433,00070) BRI DB BB R AT
EERZENERRZFTERFEWAL
75%140,010,0007 T (ZE—NEF - B
104,905,0007T) & A] 5 3% B E AR E
B ARER

Exchange Retained
reserve earnings Total
EXifE  REERAN @zt
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT  BETr  BETR
- 90,538 974,893
- - (3,410)
- (144) (144)
(11,356) - (11,356)
(11,356) 90,394 959,983
- 686 -
- 38,239 38,239
34,4% - 34,4%
23,140 129,319 1,032,718



RESULTS

Continuing operations
Revenue

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Other gains, net

Selling expenses

Administrative expenses

Changes in fair value of investment
properties

Changes in fair value of financial
assets at fair value through profit
or loss

(Provision)/reversal of impairment
of provision, net

Finance costs

Share of (loss)/profit of associates

(Provision)/reversal of impairment

of provision on interest in an
associate

(Loss)/profit before income tax

Income tax credit/(expense)

(Loss)/profit for the year from
continuing operations

Discontinued operation
Loss for the year from discontinued
operation

(Loss)/profit for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

FEREEY
Yo zs

EH

HA

B s % AR
HERRX

1THF X

REMEZAAE

BRBEREOAE
BEZERMEELZ
NRERS

HE R TR
(), B

BB A

FEIERE 2 N R (B51R),/
il

L =N £
AR (B,
B[l

KRS BAT (B518),/
I

FrgHiER, ()

SEEEEBZEE
(E518) a7

BRIEREXK
ERUEEERH
FEBR

FE (B8R, 87
AT AL

ARAFEA
SRR RS

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-—_A=+—HLEE

2016 2017 2018 2019
ZE—RF Z2—+F ZZ-\F ZZT—NF
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BETT BT BEBTRX BET
106,578 109,512 96,623 77,702
(61,130)  (50,380)  (42,427)  (20,058)
45,448 59,132 54,196 57,644
11,451 4,389 15,620 21,191
= 285 2,824 1,094

(672) (993) (418) (402)
(33,248)  (40,530)  (58,798)  (65,232)
4,670 10,781 3,147 2,400
806 67 (641) 204
(44,055) 672 1,242 1,887
(264) (2,445) (5,823) (5,987)
(25,349)  (11,947) (122,547) 2,614
(43,019) (9,626) 75,640 =
(84,232) 9,785 (35,558) 15,413
2,564 (12,206)  (14,531)  (14,830)
(81,668) (2,421)  (50,089) 583
(304) = = =
(81,972) (2,421)  (50,089) 583
(82,375)  (11,332)  (58,882) (7,921)
403 8,911 8,793 8,504
(81,972) (2,421)  (50,089) 583

2020
—g-f
HK$'000
BT T

85,378
(11,618)

73,760
12,388
13,734
(1,420)
(68,079)

(1,000)

272

5,916
(1,676)

1,258

35,153
(16,959)

18,194

18,194

5,980
12,214

18,194



ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Total assets BEBER
Total liabilities B 5B

Capital and reserves attributable to ANA &3 A A JE(L

owners of the Company A& A K (4
Non-controlling interests FEFE R

As at 31 December

BR+=—A=+-—H
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
ZE—RF ZE—+F T\ ZZT-NF ZB-TF
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000
BT BB BET BETr B%Tx

2,524,472 2,630,955
(1,061,140) (1,051,498)

2,218,214
(592,124)

2,294,032
(550,534)

2,161,473
(397,484)

1,463,332 1,579,457 1,626,090 1,743,498 1,763,989

1,198,271
265,061

1,281,917
297,540

1,339,688
286,402

1,355,149
388,349

1,445,637
318,352

1,463,332 1,579,457 1,626,090 1,743,498 1,763,989
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